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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan Pharmaceutical”
or the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”) (Stock Code:
00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical company
led and driven by innovation, with a leading independent production, and research
and development (“R&D") technology platform, a rich global product pipeline and a
mature and excellent sales system. Focusing on high-growth therapeutic areas such as
medical aesthetics, oncology, metabolism, diabetes, cardiovascular and cerebrovascular,
modern Chinese medicine and industrial hemp, it adheres to its overall strategic
objective of “Adhering to the full-speed promotion of a two-wheeled strategy of Sihuan
medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals” to build a leading medical aesthetics and
biopharmaceutical enterprise in China.
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Exg((E2=sg)) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")

BITES Executive Directors

BISAEE(ER) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

SPuEI B A (Bl E B RITEAEED Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"))

SRAMBEER Dr. Zhang Jionglong

ZRBZLT (AITRAHFEENEE) Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO"))

BRECIS L Ms. Chen Yanling

BYHBITES Independent Non-executive Directors

BEREE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KalEL Dr. Zhu Xun

FTHRAEEWVR-_TEZ=FMA—HEZMT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

FEELE(RZTEZ=FMA—HFHT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

BEABME JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

PRI AL Ms. Chen Yanling

Tl E Mr. Li Kin Wai

REARX AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

PRAIS &L Ms. Chen Yanling

FRESE Mr. Li Kin Wai

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

BEN L (EF) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
(RZZE_=FNA—HEZTAEERE) (appointed as chairman on 1 April 2023)

KAE LT Dr. Zhu Xun

TREE(RZZE_=FMNA—HEEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

FEESLE Mr. Patrick Sun
(RZZEZ=FMA—HET) (resigned on 1 April 2023)

FMZEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

KA (EE) Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman)

BEAEAE Dr. Che Fengsheng

BEREAE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

FTHRAEE(R-ZTEZ=FMA—HEZMT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

FEELE(RZTEZ=FMA—HFHHT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

REZ8S NOMINATION COMMITTEE

ITEEE(ERE) Mr. Wang Guan (Chairman)
(RZZ=Z=FmA—BEZT) (appointed on 1 April 2023)

DU B Dr. Guo Weicheng

WEE kA Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
(RZZEZ=FMA—BTHETERE) (ceased to be chairman on 1 April 2023)

KAlE L Dr. Zhu Xun

FEELE(RZZE_=FMNA—HEHT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Yanling (Co-chairman)

(appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)
Ms. Miao Guili (Co-chairman)

(appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Audlitor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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In December 2023, four non-PVC solid-liquid dual chamber bag products were newly
included in the National Reimbursement Drug List (2023 Edition). Their inclusion in the
National Reimbursement Drug List will increase patients’ willingness to use the products
and enhance the market penetration of dual chamber bag products in China, thus
leading to a rapid increase in sales and a positive impact on the Company’s performance.

In December 2023, the proton-pump inhibitor (PPI) innovative drug Anjiuwei® (Anaprazole
Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets) independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Biopharm") was included in the National Reimbursement Drug List
(2023 Edition). The inclusion in the National Reimbursement Drug List will expedite the
hospital access and listing of Anjiuwei® (Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets), thus
leading to a rapid increase in sales and a positive impact on the Company’s performance.

In December 2023, Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection and Insulin
Aspart 50 Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Huisheng
Biopharm") obtained New Drug Application (“NDA") approval from the National
Medical Products Administration (“NMPA"). As Huisheng Biopharm’s first insulin (analog)
drug that obtained NDA approval, it will meet the clinical needs of different insulin
treatment options for diabetic patients.

In November 2023, Azithromycin for Suspension and Dopamine Hydrochloride Injection
developed by Sihuan Pharmaceutical won the bid for the ninth batch of national
centralized procurement. Azithromycin for Suspension and Dopamine Hydrochloride
Injection obtained their drug registration approvals in the first half of the year. Through
winning the bid for the national centralized procurement, these two products will further
benefit patients and increase their end-market shares.

In October 2023, the NDA of Birociclib monotherapy for HR+/HER2- advanced breast
cancer that has progressed after multi-line treatment (including endocrine therapy
and chemotherapy), developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, was accepted by the NMPA,
and is expected to become the first and only monotherapy final-line treatment with
CDK4/6 inhibitor that is effective in patients with HR+/HER2- advanced breast cancer
in China. The phase Il clinical study results of Birociclib monotherapy were selected by
the European Society for Medical Oncology (ESMO) Congress for poster presentation.
This was the second time the clinical study results of Birociclib monotherapy were
presented in an international academic conference since the 2023 American Society of
Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Annual Meeting held in June, which indicates that the clinical
study results of Birociclib are recognized by international and authoritative academic
institutions.

4 DU 15 58 ZEYR AR & B A R 2 & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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In October 2023, the Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide Injection developed by Huisheng
Biopharm obtained approval from the NMPA to initiate clinical studies for the treatment
of type 2 diabetes. The product can form a combination with the Insulin Degludec
Injection and the Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection, which are in the
product pipeline of Huisheng Biopharm, to create synergy and improve the Group’s
comprehensive strength and competitiveness.

In September 2023, the NDA of Birociclib (a Class 1 new drug independently
developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm) in combination with fulvestrant for the treatment
of HR+/HER2- advanced breast cancer that has progressed on previous endocrine
therapy was accepted by the NMPA. The results of its clinical phase Ill study show
that, compared with the control group, Birociclib in combination with fulvestrant has
significant statistical differences and clinical significance.

In July 2023, the phase Il clinical trial application of Birociclib (a Class 1 new drug
independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm) monotherapy or in combination with
abiraterone acetate and prednisolone for the treatment of metastatic prostate cancer
was approved by the NMPA. Pre-clinical study results show that Birociclib used in
combination with abiraterone acetate has significant synergistic anti-tumor effects.

In July 2023, the Semaglutide Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm obtained
approval from the NMPA to initiate clinical studies for the treatment of type 2 diabetes.
Clinical phases | and Ill are being carried out simultaneously. Clinical studies have been
initiated. It was Huisheng Biopharm'’s first GLP-1 analog drug to obtain clinical approval.
In addition, the indication for the treatment of obesity or overweight of Semaglutide
Injection is in pre-clinical stage, and is expected to file Investigational New Drug (“IND")
application within this year.

In June 2023, the proton pump inhibitor (PPl) Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets
independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm obtained drug registration approval
from the NMPA for the treatment of duodenal ulcer (DU). Anaprazole Sodium is the first
and only PPI fully independently developed in China. It was also Xuanzhu Biopharm’s
first drug to obtain NDA approval.
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The phase Il clinical results of Birociclib, a Class 1 new drug under development, were
submitted to the American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) in February 2023,
accepted by ASCO in April, and selected for presentation in the Poster Session during
the 2023 ASCO Annual Meeting held in June. The phase | clinical results show that
Birociclib, a novel selective CDK4/6 inhibitor, has the potential to overcome endocrine
therapy resistance in hormone receptor-positive (HR+) breast cancer patients. Birociclib
monotherapy also exhibited significant efficacy in patients with advanced breast cancer
who have failed in multiple lines of treatment.

In June 2023, the drugs Mecobalamin Tablets and Thioctic Acid Injection for the
treatment of peripheral neuropathy and the DPP-4 inhibitor Sitagliptin Phosphate
Tablets for the treatment of type 2 diabetes, developed by Huisheng Biopharm,
obtained drug registration approvals from the NMPA. Drugs for treating diabetes and
its complications are one of the key areas the Group focuses on. The NDA approvals
obtained by these products will further benefit patients. They have also enhanced the
Group's comprehensive strength and competitiveness in the area of diabetes and its
complications, which will have a positive impact on the Group’s operating results.

In May 2023, the NDA of the Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection developed
by Huisheng Biopharm was accepted by the NMPA. It was the first biosimilar of insulin
degludec and insulin aspart whose NDA was submitted and accepted in China. The
product can form a combination with the compound preparations of insulin degludec
and insulin degludec/liraglutide, which are in the product pipeline of Huisheng Biopharm,
to expedite the development of the Group’s pipeline of diabetes products. This will also
boost the growth of sales volumes further, enhance the Group’s comprehensive strength
and significantly improve its core competitiveness.

In April 2023, the patient enrollment for the phase Il clinical trial for the new
indication of Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets, a proton-pump inhibitor (PPI)
independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, for the treatment of reflux esophagitis
and its associated symptoms control in adults was completed. The phase Ill clinical
trial initiated by Xuanzhu Biopharm for Birociclib (a Class 1 innovative drug under
development) in combination with fulvestrant for the treatment of HR+/HER2- advanced
breast cancer that has progressed on previous endocrine therapy reached its primary
endpoint.

A "] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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In March 2023, XZP-KM501, a HER2/HER2 bispecific antibody ADC drug developed by
Xuanzhu Biopharm, obtained approval from the NMPA to initiate clinical trials for the
treatment of solid tumors with HER2 positive expression (including medium and low
expression). It was Xuanzhu Biopharm?’s first ADC drug to enter the clinical development
stage. In a pre-clinical head-to-head comparison with Enhertu® (DS-8201) in mouse
models of breast cancer, data show that XZP-KM501 is non-inferior to Enhertu® (DS-
8201), whose global sales in 2023 were approximately USD2.5 billion, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 98.4%. It is foreseeable that XZP-KM501 will
have huge market potential in the future. In the same month, the recombinant human
CD80 mutant — Fc fusion protein injection (product code: XZP-KM602) and selective
DNA Dependent Protein Kinase (DNA-PK) inhibitor (product code: XZP-6877 tablets)
developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm obtained approval from the NMPA to conduct clinical
trials for the treatment of advanced solid tumors. There is currently no drug for the
same target that has obtained NDA approval in the world, which highlights Xuanzhu
Biopharm’s transition from iterative innovation to a new stage of innovation at the
source.

In February 2023, Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”) and Shanghai
Vinnerna Biosciences Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement in relation to the cooperation
regarding the manufacturing and supply of Deuremidevir Hydrobromide Tablets (product
code: VV116/JTO01, trade name: Mindewei®), an anti-SARS-CoV-2 Class 1 innovative
drug.

In January 2023, our exclusive products including the Midazolam Oromucosal Solution
and two non-PVC solid-liquid dual chamber bag products were included in the National
Reimbursement Drug List (2022 Edition). Their inclusion in the National Reimbursement
Drug List will increase patients’ willingness to use the products and enhance their market
penetration in China, thus leading to a rapid increase in sales and a positive impact on
the Company’s performance.

In January 2023, the Group announced that Huisheng Biopharm had successfully
completed its Series A+ financing round that brought in RMB580 million, with a post-
investment valuation of RMB5.58 billion. The funds raised in this financing round
were mainly used to meet Huisheng Biopharm’s daily operational needs, including
moving products under development to the clinical stage, the purchase of production
equipment, and replenishing its operating working capital. The successful completion
of Series A and Series A+ financing rounds reflects not only investors’ recognition of
Huisheng Biopharm’s R&D strength and industrialization capabilities, but also their
confidence in and expectations for the value creation and broad market prospects of the
Company’s complete product pipeline in the area of diabetes and its complications.
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In response to the changes in the market, industry and policies, and to face
the challenges brought by the development, the Group, following a review
of its business layout and medium- and long-term strategic development
direction, intends to divest and dispose of some generic drugs that do not meet
performance expectations or do not meet long-term strategic development
objectives and other non-core pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses and assets.
Meanwhile, the Group intends to complete the potential disposal in stages, with
the specific scope and implementation details of the potential disposal to be
finalized depending on market conditions and negotiations with potential buyers.
Through the reorganization and integration of key businesses and the separation
of non-core businesses, the Group is able to focus more resources on two major
strategic segments, namely the medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals and
enhance the efficiency of resource allocation. In addition, these initiatives also
bring more clarity to the Group’s valuation system and fully demonstrate the long-
term value that the innovative drugs plus medical aesthetics business system can
bring to the Group after the disposal of the generics business, thus helping to
maximize shareholders’ value.

The modified sodium hyaluronate gel for injection (product name: Persnica™),
which is exclusively distributed by the Group, obtained Class Il medical device
registration certificate from the NMPA.

Meiyan Space entered into an exclusive distribution agreement in relation to
skin booster injection CELLBOOSTER® series products with SUISSELLE SA from
Switzerland, and obtained the exclusive distribution rights for the products in
mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Four skin booster injection
products of CELLBOOSTER® series, which is exclusively distributed by the Group.

Meiyan Space has signed an agreement with Bluepha Co., Ltd. on 19 January
2022, whereby the two parties will establish a joint venture to jointly develop
PHA microspheres and bio-manufacturing-based regenerative medical materials,
and the two parties will jointly complete the R&D, compliance declaration and
subsequent commercial promotion of the products.

Meiyan Space entered into an exclusive distribution agreement in relation to
SYLFIRM X™ (golden microneedle) product with South Korea VIOL Co., Ltd.,
and obtained the exclusive distribution rights for the products in mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, marking the first layout of the Group in the
optoelectronic equipment market was implemented.

A "] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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A total of 20 products independently developed by Meiyan Space obtained the
medical device registration certificate, including self-developed medical skin care
gel and medical skin repair gel, three self-developed recombinant type Ill collagen
gel accessories, three self-developed medical scar repair products, eight self-
developed gynecological dressing products and four self-developed medical skin
care dressing products.

Xuanzhu Biopharm has submitted an application for A-share listing to the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and received a notice of acceptance.

Fulvestrant injection introduced by Xuanzhu Biopharm was accepted by the
NMPA.

The IND application of phase Il clinical trials for the treatment by Xuanzhu
Biopharm’s self-developed Anaprazole Sodium Enteric Dissolve Tablets for new
indication of reflux esophagitis (RE) in adults and the control of its associated
symptoms (acid reflux, heartburn, retrosternal pain or discomfort, belching reflux,
etc.) has been accepted by the NMPA.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and Shanghai SPH New Asia Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("New Asia Pharmaceutical”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Pharma"”), reached an
agreement on exclusive license of active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs") and
formulations of two new anti-infection drugs, Benapenem and Plazomicin in the
Greater China Territory (including Mainland China, Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR
and Taiwan) (“Greater China Region”).

Xuanzhu Biopharm has entered into the cooperation agreement in relation to
combination therapies with CTTQ-Akeso (Shanghai) Biomed. Tech. Co., Ltd
("CTTQ-Akeso”), pursuant to which, both parties agreed to jointly carry out
exploration and experiments on the AXL inhibitor and the Penpulimab PD-1
monoclonal antibody of CTTQ-Akeso, with an aim of developing their application
of combination therapies for solid tumors.

A highly active and highly selective AXL inhibitor XZB-0004 (SLC-391) capsule
applied by Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully obtained the application of clinical
trials for the treatment of advanced solid tumors and hematological malignancies
and implied permission of the NMPA.
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HER2 double antibody XZP-KM257, a Class 1 macro molecules innovative drug
XZP-KM257 independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, was approved for
clinical trials.

Huisheng Biopharm successfully completed its Round A+ financing of RMB580
million and Round A financing of RMB500 million, with a post-investment
valuation of RMB5.58 billion.

The NDA of the fourth generation insulin degludec injection developed by
Huisheng Biopharm, was accepted by NMPA.

The NDA of Janagliflozin, an innovative patent drug for the treatment of diabetes
under Huisheng Biopharm, developed by Huisheng Biopharm has been accepted
by the NMPA.

The NDA of Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection and Insulin Aspart
50 Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm also have been accepted by the
NMPA.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. was included in the Hong Kong Stock
Connect list under the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect.

Five products including Octreotide Acetate Injection, Tenofovir Alafenamide
Fumarate Tablets, Fondaparinux Sodium Injection, Lacosamide Tablets, and
Metoprolol Succinate Sustained Release Tablets developed by the Group won the
bid of the seventh batch of national drug centralized procurement.

Tenofovir Fumarate Tablets (25 mg) and the antithrombotic drug Ticagrelor
Tablets (60 mg and 90 mg) developed by the Group have obtained the drug
registration approval issued by the NMPA.

2021

The Group has officially launched and sold its exclusive Korean botulinum toxin
product Letybo® 100U.

PLLA gel (product name: Karlian) (2ml/unit), which is independently R&D
and manufactured by the Group, has formally obtained the medical device

manufacturing license approval from the NMPA.

Acquisition of all equity interests in Genesis Biosystems, Inc. (“Genesis”).
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The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with Dongbang
Medical Co., Ltd. of South Korea (“Dongbang Medical”) to exclusively distribute
its two types of products, namely absorbable suture and incontinence sling kit, in
the People’s Republic of China (“China”).

Xuanzhu Biopharm, a holding subsidiary of the Group, completed a Series B
financing of over RMB600 million, led by Sunshine Life and followed by Efung
Capital, China Zhongji Investment, TJ Capital, SDIC Taikang, Hai Chuang Fund
of Funds, BOC Capital, Jinjlang Xuanhong, Shaanxi Financial Holding, Hainan
Wanxin Private Equity Fund Management, DNV Capital, HY Capital and other
renowned investment institutions.

The NDA for Anaprazole Sodium Enteric Dissolve Tablets has been accepted by
the NMPA.

Two indications of Birociclib, a Class 1 innovative drug for the treatment of breast
cancer, were approved by the NMPA for starting phase Ill clinical trials.

Xuanzhu Biopharm’s first product in the field of non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC),
XZP-3621, an innovative drug under development, has obtained approval for
clinical trials from the NMPA.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and HB Therapeutics, Inc. (the United States) (“HB") agreed
to cooperate to introduce the drug discovery and screening technology platform
from HB, work together to develop three novel molecular glue protein degraders
and obtain the future development and commercialization rights of the product
in the Greater China region.

Xuanzhu Biopharm, and WuXi XDC, a subsidiary of WuXi Biologics (Cayman) Inc.,
jointly announced that Beijing Xuanzhu Kangming Biological Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Kangming"), a large molecule biological drug platform, and
WuXi XDC, have reached a collaboration on the development and manufacturing
of an innovative oncology drug KM501, a bispecific antibody drug conjugate
("ADC").
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Xuanzhu Biopharm and SignalChem Lifesciences Corporation (“SignalChem”)
have entered into a cooperation and licensing agreement for the development
and commercialization interests of SLC-391, a highly potent and highly selective
AXL targeting inhibitor, in the Greater China region. The Group obtained the
exclusive research, development, manufacture and commercialization rights for
each indication of SLC-391 in the field of oncology in the Greater China region
(mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan).

Xuanzhu Biopharm’s independently R&D drug XZP-6019 was approved by the
NMPA to conduct clinical trials for indication of Non-alcoholic Fatty Liver Disease
(“NAFLD").

Fadanafil, a new independently R&D PDE-5 inhibitor by Xuanzhu Biopharm,
has obtained IND approval in relation to indications for Pulmonary Arterial
Hypertension (“PAH") for the treatment of adult arterial pulmonary hypertension,
so as to improve exercise ability and delay clinical deterioration.

XZP-5955, an independently R&D Class 1 new drug of Xuanzhu Biopharm has
received the notice for drug clinical trial approvals.

On 26 January 2021, the Group accelerated its integration in innovation layout,
and its subsidiary Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the acquisition of Beijing Combio
Pharmaceutical Inc. (“Combio Pharmaceutical”), an innovation-driven biological
company.

The diabetes drugs developed by Huisheng Biopharm, insulin degludec and insulin
aspart injection, has successfully obtained the approval for the conduction of
clinical trials from the NMPA.

Huisheng Biopharm entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with Porton
Pharma Solutions Ltd. (“Porton Pharma”). Huisheng Biopharm and Porton
Pharma will strategically cooperate in the therapeutic areas of diabetes and
related complications in relation to the development and supply of APIs and the
co-development and launch of related preparations.

The Group’s liraglutide project has completed its phase | clinical trials for the
treatment of type 2 diabetes and obesity, and obtained preliminary bioequivalence
results on pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics.
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HREBE
MILESTONES

2020

Commencement of Phase Ill clinical trial in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") for self-developed innovative patented drug “Anaprazole Sodium” and
inclusion of “Huineng®” into the National Reimbursement Drug List.

Acquisition of all interests and intellectual property rights of plazomicin, a new
generation of aminoglycoside antibiotics in the Greater China Region.

Capital injection by new investors into Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
(an associate of Sihuan Pharmaceutical) to accelerate capacity expansion.

Official release of the result of large scale clinical trials after the launch of
cinepazide maleate injection which takes stroke treatment into a new era with its
verified efficacy.

Discloseable transaction — subscription by investment funds under CMG-SDIC
Capital Co., Ltd. in Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Investment in Ascendum Capital Life Technology Fund Phase I.

Approval to launch the Group’s exclusive Korean botulinum toxin product
“Letybo®” in the PRC market.

2019

The first self-developed anti-diabetic innovative patented new drug janagliflozin
commenced Phase lll clinical trials in China.

The first company in China that has been granted drug registration approval
for “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for ceftazidime/sodium chloride
injection”, “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for cefodizime sodium/5%
glucose injection”, “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for cefodizime
sodium/sodium chloride injection”, and “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber
bag for cefuroxime sodium/sodium chloride injection”.

Acquired Phase | to Ill clinical trial approval for the third generation of EGFR
inhibitor XZP-5809.

Post-launch large-scale clinical trials of cinepazide maleate injection were
completed with efficacy verified.
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2018

o Three self-developed innovative drugs commenced Phase | clinical trials in China,
including selective CDK4/6 inhibitor birociclib, third-generation irreversible tyrosine
kinase inhibitor XZP-3621, and PDE-5 inhibitor fadanafil.

2017

o Acquired 100% equity interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Company
Limited (“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) which currently holds the drug
production approvals for monoammonium glycyrrhizinate and cysteine and
sodium chloride injection and floium ginkgo extract with the brand name
“Huineng” and tertram ethypyrazine sodium chloride injection with the brand
name “Mainuokang”.

o Established joint venture company (“JV"”) with Austria-based pharmaceutical
company CROMA-Pharma GmbH (“Croma-Pharma”), expanding into the
aesthetic medicine market in China.

o The Croma hyaluronic acid the Group distribute was launched on the market.

. The NMPA granted approval of Phase |-l clinical trials for “birociclib”, a self-
developed innovative patented new drug.

2016

o The NMPA granted approval for clinical trials of self-developed new drug
janagliflozin for diabetes treatment.

o The NMPA granted approval for Phase I/Il/lIl clinical trials of self-developed
innovative patent new drugs, fadanafil.

2015

o Acquired 39% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Ruiye”) to enrich and expand the Group’s product resources.

o Phase | clinical trial of Birociclib, the first self-developed innovative patented
oncology drug commenced in the U.S. The NMPA granted approval of Phase I/II/lll
clinical trials of pirotinib.
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2014

Signed exclusive distribution agreement with South Korean Hugel Inc. on
botulinum toxin and hyaluronic acid products.

The IND application of Birociclib was successfully submitted to the U.S. FDA and
the clinical trial approval was granted.

The application for clinical trial approval of janagliflozin (the self-developed
innovative anti-diabetic drug) was accepted by the NMPA.

Established cooperation with Chongqging Peg-Bio Biotechnology Co., Ltd for
development of insulin products.

2013

Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs anaprazole sodium.

2012

Acquired the remaining 40% equity interest in Shandong Xuanzhu Pharma Co.,
Ltd. which then became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

2011

Acquired lJilin Sihuan which owns three exclusive drug products and various
exclusive drug formulations mainly focused on CCV diseases.

Acquired 80% equity interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Changchun Xiangtong"”) which owns both the manufacturing facility and
production license of APIs.

2010

Listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises in the PRC
and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.
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“2023 Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovative
Enterprises”

The “2023 Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovative Enterprises” list selected by Healthcare
Executives has been released. Based on the “three dimensions and four indicators” selection system,
the “Top 100 Chinese Pharmaceutical Innovative Enterprises” are selected every year as the first camp
to represent China’s pharmaceutical innovation capabilities. They are a major force in the transformation
and upgrading of China’s pharmaceutical industry and the building of its competitiveness. They also
provide experience and benchmarks for the future generations to learn from. The fact that Sihuan
Pharmaceutical has been ranked in the first echelon of the list represents to a certain extent
that its comprehensive strength and competitive advantages in the innovative drug field have been
recognized by the market, and that it has potential for sustainable development and good investment
prospects.
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“Transformation Pioneer Enterprise of the Year 2023"

The 8th “Gelonghui ¢ Global Investment Carnival ® 2024" was held in Shenzhen from 20 to 22
December. In the annual outstanding company selection of Gelonghui’'s “Jinge Award”, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical won the “Transformation Pioneer Enterprise of the Year 2023” by virtue of
its innovative and transformative business strategy and its newly shaped two-wheel drive of
medical aesthetics and innovative drugs.

The “Transformation Pioneer Enterprise of the Year” award focuses on the enterprise’s adaptability
to dynamic environmental changes and its ability to achieve long-term sustainable and high-quality
development; the winner is also a leading enterprise that have truly created value and maintained
innovative vitality through transformation and have had a positive impact on industrial upgrading. The
award recognizes companies with outstanding financial performance, innovation and resilience, as well
as social and economic benefits. The final selection was made through quantitative data analysis and by
an expert panel.
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“Best Innovation Value Award of the Year”

On 14 December 2023, the Sixth Annual Investment Conference of Cailian Press, directed by Shanghai
United Media Group and organized by Cailian Press, kicked off in Shanghai. Sihuan Pharmaceutical
was awarded the “Best Innovation Value Award of the Year” for its innovative business
strategy.

In the announcement and award ceremony of the 2023 Cailian Press Most Valuable Leaders in
Capital Markets (Enterprise), Sihuan Pharmaceutical was awarded the “Best Innovation Value
Award of the Year” for its innovative business strategies. It demonstrates Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s
innovative awareness and achievements and level of innovation, and provides more possibilities for
the transformation of achievements. The “Best Innovation Value Award of the Year” highlights the
attention and recognition of the industry and investors, which is a great encouragement and motivation
to Sihuan Pharmaceutical.
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“Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company”,
"Best CFO”

On 6 December 2023, Sihuan Pharmaceutical (00460) was awarded the “Most Valuable
Pharmaceutical and Medical Company”, and Ms. Miao Guili, the Chief Financial Officer of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical, was awarded the “Best CFO” award at the “8th Zhitong Caijing Capital
Market Annual Conference and Listed Company Award Ceremony”.

The “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company” award celebrates the Hong Kong/United
Stated-listed pharmaceutical and medical companies with healthy corporate governance structure,
supreme industry position, excellent core businesses and continuous and stable value return for
investors. The “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company” award demonstrated the
attention and recognition of the industry and investors, which is a great encouragement and motivation
to Sihuan Pharmaceutical. We look forward to the Company’s further success and contribution to the
sustainable development and high-quality growth of the society.
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“Best ESG Award”, “Best Leader Award”

“Best ESG Award”; Ms. Miao Guili won the “Best Leader Award”

On 11 January 2024, Sihuan Pharmaceutical (00460.HK) won the “Best ESG Award”, and Ms.
Miao Guili, the Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
of Sihuan Pharmaceutical, won the “Best Leader Award” at the “Oriental Dawn” 2024 Listed
Companies Investor Relations Innovation Summit and the 7th China Excellent IR Annual
Conference and Awards Ceremony.

ESG is an investment philosophy that focuses on the environmental, social and governance performance
of the enterprises rather than their financial performance. Listed companies’ emphasis on ESG will have
a positive and significant impact on the companies, both in terms of short-term stock price and long-
term value. To a certain extent, ESG is the realization of a company’s values. This award is the capital
market’s recognition of Sihuan Pharmaceutical’'s ESG system construction, ESG information disclosure
and ESG communication practices, and is a great encouragement and spur to Sihuan Pharmaceutical.

[ESG St 58 |
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"ESG Pioneer Enterprise Award”

The 13th China Philanthropy Festival and the 2023 ESG Summit were held in Beijing. This summit
was organized by Syobserve.com, Gongyi Daily and the media, aiming to promote and commend the
development of social welfare in various industries, to advocate the implementation of ESG concepts
by enterprises, and to build a new future for sustainable development. At the ESG Summit, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical was awarded the “ESG Pioneer Enterprise Award” for the year 2023.

Winning this award again demonstrates the media’s recognition, affirmation and spur of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical’s ESG system construction, ESG information disclosure and ESG work practices in 2023.
In the future, Sihuan Pharmaceutical will continue to promote the Company’s ESG objectives in an in-
depth and steady manner, and continuously improve its ESG disclosure and management capabilities,
so that ESG work can truly empower the Company’s long-term development.
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“2023 China Medical Beauty Industry Award for Excellent
Enterprise”

In September 2023, “2023 China Medical Beauty Industry Ranking” was officially launched by National
Business Daily, NBD Think Tank, and Medical Aesthetics Industry Research, with Chengdu Tanmei Culture
Communication Co., Ltd. (BX &R & 3 XL 55 B IR 2 &) as the host and Chengdu Medical Aesthetics
Industry Association and Informa Markets (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. as the support units. After many rounds of
selection, Meiyan Space of Sihuan Pharmaceutical was awarded the “2023 China Medical Beauty
Industry Award for Excellent Enterprise” by virtue of its insightful brand strategic deployment
and the product strength brought by its excellent product matrix over the years.

The reason why Meiyan Space of Sihuan Pharmaceutical won the “2023 China Medical Beauty Industry
Award for Excellent Enterprise” is the accumulation and development of the popular and excellent
products of Meiyan Space of Sihuan Pharmaceutical — the botulinum toxin product and Persnica™, the
new hyaluronic acid product.

[FE+_EMRIES2023(1THE)FELMmEE ]
FECRSE+T_EKEEE 2023 IFEHEAT L MREEETMEBE2023(11X)¥E N

mARHE] o MIRBEXEAEMURER  BEHIZRAKLBERUYNRBIELBTHREEE @&
BENRGTERXENNRN  ERETRAANGAES -

”2023 Influential Brand Award (Industry) of 12th China
Finance Summit”

In the 12th China Finance Summit and Sustainable Business Conference 2023 organized by CFS, Meiyan
Space of Sihuan Pharmaceutical was awarded the “2023 Influential Brand Award (Industry)”. This
award proves that the economic community recognizes the brand value, brand strength and industry
influence of Meiyan Space of Sihuan Pharmaceutical, and also shows the comprehensive strength of the
Company.
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“Top 10 Most Growing Enterprises of Small Molecule
Innovative Drugs”

On 13 June 2023, the award ceremony of “2023 China Biomedical Technology Innovation Value List”
was held in Shanghai. Xuanzhu Biopharm was awarded the “Top 10 Most Growing Enterprises
of Small Molecule Innovative Drugs”.

The small molecule innovative drug list is based on the comprehensive judgment from various
dimensions such as enterprise strategy, core value, product, competition, team and commercialization,
etc.; the list is finalized after in-depth evaluations of the industry and enterprises, solicitation, return
visits and verification, special surveys, systematic research, and other review processes. The awardees
are all top-tier small molecule innovative drug developers with significant clinical value and leading R&D
progress in China.

This award demonstrates Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s continuous innovation, production capacity and scientific
research strength in the development of small molecule innovative drugs, and is a recognition of
Xuanzhu Biopharm’s innovation awareness, innovation level and innovation achievements. In the future,
Xuanzhu Biopharm will continue to enhance the Company’s global competitiveness and protect the
health of everyone!

[2023 B EmARLESE H 1005 |
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”2023 China Top 100 Companies with Comprehensive
Drug R&D Ability”

From 16 to 17 June 2023, the Conference on High Quality Development of Health Industry and the 8th
Summit for China Pharmaceutical R&D Innovation were held in Chongging. Xuanzhu Biopharm was
rated as one of the “2023 China Top 100 Companies with Comprehensive Drug R&D Ability”!

The list was made by Yaozh.com, the Expert Committee of Pharmaceutical R&D Strength Rankings,
and the Organizing Committee of 2023 Summit for China Pharmaceutical R&D Innovation, after
comprehensive statistical analysis of the R&D-related data such as the drug acceptance and approval
status of enterprises in 2022, R&D investment of pharmaceutical enterprises, clinical trials, patents, and
historical pharmaceutical R&D rankings, etc., so as to scientifically evaluate the current status of each
enterprise’s R&D and innovation capability. This honour demonstrates Xuanzhu Biopharm’s development
advantages in technological innovation, R&D investment, drug clinical trials, patents, etc., which are
fully recognized by the market.
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“Top 50 Scientific and Innovative Leaders of China's
Pharmaceutical Enterprises in 2023”

With its outstanding scientific and innovative capabilities and breakthrough pharmaceutical
R&D results, Xuanzhu Biopharm was honored as one of the “Top 50 Scientific and Innovative
Leaders of China’s Pharmaceutical Enterprises in 2023"”, and received widespread attention and
recognition from the industry and the public.

Xuanzhu Biopharm invests a massive amount of manpower and material resources in innovative R&D,
and constantly explores and develops new drug types and therapies. Through continuous exploration
and development of new drug types and therapies, Xuanzhu Biopharm provides patients with more and
better treatment options, and also makes significant contributions to the innovation and development
of China’s biopharmaceutical industry.

[2022 FHEBAEDE]
2023F 1 A EMEYKIDAREBHITHEME@HHTTRBEAERDCE|EE -
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”2022 Chinese Unicorn Companies”

In January 2023, Xuanzhu Biopharm was successfully selected as “Forbes China Unicorn Enterprises”
list by Forbes China.

From 19 to 20 June 2023, China (Suzhou) Unicorn Company Conference was successfully held.
Xuanzhu Biopharm was successfully selected in the “2022 Chinese Unicorn Companies” list.

Xuanzhu Biopharm has always been adhering to the “innovation-driven” path, and is committed
to the R&D, production and commercialization of Class 1 innovative drugs with core independent
intellectual property rights under the orientation of the unsatisfied clinical needs. This award reflects the
development advantages of Xuanzhu Biopharm in terms of technological innovation, team technology,
industrial model, growth potential, etc., which are fully recognized by the market. In the future,
Xuanzhu Biopharm will continue to utilize its advantages in technological innovation. Adhering to the
strategic concept of “promoting the development of new drugs in China and serving human health”,
Xuanzhu Biopharm will continue to enhance its competitiveness in the world with its roots in China and
protect the health of everyone!
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”2023 Top 100 Chinese Biopharmaceutical Front Runners
List —-Outstanding Leaders List”

Shanghai Center for Biomedicine Development, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Shanghai STVC Group,
Yiyun Tech, and Yicai jointly launched the “2023 Top 100 Chinese Healthcare Front-Runners List”,
hoping to convey to the public the latest state of the biopharmaceutical industry and its development
trend and to give a glimpse of the pulse of the times. There are three sub-lists under the overall list:
biopharmaceutical, medical devices and digital healthcare. Huisheng Biopharm was shortlisted in
the Biopharmaceutical Outstanding Leaders List.

The inclusion of this list reflects that Huisheng Biopharm’s outstanding leadership and influence have
been fully recognized by the market. In the future, Huisheng Biopharm will continue to provide diabetes
patients with a full range of integrated therapeutic solutions, making staying healthy easy.

Fﬁzgﬁzf:lba%‘*% TRER SRREEER EBHBEBHLEER
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“2023 Top 100 Beijing Manufacturing Enterprises, Top
100 High-end and Advanced Enterprises, and Top 100
Specialized, High-end and Innovation-driven Enterprises”

On 30 November 2023, “2023 Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Industry Chain and Supply Chain Conference and
Summit Forum of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Top 100 Enterprises and Beijing Top 100 Enterprises” was held
in Beijing. At the summit, China Enterprise Confederation, Beijing Enterprise Confederation and others
jointly released the “2023 Beijing Top 100 Enterprises” list. Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
a group member of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd., was honored the “2023 Top
100 Beijing Manufacturing Enterprises, Top 100 Beijing High-end and Advanced Enterprises,
and Top 100 Beijing Specialized, High-end and Innovation-driven Enterprises”.

The inclusion in the three top 100 lists is a full recognition of the contribution of Beijing Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. to the high-quality, high-speed and innovative development of the capital’s
economy by the China Enterprise Confederation and the Beijing Enterprise Confederation.

Under the unified leadership of the Sihuan Pharmaceutical Group, Beijing Sihuan has been
unswervingly carrying out the Group’s strategies and paying close attention to
implementation and pragmatic innovation, and has been rated as the “Beijing High-tech
Enterprise” for 19 consecutive years and the “Zhongguancun High-tech Enterprise” for 11
consecutive years.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—E-NEFE —ZE_FF B ZE-__F —E-=
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%®TxR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
REXE Operating results
Wz Revenue 2,878,318*  2,464,226* 3,038,391*  2,181,189¢ 1,860,539
EH Gross profit 2,289,331*# 1,914,449*% 2,430,488*# 1,487,581% 1,295,644
MR EFAERS Research and development expenses 598,952*# 729,157* 868,069** 936,581* 577,656
R, (E8) Operating profit/(loss) (2,406,225)** 787,125% 771,945%%  (1,830,727)* 161,698
BRATSTATE R, (B18)  Profit/(loss) before income tax (2,422,955)*  765,844¢ 496,013*  (2,122,778)" (161,260)
KRR NEMN Profit/(loss) attributable to
wFl (E18) owners of the Company (2,717,515)*# 502,569* 422,865*F  (1,949,590)" (54,017)
EEMR Asset status
BEE Total assets 12,571,436 13,043,926 14,495,623 12,140,551 11,535,430
RAREREEA Equity attributable to equity
FEEHE owners of the Company 9,606,684 9,190,342 8,284,148 4,736,998 4,432,130
watE Total liabilities 2,629,242 3,095,201 5,345,557 6,500,725 6,398,406
* R TR T _FH AR EAEEE * Due to the respective disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group in 2020 and 2022,

THEAR  AEBREOBERDRILEEET -
HEZZ-NF+ZA=+-BHLEFERER
ZEHF+ A=+ -BULEFENLERET

BE5 -

# BEFELEEBAR -

presented.

# Related to continuing operations only.

businesses of the subsidiaries were classified as discontinued operations. Comparative figures
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the year ended 31 December 2021 have been re-
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Ride the wind through the winter and usher in

a promising future

Forge ahead with the transformation towards
medical aesthetics and innovative drugs;
always do the difficult but right things gy

PREHET ERATTEE

Chairman and Executive Director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

HERABE

Dr. Che Fengsheng
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BHRETTE MG Z [ #E M ke - £
A BEEAOZRIENE-—FRAN SEE
WBHEER -THEZEEMAOTSER G
TRIFE E%EQ%&EJESZHE%ﬁ?ﬁEWE’UE%E
BUHNBENBRTENEEREESES

For China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry, 2023 was a year full of challenges
and opportunities. Guided by the national “innovation-driven” policy, the industry has
been gradually transforming from sales-driven to research and development (R&D)- and
innovation-driven. Chinese companies have also been stepping up their implementation
of the “going out” policy, which is set to kindle the global expansion of China’s
innovative drugs. In the past few years, although the medical insurance reform and the
economic downturn squeezed the industry’s overall revenue margins and room for profit
growth, China’s pharmaceutical manufacturing industry still has huge market potential.
In the post-pandemic era, the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry is embracing
new opportunities as well as facing new challenges. In the future, as population
ageing further deepens, the high-quality development of pharmaceuticals will go hand
in hand with a stronger market demand. In addition to innovative drugs, consumer
pharmaceutical and healthcare businesses, including medical aesthetics and new weight
loss drugs, will also flourish.
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In 2024, China’s light medical aesthetics industry witnessed an unprecedented explosive
growth, showing huge market potential and broad development prospects. The light
medical aesthetics industry has also gradually moved from the high-end luxury market
to the mass consumer market, as mentioned in a past open letter from the National
“Medical aesthetics services are changing from special services
In recent

Health Commission,
received by a small number of people to daily services for the general public.”
years, under the strong supervision of the industry, compliant products have gradually
replaced the market share of non-compliant products. Many leading companies in the
medical aesthetics industry chain, including Sihuan Pharmaceutical, have ridden the wind
through the winter and become a new force in the medical aesthetics industry.

FORGE AHEAD WITH TRANSFORMATION AND
INNOVATION, ADHERE TO OUR TWO-WHEEL
DRIVE STRATEGY OF “MEDICAL AESTHETICS +
INNOVATIVE DRUGS”

In 2023, we adhered to our two-wheel drive strategy of “medical aesthetics + innovative
drugs”, forged ahead with transformation and innovation, and achieved remarkable
results. These include:

Benefitting from the rapid recovery of domestic consumption of medical aesthetics, our
medical aesthetics platform Meiyan Space successfully achieved its sales upgrade to
version 3.0 and recorded a doubling of sales revenue from medical aesthetics. A number
of strategic initiatives achieved phased success, thus further enhancing its capabilities
as an international medical aesthetics platform integrating R&D, production and sales
with a full product matrix that covers the life-cycle needs of aesthetics seekers. We have
successfully established a “one-stop” new medical aesthetics platform, and are dedicated
to building a leading Chinese medical aesthetics company with full product coverage by
leveraging the rigour and innovation characteristic of a pharmaceutical company through
globalized layout and localized production, comprehensive and professional medical
aesthetics product coverage, strong product R&D and registration capabilities as well as
diversified marketing channel ability. During the Year, Meiyan Space opened up the 3.0
era of fine-tuned medical aesthetics operations, comprehensively strengthened business
cooperation with leading group hospitals and regional leading agents, and achieved full
coverage of 34 provincial-level administrative regions in China. At the same time, Meiyan
Space strengthened the precise coverage and refined services for medical aesthetic
institutions through multiple multi-dimensional national and regional marketing and
medical activities. At present, the sales channels of Meiyan Space have covered more
than 350 cities and more than 4,700 medical aesthetics institutions across the country,
with a coverage rate of 100% for the top 500 medical aesthetics institutions. Meiyan
Space has more than 40 medical aesthetics products on the market and under research,
covering the needs of beauty seekers throughout their life cycle. Botulinum toxin Letybo®
and Hyaluronic acid Persnica™, which are currently available for sale, have been beloved
and recognized by many medical aesthetics institutions and consumers.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm, which was meticulously incubated by the Group to become
China’s leading independently-developed novel drug platform that integrates pre-clinical
development, clinical development, registration, manufacture and sales, has made
positive progress on product R&D and NDA during the period. One of these products
was Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets (trade name: Anjiuwei®), as China‘s
first independently developed PPI inhibitor Class 1 innovative drug with independent
intellectual property rights, which obtained market approval from the NMPA in June
2023, and was successfully included in the National Basic Medical Insurance in the
same year. Meanwhile, Xuanzhu Biopharm continued to make breakthroughs and seek
innovation, by advancing three globally leading innovative drugs to the clinical stage and
actively exploring the “global expansion” strategy. During the Year, due to outstanding
R&D achievements, Xuanzhu has won multiple honors, including “Forbes China Unicorn
Enterprises” “2023 China Biopharmaceutical Science & Technology Innovation Value List
— Top 10 Most Promising Small Molecule Innovative Drug Enterprises” “2023 China Top
100 Companies with Comprehensive Drug R&D Ability” “2023 China Pharmaceutical
Industry Innovation Leader Enterprises Top 50" and “2023 Deloitte China Healthcare
Tomorrow Star”.

Huisheng Biopharm, a biomedical company under the Group that focuses on the
therapeutic areas of diabetes and its complications, made positive progress on product
R&D and NDA, thus promoting the rapid development and expansion of the Group’s
biopharmaceutical business. During the year, Huisheng Biopharm obtained the drug
registration approvals of 7 drugs, including Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30
Injection and Insulin Aspart 50 Injection. Moreover, the Company has submitted the
NDA of 5 drugs, including Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection. In 2024, the
class 1 innovative drug SGLT-2 inhibitor Proline Ganagliflozin tablets (trade name:
Huiyoujing®) developed by Huisheng Biopharm for the treatment of type 2 diabetes also
obtained NDA approval. Huisheng Biopharm has laid out both glucose-lowering and
weight-loss indications on the GLP-1 receptor agonist product Semaglutide Injection,
the world’s most popular weight loss drug. Currently, the clinical phase Ill of Huisheng
Biopharm's Semaglutide for glucose-lowering indication is in progress, and the weight
loss indication is currently in the pre-clinical stage. It is expected to file for IND in the
second half of this year.

Meanwhile, the Group’s generic pharmaceutical business continued to advance steadily.
During the year, a total of 13 generic pharmaceutical products were granted drug
registration approvals by the NMPA, including Dopamine Hydrochloride Injection,
Azithromycin for Suspension and Fluconazole and Sodium Chloride Injection. In addition,
in order to accelerate the upgrade of its pharmaceutical business to innovative drugs,
the Group continues to cut back and is in the process of divesting and disposing of its
non-core pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses and assets, with a number of projects
currently underway. The Group continued to consolidate and strengthen its three core
competencies of “registration + production + sales”, thus building a solid “moat” for
the Company.
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PERSEVERANCE WILL PAY OFF: ALWAYS DO THE
DIFFICULT BUT RIGHT THINGS; CONTINUE TO
PLAY THE LONG GAME

In 2024, we will focus our management on the high-growth field of medical aesthetics
and the high-value fields of innovative drugs and biopharmaceuticals. We are committed
to greatly enhancing the growth of both revenue and profit from our medical aesthetics
business, expediting the NDA of innovative drugs and achieving the product iteration
of generic drugs by innovative drugs. We will strive to do less but more meaningful
tasks, accelerating the optimization and integration of the generic drug business. We
will adhere to our people-oriented philosophy and continue to foster a more diversified
and international talent pool for the innovation, transformation and upgrades of the
Company.

Perseverance will pay off. Our task is huge, but | firmly believe that we will achieve
success, as long as we persist in doing difficult but right things, adhere to our two-
wheel drive development strategy of “medical aesthetics + innovative drugs”, continue
to take action and strive to improve the Company’s cash flow generation ability, with
the creation of better investment returns for shareholders and investors who trust and
support us as the core goal of the Company’s development, and with the protection of

human health and a better life as our own responsibility.

Here | wish you all a most healthy and prosperous New Year!

BHS ﬂ' Che Fengsheng

VIR B8 5 R B B R 2 Al £ S Chairman of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
_7_@¢ Pty JANE 28 March 2024
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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (Hong Kong Stock Code:
00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical company led
and driven by innovation, with an independent and leading R&D technology platform,
a rich global product pipeline, strong product registration capability, a full dosage form
production platform with high efficiency and low cost and a mature and excellent
sales system. Adhering to the overall strategic objective of “full promotion of a two-
wheel drive strategy of its medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical businesses”,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical endeavours to build itself into a leading medical aesthetics and
biopharmaceutical company in China.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2023, global economic growth slowed down, while interest-rate hikes and high
inflationary pressures continued. The pandemic was no longer the main factor
constraining economic growth, but geopolitical tensions, fueled by conflicts, led to
stronger protectionism and weaker cross-border capital flows. As a result, geoeconomic
fragmentation continued to pose challenges to the pace of global economic growth.

During the Year, China’s consumer market saw a significant downgrade. Declines
in commodity prices, consumers becoming more rational in consumption and other
changes show that the structure of China’s consumer market has begun to adjust
itself, and the trend of consumption upgrade has begun to slow down. The domestic
consumer market of medical aesthetics showed the same trend during the Year, in stark
contrast to the explosive phase of brutal growth in the previous year. After a phase
of stringent regulation that saw multidepartment and comprehensive controls, with
the increasing supply of high-quality medical aesthetics products, the popularization
of medical aesthetics knowledge and the changing consumption patterns, minimally
invasive medical aesthetics and cost-effectiveness have become consumers’ top priorities.
In the long term, with the continuing rise in the penetration rate of medical aesthetics
and the ongoing impacts of market education, technological upgrades, the increasing
consumption in lower-tier cities and other factors, leading providers of medical aesthetics
will continue to flourish.

During the Year, China’s pharmaceutical and healthcare industry saw plenty of
challenges and opportunities. Guided by the national “innovation-driven” policy, the
industry is gradually transforming from sales-driven to R&D- and innovation-driven. In
recent years, the NMPA of China has issued a series of new policies and regulations for
managing and initiating the clinical trials of innovative drugs and for their NDA review
and approval. These policies and regulations have encouraged and standardized the
R&D of innovative drugs, expedited their NDA approval, and will help products with a
fast R&D cycle and high clinical value stand out. After more than a decade of efforts, the
R&D of innovative drugs in China has begun to pay off, especially in the fields of ADC,
GLP-1 and bispecific antibodies. We can see that, during the Year, many new drugs
made progress on their R&D and domestic NDA. Meanwhile, Chinese companies are
stepping up the implementation of their “going out” strategy. China’s innovative drugs
are gradually making breakthroughs in their overseas authorization and NDA, which will
facilitate the global expansion of China’s innovative drugs.

In recent years, the medical reform focusing on the “three-medical linkage” of medical
insurance, medicine, and medical care has been in full sway. Although volume-based
purchasing, the two-invoice system and other policies, together with the economic
downturn, have squeezed the industry’s overall revenue margins and room for profit
growth, relevant policies have focused on the supply side to comprehensively guide
and standardize the development of the industry, from drug R&D to NDA review, from
rational drug use to quality supervision and other aspects, and will continue to guide
and support the development of the industry. China’s pharmaceutical manufacturing
industry has huge market potential. In the future, as population ageing further deepens,
high-quality pharmaceutical development will certainly go hand in hand with a stronger
market demand. In addition to innovative drugs, consumer pharmaceutical and
healthcare businesses will also flourish in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS UPDATE 2023

During the Year, the Group adhered to its two-wheel drive strategy of “medical
aesthetics+innovative drugs”, forged ahead with innovation, transformation and
upgrades, and achieved remarkable results. During the Year, our pharmaceutical
business achieved phased results in R&D and clinical registration progress for a number
of products, including one innovative drug product and three biopharmaceutical
products that received NDA approvals. Sales of our medical aesthetics business made
positive progress, with sales revenue rebounding significantly. As our businesses continue
to move forward, the Company has further consolidated its strategic goal of building
a leading medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical company in China through the full
implementation of its two-wheel drive strategy.

1. Benefitting from the rapid recovery of domestic
consumption of medical aesthetics, the Group’s medical
aesthetics platform Meiyan Space successfully achieved
its sales upgrade to version 3.0 and recorded a significant
rebound in sales revenue from medical aesthetics. A
number of strategic initiatives achieved phased success.

During the Year, through the business upgrade and development of its 3.0
marketing version, the Group’s medical aesthetics platform Meiyan Space
achieved a significant rebound in sales revenue from medical aesthetics, and
further strengthened its capabilities as an international medical aesthetics platform
integrating R&D, production and sales. During the Year, Meiyan Space opened
up the 3.0 era of its fine-tuned medical aesthetics operations, comprehensively
strengthened its cooperation with leading hospital groups and regional
leading institutions, increased its number of agents in unexplored regions, and
achieved full coverage of the 34 provincial-level administrative regions in China.
Meanwhile, Meiyan Space carried out multi-pronged activities involving products,
livestreaming, operations, and medical exchanges to enhance its targeted
coverage of multi-level personnel including physicians, operators, consultants,
marketers and managers. As at 29 February 2024, the sales channels of Meiyan
Space covered accumulated over 350 cities in China and more than 4,700 medical
aesthetics institutions, with a coverage rate of 100% for the top 500 medical
aesthetics institutions. At present, Meiyan Space has more than 40 medical
aesthetics products that have received NDA approvals or are under development,
basically completing the full life-cycle management for aesthetics seekers. Among
these products, botulinum toxin Letybo® and hyaluronic acid Persnica™, which
have received NDA approvals, have been recognized and well received by medical
aesthetics institutions and consumers.
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During the Year, with the help of many efficient and successful marketing
activities and strategies, Meiyan Space achieved a substantial improvement and
leap in sales volume. During the Year, Meiyan Space won the “Outstanding
Enterprise Award of the 2023 Chinese Medical Aesthetics Industry Overall Rating
List” and the 2023 (Industry) Influential Brand Award at the CFS 12th Financial
Summit and 2023 Sustainable Business Conference. Botulinum toxin Letybo® won
the Botulinum Toxin Brand of the Year Award at “the 3rd Spotlight Awards”.
Meiyan Space also won the 2022-2023 Elite Brand Partner Award from the
Chinese Association of Plastics and Aesthetics (“CAPA"”) and the Chinese Non-
government Medical Institutions Association. It was also named the honorary
title of partner in CAPA's “Scan QR Code to Verify Authenticity” Industry Self-
discipline Activity. Meiyan Space has used its strength to gain the industry’s
recognition of its corporate brand value, brand strength and industry influence, as
well as demonstrating its comprehensive strength.

The R&D of the Group’s innovative drug business sped up,
thus accelerating its upgrade from Bio-tech to Bio-pharma,
with many independently developed products achieving
phased positive progress.

Xuanzhu Biopharm, which was meticulously incubated by the Group to become
China’s leading independently developed novel drug platform that integrates pre-
clinical development, clinical development, registration, manufacture and sales,
has made positive progress on product R&D and NDA during the Year, thus
promoting the rapid development and expansion of the Group’s innovative drug
business.

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm expedited the R&D progress of multiple
products, with several products making substantial progress. One of them was
Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets (trade name: Anjiuwei®), China’s
first independently developed proton pump inhibitor (“PPI”) Class 1 innovative
drug with independent intellectual property rights, which obtained drug market
approval from the NMPA in June 2023, and was successfully included in the
National Reimbursement Drug List in the same year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the field of oncology, two indications have been submitted for NDA approval
and accepted. They are Birociclib in combination with Fulvestrant for the
treatment of hormone receptor-positive (HR+)/human epidermal growth factor
receptor 2-negative (HER2-) (“HR+/HER2-") advanced breast cancer patients
with disease progression following previous endocrine therapy, and Birociclib
monotherapy for the treatment of HR+/HER2- advanced breast cancer patients
with disease progression after multiple-line treatment (including endocrine therapy
and chemotherapy). The clinical research results of Birociclib monotherapy were
selected by both the 2023 American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Annual
Meeting and the 2023 European Society for Medical Oncology (ESMO) Congress
for poster presentation. With its clinical value recognized by authoritative
academic institutions, Birociclib is potentially the best product in class. Moreover,
the phase Il clinical study of Birociclib in combination with aromatase inhibitor
(Al) for the initial endocrine therapy of patients with HR+/HER2- advanced breast
cancer is progressing smoothly. The indication of Birociclib monotherapy or in
combination with Abiraterone Acetate and Prednisolone for the treatment of
the metastatic prostate cancer has also received phase Il clinical trial approval,
which will be initiated soon. XZP-3621 for the initial treatment of ALK+ advanced
non-small-cell lung cancer (NSCLC) patients has achieved phased results and it is
expected to submit NDA in 2024.

Meanwhile, Xuanzhu Biopharm continued to make breakthroughs and seek
innovation, by advancing three globally leading innovative drugs to the clinical
stage. These drugs include XZP-KM501, an HER2 bispecific antibody ADC that
shows excellent effects on patients with both HER2 high expression and low
expression; XZP-6877, a DNA-PK inhibitor that increases the sensitivity of cancer
cells to radiotherapy and chemotherapy and serves the purpose of inhibiting
cancer cell proliferation and has broad market prospects; and XZP-KM602, a
CD80 fusion protein drug and a new generation of tumor immunology drug that
has a broad-spectrum anti-tumor effect. Domestic clinical trials for XZP-KM602
have already been initiated. Actively exploring the “global expansion” strategy,
Xuanzhu Biopharm obtained IND (Investigational New Drug) approval for XZP-
KM602 from the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) in September
2023.

Xuanzhu Biopharm always adheres to independent R&D and continues to output
achievements, which have been recognized by the industry. During the Year,
Xuanzhu won many honors, including “Forbes’ China Unicorn Companies”,
“2023 China Biopharmaceutical Science & Technology Innovation Value List —
Top 10 Most Promising Small Molecule Innovative Drug Companies”, “2023
China Top 100 Companies with Comprehensive Drug R&D Ability”, “2023
China Pharmaceutical Industry Innovation Leader Enterprises Top 50" and “2023
Deloitte China Healthcare Tomorrow Star”.
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3.

Many biologics and generic drugs received NDA approval,
which will become a stable “cash cow” business, continue
to contribute a stable source of income to the Group,
facilitate its rapid transformation and upgrades, and help it
to maintain a stable financial position.

Huisheng Biopharm, carefully incubated by the Group to become a leading
biopharmaceutical company with full product coverage in the therapeutic areas
of diabetes and its complications, made positive progress on product R&D and
NDA, thus promoting the rapid development and expansion of the Group’s
biopharmaceutical business. During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm obtained
the drug registration approvals of 7 drugs, including Insulin Aspart Injection,
Insulin Aspart 30 Injection, Insulin Aspart 50 Injection, Mecobalamin Tablets,
Mecobalamin Injection, Thioctic Acid Injection and Sitagliptin Tablets. Moreover, it
has submitted the NDA of 5 drugs, including Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart
Injection.

The Group’s generic pharmaceutical business continued to advance steadily.
During the Year, a total of 13 generic pharmaceutical products were granted drug
registration approvals by the NMPA, including Dopamine Hydrochloride Injection,
Azithromycin for Suspension and Fluconazole and Sodium Chloride Injection.
In addition, 5 APIs passed the technical evaluation carried out by the Centre for
Drug Evaluation (CDE) of the PRC, while the result of their joint evaluation with
preparations was “A”. These include blockbuster products such as Clopidogrel
Hydrogen Sulphate Tablets, Sofosbuvir and Dabigatran Etexilate, which are in
huge demand for terminal preparations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is gradually divesting and transferring

some of its generic pharmaceutical and other non-core
pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses and assets that do
not fit in with its long-term strategic goals.

As the pharmaceutical industry continued to be affected by the pandemic and
policy changes, the Group continued to carry out organizational restructuring
adjustments during the Year in order to fully implement its two-wheel drive
strategy and accelerate the upgrade of its pharmaceutical business to innovative
drugs. The Group's generic pharmaceutical segment is in the process of divesting
and transferring some of its generic pharmaceutical and other non-core
pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses and assets that do not fit in with its long-
term strategic goals. A number of projects are currently underway.

The Group continued to consolidate and strengthen its
three core competencies of “registration + production +
sales”, thus building a solid “moat” for the Company.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had more than 40 medical
aesthetic products and more than 60 innovative biopharmaceutical products in
the pipeline. It also boasts three core competencies of registration, production
and sales, which can facilitate and accelerate the implementation and
commercialization of high-quality product pipelines of the medical aesthetics
and pharmaceutical segments. The Group’s quick registration ability enabled it
to become the first company to bring Korean botulinum toxin into the Chinese
market and to complete the registration of many independently developed
products in very short periods of time. Besides, the Group has highly efficient and
low-cost production platforms, which help to reduce costs and increase efficiency,
and achieve rapid industrialization development. In addition, the Group also
has market-recognized medical academic marketing abilities. On a nationwide
professional and efficient academic marketing platform, the professional
marketing team and business sales network of the Group are able to promote the
continuously rapid penetration of existing products, as well as endowing newly
launched products with strong “monetization” ability.
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ANNUAL RESULTS UPDATE

During the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately RMB1,860.5
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 14.7% as compared with
a total revenue of RMB2,181.2 million for the same period in 2022.

Among the changes in revenue, the medical aesthetics segment achieved a revenue of
approximately RMB449.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
200.3%. It was mainly because, with the complete easing of pandemic controls in China
and the gradual recovery of consumer demand, the Group’s medical aesthetics platform
Meiyan Space achieved phased success in clearing its channel inventory, achieving
strategic cooperation with several medical aesthetics institutions and actively promoting
the 3.0 version upgrade of its marketing strategy, thus recording a significant rebound in
sales revenue from medical aesthetics.

The generic medicine segment achieved a revenue of approximately RMB1,398.8 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 29.0%, mainly attributable to
the impact of the price reduction as a result of centralized procurement and the decline
in prices and sales volumes of certain generic drugs as a result of certain products being
newly included in the key monitoring catalogue.

Innovative drugs and other drugs achieved a revenue of approximately RMB11.8 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 80.6%, mainly attributable to the divestment of
certain APl companies (including Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd.) of the Group at the end
of 2022, which no longer generated revenue to the APl segment in the Year.

The Group continued to invest hugely in R&D to create a pipeline of over 100 medical
aesthetics and biopharmaceutical products, rapidly promote the R&D and registration
progress of the Group's product pipeline, accelerate the industrialization of its
products and gradually achieve value amplification. During the Year, the R&D expenses
amounted to approximately RMB577.7 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
38.3%. This was mainly due to the successive completion of phase Il clinical trials for
several of the Group’s independently developed products (including innovative drugs,
biopharmaceutical drugs and generic drugs), some of which NDA applications were
submitted or NDA approvals were obtained by the end of 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Given the above, the Group recorded a loss for the year from continuing operations of
approximately RMB257.7 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 88.9%. This
was mainly due to the fact that the Group recorded impairment losses on non-current
assets and impairment losses on investments accounted for using the equity method of
approximately RMB1.7 billion in 2022. In addition, the Group has forged ahead with an
innovative transformation towards medical aesthetics and innovative biopharmaceutical
businesses in recent years, and continues to invest hugely in R&D every year. This is
compounded with the annual decline in revenue and profits of the generic medicine
segment due to changes in industry policies.

During the Year, the loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB54.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 97.2% in loss.
The loss for the Year was mainly the net result of the profitable operation of the Group’s
medical aesthetics business and generic medicine business segments and the loss of
the innovative drug business segment of the Group (mainly Xuanzhu Biopharm and
Huisheng Biopharm) for which considerable annually R&D were incurred.

The Group continued to maintain a stable financial position. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents plus wealth management products, pledged
deposits and time deposits amounted to approximately RMB4,610.5 million in total. The
total amount of cash and cash equivalents plus wealth management products, pledged
deposits and time deposits, net of interest-bearing bank borrowings, was approximately
RMB3,476.7 million. The Group's borrowings to equity ratio (i.e. a percentage of bank
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 25.6%.
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BUSINESS REVIEW OF EACH SEGMENT DURING
THE YEAR

1.

Medical Aesthetics Business Segment: Sales rebound with
a lighter footprint to become a new growth driver for the
Group

In 2023, the Group’s medical aesthetics platform Meiyan Space, through its
3.0 marketing version of business upgrades and development, as well as the
optimization of its marketing strategy of “direct sales + agents”, comprehensively
strengthened its cooperation with leading hospital groups and regional leading
institutions, increased the number of its agents in unexplored regions, and
achieved full coverage of 34 provincial-level administrative regions in China. It
also achieved targeted coverage of multi-level personnel in the medical aesthetics
industry (including physicians, operators, consultants, marketers and managers)
through a series of high-quality marketing activities, which included the “Le
Young Club” series of activities (the product-focused “Le Young Club Contour
Season”, the training-focused “Le Young Club Super Operator Practical Class”
and the marketing-focused “Le Young Club Livestreaming Season”), promotional
activities to support the CAPA as well as the first AMWC Young Physician Medical
Research Elite Competition. During the Year, the Group’s medical aesthetics
business segment achieved phased success in its upgrades and development,
with sales revenue rebounding significantly and becoming the second curve of
the Group's revenue growth. During the Year, the revenue from the medical
aesthetics business segment was RMB449.9 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 200.3%.

Meiyan Space is a medical aesthetics platform and company carefully incubated
by the Group. Focusing on the fast-growing but low-penetration Chinese medical
aesthetics market that is set to experience explosive growth, Meiyan Space has
successfully established a “one-stop” new medical aesthetics platform in China,
and is dedicated to building a leading Chinese medical aesthetics company with
full product coverage by leveraging the rigour and innovation characteristic of
a pharmaceutical company through globalized layout and localized production,
comprehensive and professional medical aesthetics product coverage, strong
product R&D and registration capabilities as well as diversified marketing channel
ability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With a forward-looking approach in the field of medical aesthetics, the Group
entered into an exclusive distribution agreement in China with Hugel, Inc., a
leading biomedical company in South Korea, in relation to botulinum toxin
Letybo® and hyaluronic acid Persnica™ in 2014. Both products have been highly
recognized by medical aesthetics institutions and consumers in the market.
After years of development and through its “independent research + BD”
dual engine drivers, Meiyan Space has built a full product matrix that covers
the complete life-cycle needs of aesthetics seekers, including filling, shaping,
supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic devices, body sculpturing, skin care
and other high-quality medical aesthetics products. Meiyan Space is equipped
with strong independent R&D and technology transformation capabilities, and
its current R&D pipeline has more than ten class Il and more than twenty class |l
independently developed medical aesthetics products. Besides, Meiyan Space has
established the Meiyan Laboratory in Los Angeles, the United States, to introduce
innovative technology and carry out independent R&D for new generations of
medical aesthetics products and biomaterial, while it carries out technology
transformation and manufacture in China. Empowered by the global resources of
the Group, Meiyan Space has strong product registration, manufacture and sales
capabilities and is able to accelerate the launch of new products. Meiyan Space
has completed the construction of two domestic manufacture bases with a gross
floor area of 16,000 square meters. 7 production lines have been planned, which
will be equipped with an optimized quality management system and thus able to
implement effective risk management during the whole life cycle of products.

On the sales side, Meiyan Space comprehensively optimized its sales strategy,
achieved its 3.0 marketing version of business upgrades and development,
comprehensively strengthened its cooperation with leading hospital groups and
regional leading institutions, increased its number of agents in unexplored regions,
and achieved full coverage of the 34 provincial-level administrative regions in
China. By the end of the year, Meiyan Space completed the signing of annual
strategic cooperation agreements with 59 medical aesthetics chain groups and 40
regional core institutions. These strategic cooperation agreements cover a total
of 680 core hospitals in China, giving full play to Botulinum Toxin Letybo® in core
regions and leading institutions. In terms of breadth, Meiyan Space simultaneously
launched the Spark Plan, which makes full use of the ample manpower resources
of its agents to help Meiyan Space’s direct sales team to provide comprehensive
services to small- and medium-sized medical aesthetics institutions. By the end
of the year, the agent teams covered a total of nearly 2,300 small- and medium-
sized medical aesthetics institutions.
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With the full implementation of the marketing strategy of “direct sales +
distribution”, Meiyan Space strengthened its agent management during the Year.
With the launch of hyaluronic acid Persnica™, the number of our agent teams
increased to more than 20, and the number of overall agent team members
increased from 260 to nearly 450. With the expansion of the agent teams, the
sales volume of the agent teams achieved a year-on-year increase of 103%. At
the same time, Meiyan Space established direct sales teams in key areas including
Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Henan and Xinjiang during the Year. Most of
them are from Allergan, Galderma and Johnson & Johnson and other leading
multinational or domestic medical aesthetics and pharmaceutical companies,
where they held key marketing and training positions, with more than 10 years
of experience in the industry. In addition, Meiyan Space increased its market
investment in its directly operated regions, resulting in a year-on-year 140%
increase in terminal sales to institutions in its directly operated regions. As at 29
February 2024, its sales network covered more than 350 cities in China and more
than 4,700 medical aesthetics institutions, with a coverage rate of 100% for the
top 500 medical aesthetics institutions.

On the market side, Meiyan Space adhered to its philosophy of “born for beauty”
and embarked on a new journey in search of beauty, proactively promoting a slew
of marketing activities (including but not limited to the following):

o In the first quarter, the “True Beauty, Lebao Natural” Chinese Medical
Aesthetics ® Letybo® genuine products verification event held by Meiyan
Space came to a successful conclusion. Lasting 12 months and covering
30 cities and more than 50 medical aesthetics institutions, the event
popularized knowledge about genuine products and their verification,
provided training sessions on professional clinical techniques, and promoted
the concept of “three regularities”. The event received positive responses
from many domestic medical aesthetic companies and medical institutions,
achieved good results and received unanimous praise from the industry.
Meiyan Space also joined hands with Hugel Inc. from South Korea and
the CAPA to launch the first “Promotion and Implementation Activity for
the Practice of Medical Aesthetics Institutions in accordance with the Law
plus the Information Disclosure of China’s Medical Aesthetics Industry” to
jointly promote the regularization process of medical aesthetics, and discuss
the regularized development of the medical aesthetics industry in the
future. Meiyan Space was named partner in the “Scan QR Code to Verify
Authenticity” Industry Self-discipline Activity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Meanwhile, the hyaluronic acid Persnica™ were debuted, and quickly
reached 50 leading institutions in China. Their superior product quality and
the well-planned marketing strategies led to the rapid sales of hyaluronic
acid Persnica™, which have made a splash in the domestic medical
aesthetics market in respect of the reputation and influence of the brand,
thus laying a solid foundation for quickly seizing market share.

In the second quarter, Meiyan Space successfully held the second
Letybo® Cup Super Operator Challenge, creating the first professional
systematic learning platform for Chinese medical aesthetics operators.
As the first professional medical aesthetics competition platform in the
industry specifically created for operators, this Super Operator Challenge
has attracted the participation of many top domestic medical aesthetics
institutions. During the event, 81 institutions, including MYLIKE, YESTAR,
LANCY, BEAUCARE CLINICS (BCC) and AIST shared their Letybo® value
growth plan. In terms of product management, the products of Meiyan
Space are regarded as the first stop for institution-level “cost reduction and
efficiency improvement”; moreover, in terms of customer management,
“Meiyan Space Dual-specification Botulinum Toxin Product +" has become
a must-have and versatile item with high satisfaction, high coverage
and high repurchase rate. This professional competition empowered
organizational operations through essential logic, used the small body
of the product to leverage the organization’s hidden high profits, create
great value, and help organizations achieve the transformation from rough
platform operations to sophisticated product operations.
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In the second half of 2023, Meiyan Space launched a series of “Le Young
Club™ activities, including the product-focused “Le Young Club Contour
Season”, the training-focused “Le Young Club Super Operator Practical
Class” and the marketing-focused “Le Young Club Livestreaming Season”.
As a series of Letybo® member IP activities, Le Young Club activities have
attracted hundreds of institutions across China to participate since their
launch, covering more than 30,000 Letybo® members and aesthetics
seekers across China and helping institutions achieve refined management
of aesthetics seekers. “Le Young Club Contour Season” focused on
the botulinum toxin product of Meiyan Space. By accurately positioning
the product indications and using the attributes, differences, price and
other elements of the product, it locked in the core customer groups and
established an operating system that can convert mid-end customers,
achieve growth in institutional operations and meet the diverse needs of
customers while complying with policies and regulations, thus providing
institutions and aesthetics seekers with more diversified bonus activities and
choices. After the announcement of the “Le Young Club Contour Season”
activity, 120 organizations from more than 20 cities including Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu, Hangzhou, Shenzhen, Qingdao and
Wuhan quickly joined in. Through the “Le Young Club Contour Season”
activity system, refined management of customer groups and standardized
operations of product organizations were achieved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In October, the skills improvement platform “Le Young Club Super Operator
Practical Class” established by Meiyan Space was successively launched in
seven cities, namely Shanghai, Beijing, Guangzhou, Hangzhou, Chongging,
Xi'an and Shenzhen. With specially invited lecturers touring the country to
teach classes, the event brought unique and practical operational courses
and sharing to institutions in these cities. The course combined the market
development and compliance trends of the medical aesthetics industry,
starting from the product characteristics and aesthetic design concepts
of the botulinum toxin Letybo® and the hyaluronic acid Persnica™ under
Meiyan Space, and broke down in detail how to implement the product
performance growth model, use mature operating tools and methods, and
use refined services and differentiated product packaging to create the
idea of “Twin Stars of Letybo®and Persnica™" as the hot-selling products.
Intending to truly help institutions get through their last mile of operational
growth, Meiyan Space will continue to empower medical and aesthetics
institutions in the future. While providing high-quality and efficient services
and solutions, we will use professional courses and lectures to truly help the
terminal implementation of product operation systems, and use excellent
operation plans to help institutions improve their comprehensive service
capabilities and help the growth of outstanding operational talents and join
hands with industry fellows to explore new trends and growth points in the
future development of the medical aesthetics market.

During the “Le Young Club Livestreaming Season” event, a total of 100
influencers and nearly 300 institutions collaborated to livestream. The top
ten medical aesthetics influencers on Weibo broadcasted 10 consecutive
live shows in November, with a total exposure of over 30 million, a total of
over 3 million viewers and a total exposure of store visits of over 1 million.
It ranked among the top 3 on the Weibo livestreaming hot search list.
In addition, hundreds of medical aesthetics influencers 100 institutions
across China for store-visit livestreaming, with a total exposure of over
6.37 million and a total of over 3.1 million viewers and covering 29 cities.
During the event, the “Le Young Club Livestreaming Season” continued
to heat up, and the topic “#Le Enjoy Youth Anti-Aging Plan#" appeared
on Weibo's hot search window, with over 100 million views and over 50
million reads. Related topics of medical aesthetics continue to ferment and
heat up, highlighting our brand positioning and leading the new marketing
of medical aesthetics.
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On the medical side, Meiyan Space conducted a total of more than 370 medical
exchanges and training sessions during the Year, covering more than 1,800
physicians and involving nearly 200 academic visits and online training sessions.
A number of activities were conducted to promote in-depth exchanges with
industrial KOL and doctors, to demonstrate the differentiated value of products
from the academic perspective of pharmaceutical and create industry benchmarks,
including but not limited to:

o Meiyan Space held two head and neck anti-aging exchanges during the
Year. They not only allowed us to better carry out medical training for
Letybo® by discussing injection techniques and academic science with
cooperating young and middle-aged physicians, but also laid a foundation
for the medical training and expert collaboration for newly launched
products in the future.

3 In the second quarter, Meiyan Space joined hands with Hugel Inc. from
South Korea to attend the 10th Chinese Minimally Invasive Medical
Aesthetics Conference and the “2023 Medical Aesthetics Safety and
Compliance Year” themed forum with its blockbuster product Letybo®.
Meiyan Space always adheres to the “the essence of medicine”, takes
technology as its core to promote industry standards, builds beauty with
quality, and supports the healthy and vigorous development of medical
aesthetics in the future, jointly creates compliant medical aesthetics, safe
medical aesthetics, high-quality medical aesthetics and responsible medical
aesthetics, promotes the standardized development of China’s medical
aesthetics market and helps the medical aesthetics industry move forward
in the future.

o In the third quarter, Hugel Inc. joined hands with Meiyan Space to hold
the H.E.L.F global annual academic seminar. As the exclusive agent of
Letybo® in China, Meiyan Space brought nearly 30 senior domestic medical
aesthetics physicians to participate in this year's H.E.L.F conferences held
in Thailand and South Korea. The seminar covered the latest medical
aesthetics trends and technologies for consumer markets of different age
groups and genders, provided a platform for in-depth discussions on and
exploration of global medical aesthetics trends, and provided valuable
opportunities and new ideas for the further development of the industry.
Meanwhile, it helped Meiyan Space foster a deep cooperative relationship
with domestic senior experts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, Meiyan Space opened training centers in Chengdu
and Shanghai, and held physician training and exchange meetings
simultaneously offline and online. During the Year, Meiyan Space and
Tanmei Space jointly completed three series of courses on the application
of facial injections for rejuvenation. In July 2023, Meiyan Space helped
“Tanmei Bashang Aesthetics Space” to be launched in Chengdu. On the
same day, the Medical Conference on New Trends in Medical Aesthetics
and Material Kaleidoscope — The Science and Art of Medical Aesthetics
Exhibition was successfully held at Tanmei Bashang e Aesthetics Space
in Chengdu; in September 2023, Meiyan Space & Tanmei Space jointly
held the second phase of the Physicians’ Exchange Meeting on Clinical
Application of Microdrop Injection Technology; in November 2023,
Meiyan Space & Tanmei Space China Training Center successfully held
the third phase of the Physicians’ Exchange Meeting on the Application of
Persnica™ for Facial Rejuvenation. The Physicians’ Exchange meeting took
the clinical applications of botulinum toxin Letybo® and hyaluronic acid
Persnica™ products under the Meiyan Space as the topic of exchange, and
conducted exchanges and training sessions with all participating physicians
to help medical aesthetics physicians achieve a higher level of clinical best
practice and continue to empower physicians in the medical aesthetics
industry to improve their skills. Meiyan Space has always been committed
to promoting the joint development of new business forms between
medicine and aesthetics, and strives to create the most comprehensive
medical aesthetics product chain. With products as its base, Meiyan Space
continues to leverage the brand advantages of industry experts, medical
resources and empowering teams, and work together with Tanmei
Bashang Aesthetics Space innovatively and deeply to empower Chinese
medical aesthetics physicians to improve their diagnosis and treatment
levels and standardize and professionalize the industry. It provides Chinese
medical aesthetics physicians with more professional and in-depth technical
training, and captures new trends in medical aesthetics around the globe
with its advanced aesthetic philosophy to promote innovative development
of the industry.
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Meiyan Space attended the Oriental Aesthetic and Plastic Art Conference
with its blockbuster products, and shared with industry fellows the
methods and methodologies of medical technology applications. Director
Zhao Wei of the Department of Microsurgery of Shanghai Huamei Plastic
Surgery Hospital was specially invited to give an authoritative sharing on
“Application of Botulinum Toxin on Muscle Shaping”. Mr. Ming Jian,
general manager of Meiyan Space Medical Center, gave a detailed analysis
and explanation for the first time on the “Application of Air Droplets of
Botulinum Toxin". The application of air droplets is an innovative treatment
idea of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Meiyan Space for botulinum toxin injection.
It is more conducive to precise injection and enables the product to have
better performance after injection. The conference also marked a good
start to the promotion of the core technology of Meiyan Space’s botulinum
toxin products in 2024.

During the Year, the “Twin Stars of Letybo®and Persnica™" Contour
Sculpting Joint Injection Practical Global Conference hosted by Meiyan
Space was officially launched at the 2023 Aesthetic & Anti-Aging
Medicine World Congress (AMWC) held in China. Leading figures in the
industry were specially invited to join the Global Conference to share
with its attendees the cutting-edge injection technologies and experience
of international anti-aging medicine. Through in-depth analysis and
explanation of the application of cutting-edge injection technologies and
sharing of aesthetics theories, we explored the cutting-edge trends of
medical aesthetics with our guests, helped the regularized development of
the medical aesthetics industry, and discussed the future development of
global medical aesthetics.

In addition, as the exclusive partner, Meiyan Space jointly launched the
first AMWC Elite Medical Research Competition for Young Physicians. This
competition received positive responses from young physicians in the field
of medical aesthetics and anti-aging. In the preliminary round, more than
100 young physicians across China participated in the submission selection.
The competition invited many top domestic experts and professors to
form a chairman’s panel to provide all-round comprehensive guidance and
evaluation to the elite contestants. While ensuring the professionalism and
fairness of the competition, the competition introduced a multi-dimensional
evaluation system to evaluate the contestants, with a view to providing
a more diverse and richer demonstration platform for young physicians,
stimulating the academic thinking of the medical aesthetics industry, and
thus making more practitioners to pay attention to clinical research and
academic exchanges, helping to foster medical aesthetics talents, and
promoting the sustainable development of medical aesthetics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, with the help of many efficient and successful marketing
and medical activities and strategies, Meiyan Space achieved a substantial
improvement and leap in sales volume. During the Year, Meiyan Space won the
“Outstanding Enterprise Award of the 2023 Chinese Medical Aesthetics Industry
Overall Rating List” and the 2023 (Industry) Influential Brand Award at the CFS
12th Financial Summit and 2023 Sustainable Business Conference. Botulinum
Toxin Letybo® won the Botulinum Toxin Brand of the Year Award at “the 3rd
Spotlight Awards”. Meiyan Space also won the 2022-2023 Elite Brand Partner
Award from the CAPA and the Chinese Non-government Medical Institutions
Association. It was also named the honorary title of partner in CAPA's “Scan QR
Code to Verify Authenticity” Industry Self-discipline Activity. Meiyan Space has
used its strength to gain the industry’s recognition of its corporate brand value,
brand strength and industry influence, as well as demonstrating its comprehensive
strength.

At present, Meiyan Space has more than 40 medical aesthetics products that
have received NDA approvals or are under development, including PCL filler, PLLA
filler, PLLA gel, as well as the merge and acquisition and exclusive distribution
rights of SYLFIRM X™ golden microneedle products with VIOL from South Korea,
Cellbooster® series products from Switzerland, fat collection systems from the
United States and other mid-to-high-end medical aesthetics products, thus
basically completing the management of the entire customer life cycle. In terms
of sales team building, based on the launch time of new products, Meiyan Space
will continue to increase the number of professional and mature sales personnel
in this segment. With the growth of Letybo® in the past three years, we have
also refined an agent management system that is unique to Meiyan Space. We
hope that, with the rapid expansion of sales channel networks through the two-
pronged strategy of “direct sales + agents”, Meiyan Space will achieve better
results in 2024.

F Z S ANNUAL REPORT 2023 45



BB BT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

46

BB b RIS - hOARE
BEREEMERMBRERREX
LR 2REEQIERLE
MRELENARERR

REENERB R BERGE  INRE
Y REF EMMARRAEE @&
BRI R - FR - RERERBENA
MBERLCEFTEMES HERFHE
FTEBGRBEMER - AIES AN
S o BTt % (8 B B an TR HE
BERHBELTAFER E-FHFH
ERERBEGBERABERZERES
B SR o BT 42 I E A TS IR B A
MEFaRIaE NMREBEEELE
mERNAZERREELER &
FEEAKERHENTE 2RMEE
[ RIHT A B A T AR B R o

FR - A B BT 5 & H 5 R R R
WoHEEEERARKEI6IEET
HERfERT AARKB4084HET B
TR —FRMNFER AR 7227
BETMHAL T%43.5% °

Innovative Pharmaceuticals and Other Business Segments:
Accelerating the progress of R&D and commercialization
of high-quality product pipelines, and promoting the
upgrades and development to a leading biopharmaceutical
company in China at full speed

The Group continued to further develop its biopharmaceutical business and
accelerated the rapid development of Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm
in terms of product R&D. During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm, a leading
innovative drug company focusing on oncology drugs, made breakthroughs in the
R&D of a number of products, continuously driving innovation. The rapid progress
of R&D and NDA for several key products of Huisheng Biopharm has further
established its leading position in realizing full product coverage in the therapeutic
areas of diabetes and its complications. The platforms in the innovative
pharmaceuticals and other business segment are making steady progress in
accelerating the R&D progress and commercialization of their quality product
pipelines, further realizing the Group’s innovation and transformation, and forging
the upgrades and development of the Group to an innovative biopharmaceutical
company at full speed.

During the Year, the Group incurred a segment result of a loss of RMB676.1
million in the innovative and other pharmaceuticals segment, of which the R&D
expenditure amounted to RMB408.4 million, representing a decrease of 43.5% as
compared with the R&D expenditure of RMB722.7 million for the same period in
2022.
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most comprehensive layout in the domestic breast
cancer treatment track, a leading biopharmaceutical
company in China with comprehensive and innovative
drug independent research and development
capabilities in both small molecules and large
biological molecules

Xuanzhu Biopharm, a subsidiary under Sihuan Pharmaceutical, is an
innovative pharmaceutical company deeply rooted in China with a global
perspective. It focuses on major diseases such as digestion disorders,
oncology and non-alcoholic steatohepatitis (NASH) and is committed to
the research, development, production and commercialization of new
drugs with core independent intellectual property rights to address unmet
clinical treatment needs. The company has a team with rich experience
in the development and industrialization of innovative drugs. It has been
engaging in research in the fields of digestion disorders, oncology and
NASH for many years. It has a profound understanding and global vision
of the development and future directions of new drugs in related fields.
The company has R&D systems for both small molecule drugs and large
molecule biologicals. The dual engines drive the development of the
company, forming a rich product pipeline rare in China that covers small
molecule drugs, monoclonal antibodies, bispecific antibodies and ADC,
etc. With “innovation-driven; promoting the development of new drugs
in China and serving human health” as its strategic concept, “open-
minded and innovative; dare to take responsibility; overcome difficulties;
scientific rigor” as its values, the company is guided by major unmet
clinical needs, continues to develop new drug products with international
competitiveness, strives to develop into a first-class innovative drug
company with independent R&D, production and sales capabilities.
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Innovative Drugs under Development, with Comprehensive Layout for Main Targets of Breast Cancer
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Focusing on Oncology, NASH and Digestion, etc., the pipeline layout is complete and balanced in long, medium, and short terms, with strong

capability to innovate continuously
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Fulvestrant is a generic drug and does not need clinical trials

Fulvestrant is introduced from Fujian Genohope Biotech Ltd. (82 E#E & £ ¥kt

G RAA]), which has interests in the PRC
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) chemical drug | emal RBD B = R AUCH B3 AR &
2nd generation ALKi-resistant NSCLC
BERE oo BRE g BAREEBEORBREABBHIRE
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EYERIE o HER2+ SR (ILIRME - B - BBtE  WERS)
XZP-KM257 HER2/HER2  Innovative Internal RED HER2+ solid tumor (breast cancer,
biological drug gastric cancer, bladder cancer, CCA, etc.)
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XZB-0004 is introduced from SignalChem Lifesciences Corp., which has interests in

XZP-KM602 is introduced from Beijing Xuanyi

Pipeline progress as of 29 February 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm expedited the R&D of many products,
with several products making substantial progress. One of them was
Anaprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets (trade name: Anjiuwei®), China’s
first independently developed PPI Class 1 innovative drug with independent
intellectual property rights, which obtained drug market approval from the
NMPA in June 2023, and was included in the National Reimbursement Drug
List in the same year. Anaprazole Sodium was Xuanzhu Biopharm’s first
innovative drug to be approved for launch. The company has established
a professional marketing team, which marks a new milestone for Xuanzhu
Biopharm from R&D to commercialization. In addition, the phase Il clinical
trial of Anaprazole Sodium for a new indication — reflux esophagitis (RE)
has completed the enrollment of all subjects, with its R&D progressing
smoothly.

In the field of oncology, two indications have been submitted for NDA
approval and accepted. They are Birociclib in combination with Fulvestrant
for the treatment of HR+/HER2- advanced breast cancer patients with
disease progression following previous endocrine therapy, and Birociclib
monotherapy for the treatment of advanced breast cancer patients with
disease progression after multiple-line treatment (including endocrine
therapy and chemotherapy). The clinical research results of Birociclib
monotherapy were selected by the 2023 ASCO Annual Meeting and
the 2023 ESMO Congress for poster presentation. With its clinical value
recognized by authoritative academic institutions, Birociclib is potentially
the best product in class. Moreover, the phase Ill clinical study of Birociclib
in combination with aromatase inhibitor for the initial endocrine therapy
of patients with HR+/HER2- advanced breast cancer is progressing
smoothly. The indication of Birociclib monotherapy or in combination with
Abiraterone Acetate and Prednisolone for the treatment of the metastatic
prostate cancer has also received phase Il clinical trial approval, which will
be initiated soon.
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XZP-3621 for the initial treatment of ALK+ advanced NSCLC patients
has achieved phased results and its NDA application is expected to be
submitted in 2024. XZP-3621 is a new generation of ALK/ROS1 dual-
targeted inhibitor independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm for the
treatment of ALK+ advanced NSCLC. The clinical data show that XZP-3621
has excellent efficacy and safety in the ALK inhibitor naive and previously
treated advanced NSCLC patients with ALK+. Except for gastrointestinal
adverse reactions, the incidence of adverse events such as hematology
toxicity and nervous system toxicity is low. In addition, XZP-3621 can
penetrate the blood-brain barrier, which is effective for the tumor brain
metastasis. According to the data from China Insights Consultancy, with
the gradual introduction and popularization of ALK targeted drugs, the
market size of ALK inhibitors in China is growing rapidly. It is expected
that the market size of ALK inhibitors in China will increase from RMB3.37
billion in 2021 to RMB6.96 billion in 2030.

Meanwhile, Xuanzhu Biopharm continued to make breakthroughs and
seek innovation, advancing three globally leading innovative drugs to
the clinical stage. These drugs include XZP-KM501, an HER2 bispecific
antibody ADC that shows excellent effects on patients with both HER2 high
expression and low HER2 expression; XZP-6877, a DNA-PK inhibitor that
increases the sensitivity of cancer cells to radiotherapy and chemotherapy
and serves the purpose of inhibiting cancer cell proliferation and has broad
market prospects; and XZP-KM602, a CD80 fusion protein drug and a new
generation of tumor immunology drug that has a broad-spectrum anti-
tumor effect. Domestic clinical trials for XZP-KM602 have already been
initiated. Actively exploring the “global expansion” strategy, Xuanzhu
Biopharm obtained clinical trial approval for XZP-KM602 from the United
States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) in September 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In March 2023, CD80 mutant-Fc fusion protein injection solution (product
code: XZP-KM602) developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm was approved by
the NMPA for clinical trials in the treatment of advanced solid tumors.
"XZP-KM602" is a new generation of tumor immunotherapy drug and is
currently the first and only CD80 mutant-Fc fusion protein in the clinical
stage in China. It produces a long-term immune memory function, and its
anti-tumor activity lasts, which can further enhance the therapeutic effect
of various tumor treatment regimens. At present, there is only one similar
drug with the same target in clinical phase | in the world. XZP-KM602, as
the first and only CD80 mutant-Fc fusion protein in the clinical stage in
China, is expected to fill the market gap in this field in China. At present,
the clinical response rate of tumor immunotherapy represented by PD1
is still low. CD80 fusion protein can not only inhibit PD-L1 and CTLA-4,
but also promote the co-stimulation of CD28, and will be a promising
blockbuster in the future tumor immunotherapy field, with the potential
to overcome the bottleneck of 10%-30% efficacy represented by PD-1
inhibitor monotherapy.

In the same month, a selective DNA dependent protein kinase (DNA-
PK) inhibitor (product code: XZP-6877 tablets), internally developed by
Xuanzhu Biopharm, was also approved by the NMPA to conduct clinical
trials for the treatment of advanced solid tumors. XZP-6877 can block
the main routes for repairing DNA double strand breaks (DSBs) caused by
radiotherapy or chemotherapy drugs, and improve the sensitivity of tumor
cells to radiotherapy and chemotherapy; at the same time, it destroys the
stability of DNA telomere structure to inhibit the proliferation and growth
of tumor cells. The combination of the two mechanisms can enhance the
anti-tumor efficacy and more effectively control tumors. XZP-6877 is the
first DNA-PK inhibitor approved for clinical trials in China, which can be
used in combination with chemotherapy or radiotherapy for the treatment
of advanced solid tumors with a broad spectrum of anticancer potentials.
Leading in research and development progress and with technical
advantages, preclinical data show that it has good drugability, and is
expected to fill the market gap in China in this field.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm always adheres to independent R&D and continues
to output innovative achievements, which have been recognized by
the industry. During the Year, Xuanzhu won multiple honors, including
“Forbes China Unicorn Enterprises”, “2023 China Biopharmaceutical
Science & Technology Innovation Value List — Top 10 Most Promising Small
Molecule Innovative Drug Enterprises”, “2023 China Top 100 Companies
with Comprehensive Drug R&D Ability”, “2023 China Pharmaceutical
Industry Innovation Leader Enterprises Top 50", and “2023 Deloitte China
Healthcare Tomorrow Star”.

Huisheng Biopharm: A biopharmaceutical leader

with full product coverage in the therapeutic areas

of diabetes and its complications, and is expected

to become a leading platform for the whole-course
management of diabetes patients

Huisheng Biopharm, a subsidiary of the Group, is a biomedical company
that focuses on the therapeutic areas of diabetes and its complications.
After nine years of construction and development, the company currently
has a world-class R&D team with rich experience in diabetes drug R&D.
It has nearly 40 products in the pipeline, which cover second-generation
insulin, third-generation insulin, new generation insulin (covering basal
insulin, premixed insulin, and rapid-acting insulin), the latest mechanism
products including SGLT-2 inhibitors and GLP-1 receptor agonists as well as
other commonly used anti-diabetic and complication treatment drugs. It is
one of the few companies in China to achieve full product coverage in the
therapeutic areas of diabetes and its complications.
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LHREMELS LT ZEROEMBRERBRITE
Multiple products have been approved for launch, and the R&D progress of many core products leading the industry

AR | e 898

Category Sub-Category

Therapeutic
Area

RIS
SGiT2 Class 1 New Drug
ikl
New Insulin
R =R
BUD 3rd Generation
Insulin and
analogues
ERR
Diabetes
FoR
2nd Generation
ATBEN@mE
(EWENE)
Large market potential
OLP-1 (Biosimilars)
1A
Class 1 New Drug
s SGLT-2 * DPP-4 %
=] . "
Oral hgwfﬁ%fmic (s %)
oo SGLT-2 * DPP-4 - etc.
¢ (Chemical generic drugs)
par | ORREE | penom
Complications Complications of Lage market potential
; diabetes 9 P

1 BEREREE2024F2A29A

H2 0 TERERAERRERRRRE

LR

Drug name

BEEMNEIIER

Ganagliflozin Proline Tablets
BEBINBIIER + —FEMA

Ganagliflozin Proline Tablets and Metformin Tablets
BEREBREHR

Insulin Degludec Injection
BRMLERBEIHR

Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection
ERRBEANBIIHR

Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide Injection
FIRRBRIISR

Insulin Aspart Injection

FARER30IHR

Insulin Aspart 30 Injection

FIXBRE RS0 R

Insulin Aspart 50 Injection

ARBZITSR

Recombinant Human Insulin Injection
BEAARSRIIR

Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection
BEEARSREAIIDRGOR)

Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection (30R)
BEAARSZRAISR(S0R)

Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injection (50R)
EEL:E Ve Cs )

S lutide Injection (Diak
AXKBRENE (BE)
Semaglutide Injection (Obesity or overweight)
EEY3-Y9

Semaglutide Tablets

HSP-012C (£ B HENH)

HSP-012C (Dual target)

\

ERSIFS  BRISTH S 1050+
~nearly 10 products including dapagliflozin tablets, sitagliptin tablets
etc.*

PR 107>
~nearly 10 products including mecobalamin tablets etc.*

Note 1: Pipeline progress as of 29 February 2024

Note 2: *Identify the fastest clinical progress within the category

B9 % B &2 R&D Stage

BRRIZ | EEERNH | BRI |NDA/ANDA
Phase| | Phasell | Phaselll |evaluation
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During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm expedited its product R&D and
commercialization processes. During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm
obtained the drug registration approvals of 7 drugs, including Insulin
Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection, Insulin Aspart 50 Injection,
Mecobalamin Tablets, Mecobalamin Injection, Thioctic Acid Injection and
Sitagliptin Tablets. Moreover, the Company has submitted the NDA of 5
drugs, including Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection. In 2024, its
innovative drugs SGLT-2 inhibitor innovative drug Proline Ganagliflozin
tablets (trade name: Huiyoujing®) and Vildagliptin tablets obtained drug
registration approvals from the NMPA. The approvals obtained by the above
products mark a new milestone for Huisheng Biopharm’s development from
R&D to commercialization.

On 23 January 2024, the Group announced that the SGLT-2 inhibitor
innovative drug Proline Ganagliflozin tablets (trade name: Huiyoujing®)
had obtained NDA approval. The SGLT-2 inhibitor is a new type of oral
hypoglycemic drug highly recommended internationally for the treatment
of patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. It selectively inhibits the SGLT-
2 receptor in renal proximal tubules, to reduce glucose re-absorption
to promote urinary glucose excretion, thus lowering blood glucose
concentration. SGLT-2 inhibitors not only have good hypoglycemic effect,
but also have multiple benefits such as cardiovascular and renal protection,
which is recommended by domestic and foreign guidelines in multiple
fields, and also have the potential to expand to cardiovascular disease,
chronic kidney disease and other indications. Ganagliflozin is a SGLT-2
inhibitor Class 1 innovative drug, and its phase Il clinical data showed that
it not only has significant hypoglycemic efficacy (the decrease of HbA1c is
up to 1.4% compared to baseline), but also has multiple benefits such as
lowering blood pressure, reducing weight and improving blood lipids, etc.,
with low risk of hypoglycemia, and good overall safety. When compared
side-by-side with phase Il clinical data of similar SGLT-2 inhibitor products
already on the market, Ganagliflozin showed similar or even better results.
Huisheng Biopharma owns the patent rights of Ganagliflozin in multiple
countries and regions including China, the United States, Europe, Japan,
South Korea and Hong Kong, etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Moreover, on 8 January 2024, the Group announced that Insulin Aspart
Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection and Insulin Aspart 50 Injection
developed by Huisheng Biopharm had obtained drug registration approvals
from the NMPA. Insulin Aspart Injection is the third-generation fast acting
insulin analogue. It takes effect within 10-20 minutes after subcutaneous
injection, which can better control postprandial blood glucose and reduce
the risk of hypoglycemia. The injection time is more flexible and can be
administered near mealtime. It can also be used for insulin pump and
intravenous injection. Insulin Aspart 30/50 Injections are biphasic insulins
containing 30%/50% soluble insulin aspart and 70%/50% protamine
insulin aspart. They can better control fasting and post-prandial blood
glucose, reduce the number of injections, and have obvious advantages in
improving patients’ compliance and saving medical costs. The availability
of two different dosages allows clinical physicians to provide patients
with more flexible and personalized treatment options based on their
postprandial blood glucose levels. Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart
30 Injection and Insulin Aspart 50 Injection are all included in the National
Reimbursement Drug List (2023 version) and classified in Category B.

During the Year, Semaglutide injection, developed by Huisheng Biopharm
for the treatment of type 2 diabetes was approved for IND by the NMPA
in June, and the clinical trials were initiated in the second half of the year.
As of March 2024, phase Ill enroliment was completed, and the indication
for overweight or obesity of Semaglutide Injection is in preparation for IND
application. Semaglutide is a long-acting GLP-1 receptor agonist injected
once a week, which has better hypoglycemic and weight loss effects than
the classic GLP-1 receptor agonist drug Liraglutide. Semaglutide not only
has good hypoglycemic efficacy and high safety, but also has outstanding
advantages in weight loss and cardiovascular benefits. It is expected that
the international and domestic markets will continue to grow rapidly in the
future.
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During the Year, the clinical trial of Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide
Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm for the treatment of type 2
diabetes was approved by the NMPA. Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide
Injection was the world’s first compound preparation composed of a basal
insulin analog and a GLP-1 analog to receive NDA approval. It combines
the two-component advantages of Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide. On
the basis of significant blood sugar lowering and weight loss effect, it is
used to treat type 2 diabetes. Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide Injection is
injected once a day, which reduces the number of injections and improves
patient compliance. When the insulin dose is the same or lower, its
hypoglycemic effect is better than that of basal insulin treatment alone,
while reducing the risk of hypoglycemia and eliminating the side effects of
insulin therapy for weight gain. Insulin Degludec and Liraglutide Injection
is a recommended drug in the “China’s Guidelines for the Prevention
and Treatment of Type 2 Diabetes (2020 Edition)” and is included in the
National Reimbursement Drug List and classified in Category B.

In addition, the NDA of Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection
developed by Huisheng Biopharm was submitted and accepted by the
NMPA during the Year. It was the first biosimilar of Insulin Degludec
and Insulin Aspart Injection whose NDA was submitted and accepted in
China. The Insulin Degludec and Insulin Aspart Injection is a soluble double
insulin preparation. It is a mixture of 70% Insulin Degludec and 30%
Insulin Aspart. After subcutaneous injection, they exert their respective
pharmacokinetic effects, thereby achieving an ultra long and stable
hypoglycemic effect. The characteristics of this product are that it can
quickly control fasting and postprandial blood glucose, and better reduce
HbA1c. Compared with the use of Insulin Glargine and Insulin Aspart, the
product has a significantly lower risk of nocturnal hypoglycemia and is more
conducive to blood glucose regulation in patients with diabetes. As a non-
cocrystalline compound, the product can be used without mixing, which
enhances the convenience of the product and avoids the injection risk of
mixing preparations. In addition, compared to basal insulin and mealtime
insulin treatment, the product can reduce the number of injections, thereby
helping to improve patient compliance and reduce medical burden.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As many products are already in the NDA stage, to ensure the rapid
industrialization of the drugs after launch and support the transformation
of the entire value chain operation of research, production and sales,
by adhering to the cost and efficiency oriented approach, and in
combination with the online ERP expansion module, the Company
has sorted out the industrial operation process, achieving the full line
connection of sale-plan-production-logistics business, and promoted
the standardization, informatization, and digitalization process of
industrial operation; the Company has also implemented organizational
integration and resource restructuring of processes and production
modules, improving the specialization of processes and techniques and site
production management. At the same time, it has completed production
lines renovation, added key production equipment, and achieved the
commercial production lines with a production capacity of over ten million
and a flexible and efficient operation of pilot production lines, improving
internal operation significantly and R&D efficiency. In addition, to ensure
the successful launch for the approved products, Huisheng Biopharm has
conducted on-site research on the product pipeline and developed product
portfolio sales strategies, and has started to establish marketing team,
covering functional departments such as marketing, sales, and marketing
operations, and has carried out market preparation before the products are
launched.

In January 2023, Huisheng Biopharm announced that it had successfully
completed the A+ round of financing, the investors subscribed for stake in
Huisheng Biopharm at the cost of an additional capital increase of RMB580
million, with an overall post investment valuation of RMB5.58 billion.
Although the capital market experienced the lowest sentiment in the
recent two years, Huisheng Biopharm successfully completed both A and
A+ rounds of financing within 12 months, realized a total equity financing
of RMB1.08 billion, which fully reflects the recognition of investors on the
R&D and industrialization capability of Huisheng Biopharm, and also verifies
the value of the company’s product pipeline in the therapeutic areas of
diabetes and its complications. The Group is also full of confidence and
expectations for the future development of Huisheng Biopharm. During the
Year, the company successfully completed its share reform and officially
changed its name to Huisheng Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd., preparing for
independent development in the capital market in the future.

Huisheng Biopharm is a biopharmaceutical platform that the Group has
carefully incubated for nearly nine years, targeting the huge potential
diabetes and its complications market in China. In the future, with the
gradual implementation of Huisheng Biopharm’s product pipeline and the
continuous emergence of innovative products, Huisheng Biopharm will
become a leading biopharmaceutical leader in China with a full range of
products in the therapeutic areas of diabetes and its complications, thus
realizing a continuous amplification of its value.
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Generic drugs: Continuing the steady development

of the “cash cow” business and accelerating the
implementation of the divestment and transfer of
certain generic medicine and other non-core traditional
pharmaceutical or big healthcare businesses and
assets that are not in line with the long-term strategic
development objectives

In 2023, the Group accelerated the implementation of the optimization
and integration of the generic pharmaceuticals business, balanced the
development and stability of the generic pharmaceuticals cash cow
business, and accelerated the implementation of the divestment and
transfer of several generic pharmaceuticals and other non-core traditional
pharmaceuticals or big healthcare businesses and assets that are not in line
with the long-term strategic development objectives.

During the Year, the Group made significant progress on the “cash cow”
generic pharmaceutical business. The blockbuster drug Kelin’ao® was
successfully moved out of the Key Monitoring Drug List leveraging on its
more than one thousand patients evidence-based medicine (EBM) results;
seven Non-PVC solid-liquid dual chamber bag drugs and Midazolam
Oromucosal Solution were included in the National Reimbursement Drug
List; and 13 generic drugs including the antiviral drug Favipiravir Tablets,
anti-bacterial infection drug Azithromycin for Suspension, anti-fungal
infection drug Fluconazole and Sodium Chloride Injection, and Dopamine
Hydrochloride Injection for the treatment of shock syndrome, developed by
the Group, obtained drug registration approvals from the NMPA during the
Year. In addition, 5 APIs passed the technical evaluation carried out by the
CDE of the PRC, while the result of their joint evaluation with preparations
was “A". The successful launch of the drugs will provide strong support for
the growth of the pharmaceutical business revenue of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Kelin‘ao® (Cinepazide maleate injection) is a weak calcium antagonist
used to improve neurological symptoms, activities of daily living (ADLs)
and dysfunctions caused by acute ischemic stroke. The Group is currently
the only enterprise in China that has completed a large-scale confirmatory
clinical study on this product. The clinical study was a multicentre real-world
study for post-marketing safety evaluation, led by Professor Cui Liying of
Peking Union Medical College Hospital, former chairman of the Neurology
Branch of the Chinese Medical Association, with the participation of 68 top
hospitals from dozens of provinces, municipalities and directly-administered
municipalities, with a total of 1,301 subjects enrolled. This is the clinical
trial with the largest number of participating centres and the largest sample
size among the independently developed drugs for stroke treatment in
China, which provides an important guarantee for the credibility and
reproducibility of the study results. The results of the study showed that the
drug was effective in promoting functional recovery in stroke patients after
90 days. The results of this study demonstrated that the product is effective
in improving the prognosis of stroke patients and reducing the disability
rate. Cinepazide maleate is the only approved product in the field of stroke
treatment in China since the commencement of the post-marketing clinical
study. As a former first-line drug for the clinical treatment of cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular diseases, Kelin’ao® has benefited 7 million patients
over the past 20 years, and its annual terminal sales in the Chinese market
once reached billions of yuan, making it a heavyweight product used for
the treatment of stroke at that time. Stroke is an acute cerebral blood
circulation disorder caused by narrowing, occlusion or rupture of the
arteries in the brain due to various triggering factors, which is an acute
cerebrovascular disease and is the leading cause of death among Chinese
residents. According to the China‘s Stroke Prevention and Treatment
Guidelines (2021), the proportion of new strokes in China is about 0.28%,
with acute stroke accounting for about 70% of the total, and the total
population of China was about 1.413 billion in 2022, with the number
of new acute ischemic strokes in China being about 2.77 million in 2022.
According to the 2017 China’s Stroke Prevention and Treatment Report,
the recurrence rate one year after the first stroke is as high as 17.1%, and
patients must take long-term medication to prevent recurrence, which
has also contributed to the continuous growth of the domestic market
for stroke medication. In 2020, the sales of stroke drugs in China was
approximately RMB69 billion.
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The non-PVC powder-liquid dual-chamber bag ready-to-dispense infusion
has a high R&D technology barrier and a long development cycle, and is
currently an advanced infusion product in the international arena. The
dosage form adopts specific technology and non-PVC multi-layer co-
extruded film as the packaging material, the drug and the injectable
solvent are packed in two chambers of the same bag, and the chambers
are separated by virtual welds. Before infusion, it is only necessary to gently
squeeze the bottom of the chambers to open the barrier between the two
preparation chambers to achieve drug homogenization. The dosage form
avoids secondary contamination caused by microorganisms and particles
during the dispensing process, and eliminates the potential hazards to
healthcare workers caused by highly allergenic drugs during the preparation
and infusion process. In addition, it takes less than 20 seconds from
preparation to use, which has the advantage of high efficiency and speedy
use, and can be commonly used in hospitals for emergency treatment,
ICUs, etc., which can save more lives in case of emergencies. In terms of
clinical application, it is widely recognized as the safest, most reliable and
convenient infusion product, and is one of the new dosage forms with the
most development potential in the pharmaceutical industry. The Chinese
market for the non-PVC powder and liquid dual-chamber bag is still in its
infancy. However, due to the huge base of China’s large infusion market,
with consumption perennially exceeding 10 billion bags (bottles), as the
new powder-liquid dual-chamber bag has obtained NDA approval and
has been included in the National Reimbursement Drug List, patients’
willingness to use it has been increasing each year, which will accelerate
its market penetration in China. Being safer and more convenient, the
dual-chamber bag has the clinical advantage and is expected to partially
supplant existing products. It can be foreseen that the Chinese market for
this dosage form in the future is promising and has huge market potential.

Midazolam Buccal Mucosal Solution, a benzodiazepine sedative-hypnotic, is
the first mucosal drug form developed for infants, children and adolescents
in China for the treatment of acute, persistent convulsive seizures caused
by hyperthermia or epilepsy in children 3 months to 18 years of age,
and it is a recommended therapeutic agent in the guidelines for the
treatment of epilepsy and the guidelines for febrile convulsive seizures.
The current clinical use of midazolam, which is mainly administered orally
or intravenously, poses a major inconvenience for infants, toddlers and
children with persistent convulsive seizures. Compared with other dosage
forms, the buccal mucosal solution dosage form is more convenient to
administer, with faster onset of action, and can even be used in out-of-
hospital home emergencies. The Midazolam Buccal Mucosal Solution
developed by the Group is the first and the only one of its kind in China.
At present, the market scale of children’s medicine in China only accounts
for 7-8% of the overall pharmaceutical industry, and the population aged
0-15 years accounts for approximately 17.8% of the total population,
representing a huge population base, the market of children’s medicine is
far from saturated, with a huge market potential in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group’s generic pharmaceuticals business made
various positive developments, which will provide strong support for the
Group to maintain a healthy cash flow. Meanwhile, with the successful
divestment and transfer of part of the Group’s traditional generic
pharmaceutical business and big healthcare business, which have continued
to suffer from low profitability and are subject to strong policy influence,
the Group has been able to further focus its management and corporate
resources on the medical aesthetic segment that with higher growth and
higher profit margins, as well as on the biopharmaceutical segment with
high growth in value. The Group believes that through the implementation
of our “medical aesthetics+innovative pharmaceuticals” dual-wheel drive
strategy and the enhancement of the efficiency of the Group’s resource
utilization, the overall profit structure of the Company will be effectively
improved and upgraded, which will help to maximize shareholders’ value.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE GROWTH STRATEGIES

In 2024, we will focus our management on the high-growth field of medical aesthetics
and the high-value fields of innovative drugs and biopharmaceuticals. We are committed
to greatly enhancing the growth of both revenue and profit from our medical aesthetics
business, expediting the NDA of innovative drugs and biologics and achieving the
product iteration of generic drugs by innovative drugs and biologics. We will strive to
do less but more meaningful tasks, accelerating the optimization and integration of the
generic drug business. We will adhere to our people-oriented philosophy and continue to
foster a more diversified and international talent pool for the innovation, transformation
and upgrades of the Company.

CONCLUSION

Perseverance will pay off. The Group firmly believes that its strategic goals will be
achieved, as long as it persists in doing difficult but right things, adheres to its two-
wheel drive development strategy of “medical aesthetics + innovative drugs”, continues
to take action and strive to improve the Company’s cash flow generation ability, with
the creation of better investment returns for shareholders and investors who trust
and support the Group as the core goal of the Company’s development, and with the
protection of human health and a better life as its own responsibility.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB1,860.5 million (2022:
RMB2,181.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 14.7%
(approximately RMB320.7 million).

Among the changes in revenue, the revenue from medical aesthetic products amounted
to RMB449.9 million (2022: RMB149.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 200.3% (approximately RMB300.1 million), mainly due to that with the
full liberalization of domestic epidemic control and the gradual recovery of consumer
demand, the Group’s medical aesthetics platform Meiyan Space has achieved stage-by-
stage success through channel inventory clearance, strategic cooperation with various
medical aesthetics institutions and huge effort in promoting its upgraded 3.0 version
of marketing strategies, thereby recording a significant and successful rebound of sales
revenue in its medical aesthetics business.

Revenue from sales of generic medicine amounted to approximately RMB1,398.8 million
(2022: RMB1,970.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
29.0% (approximately RMB571.7 million), mainly attributed to the impact of the price
reduction as a result of centralized procurement and the decline in prices and sales
volumes of certain generic medicines as a result of certain products being newly included
in the key monitoring catalogue.

In addition, revenue from innovative medicine and other medicine amounted to
approximately RMB11.8 million (2022: RMB60.9 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 80.6% (approximately RMB49.1 million), mainly attributed to the disposal of
certain APl companies (including Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd.) of the Group at the end
of 2022, which no longer generated revenue to the APl segment in the Year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB564.9 million
(2022: RMB693.6 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 18.6%, which was
mainly due to the combined effect of the decrease in revenue from sales of generic
medicine and increase in cost of raw materials for the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to approximately RMB1,295.6 million (2022:
RMB1,487.6 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 12.9%
(approximately RMB192.0 million), mainly due to the decrease in overall revenue for
the Year. Overall gross profit margin was 69.6%, representing a year-on-year increase
of 1.4% as compared to 68.2% for the last year, which was mainly attributable to the
divestment of certain APl companies with low gross profit margins of the Group at the
end of 2022 and changes in the Group’s product sales structure, resulting in a slight
increase in overall gross profit.

62 DU 15 58 ZEYR AR & B A R 2 & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



Heh  BEXERMEMNEHEAFHNE89% T
EFNM654%  HNEEZRAT MRER
EMEENERUARTIBELHREA - AR
MATEMREOHEERTENTZE  HRIEN
EMEHEFENT23% FNEEFRNT71.3%
ZTREIBHANRZIERSTERENTE -

Hitb Wz — F 5

FAREMBEIFEOARAREB2I6IBE T
(ZF-_—F: AR¥350288T) BT
f£383% (WARMIZ41BEERL) TEHR
EFEBBER—XENBRARNES W A
FRE -

FRBEEREERERERERES
HENREREEE
FRRBEIETREE EREEE REAERSEAR
ENREREEBB(ZE__F  BEBEBA
RIE1,7271EETT) °

DEAX
FADEPZNAARBIMM2IEE L (ZF
—oFARBANABEE) AL TE6.1%
(WARM288FET)  TEHNFARKET
B8R % - 555 E BB B I A F Ik AR
BILL AR A - B F R 855 A TR Bl
RURES H) T RR LAY o

THEAX
FRNTHRAZORARB469.08E T (=
T —F: AR¥ES522H5E7) B TR
151% (ARSI 2EEL) TZHRFA
RNEBBGIRIRZ BB EETRAGH - #m
RO TBOEBEMY ©

WERX

FAMBAIHNAARKES7T7.768E T (=
To—F: AR%o366BETL) AL TE
383% (MW ARE3ISBIFET) TEHNAE
SEHEIHENHEER (BRIEEITME - £
BRRE) = HRRCEETR £
DERESIER T - =FRELRD TR
EH L™ RARAEEETHBEAREAEY
NZ AR EFERE TR O RE -

=R Ei
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross profit margin of medical aesthetic products decreased from 68.9% for the
last year to 65.4% for the Year, which was due to the impact of stepping up marketing
for product brand as Meiyan Space aimed to accelerate the growth of product sales
and increase its market share. The gross profit margin of generic medicine decreased
from 72.3% for the last year to 71.3% for the Year, mainly attributed to the impact of
industry policies such as centralized procurement policy.

Other gains — net

Other gains — net for the Year amounted to approximately RMB216.1 million (2022:
RMB350.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 38.3% (approximately
RMB134.1 million). It was mainly due to the fact that there was a one-off gain on
disposal of subsidiaries in the last year, while there was no such deal in the Year.

Impairment losses on non-current assets and impairment losses
on investments accounted for using the equity method

There were no impairment losses on non-current assets and impairment losses on
investments accounted for using the equity method for the Year (2022: impairment
provision of RMB1,727.1 million).

Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB442.3 million (2022:
RMB471.1 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.1% (approximately
RMB28.8 million), mainly due to the significant decrease in revenue for the Year and
the fact that partial costs of marketing activities did not decrease in proportion to the
decrease in revenue for the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB469.0 million
(2022: RMB552.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.1% (approximately
RMB83.2 million), mainly because the Group proactively adopted various cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement initiatives during the Year, thereby reducing partial
administrative expenses.

R&D expenses

R&D expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB577.7 million (2022:
RMB936.6 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 38.3% (approximately
RMB358.9 million), mainly due to the completion of Phase Ill clinical trials of several
of the Group’s self-developed products (including the innovative medicine, biologicals,
and the generic medicine), some of which NDA applications were submitted or NDA
approvals were obtained by the end of 2023. In addition, a number of research and
development projects of Huisheng Biopharm, a subsidiary of the Group, has been
completed and filed for production.
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Other expenses

Other expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB59.0 million (2022:
RMB139.4 million), which represented a year-on-year decrease of 57.7% (approximately
RMB80.4 million), mainly due to the recognition of impairment of inventories to
realisable value of approximately RMB90.8 million last year.

Operating profit/(loss)

The operating profit for the Year was approximately RMB161.7 million (2022: operating
loss of RMB1,830.7 million), mainly attributed to significant reduction in various expenses
for the year including distribution expenses, administrative expenses, R&D expenses and
other expenses, compared with last year. In addition, the Group provided impairment
losses on non-current assets and impairment losses on investments accounted for using
the equity method of approximately RMB1,727.1 million in 2022 while no impairment
was required for the Year.

Finance expenses

Finance expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB269.3 million (2022:
RMB211.2 million), which represented a year-on-year increase of 27.5% (approximately
RMB58.1 million). Among which, interest expense on redemption liabilities of shares of
its subsidiaries amounted to approximately RMB211.3 million (2022: RMB151.5 million).
Redemption liabilities mainly relate to the repurchase rights granted in the equity
financing and spin-off listing of the innovative drug subsidiaries of the Group.

Loss before tax from continuing operations

The loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB161.3 million (2022: RMB2,122.8 million).

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB96.4
million (2022: RMB196.8 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 51.0%
(approximately RMB100.4 million). Despite a loss recorded in the results for the Year,
certain generic medicine subsidiaries and medical aesthetic segments of the Group still
recorded taxable profit under the PRC tax statutory regime as such subsidiaries recorded
profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss for the Year from continuing operations

The Group’s loss for the Year from continuing operations amounted to approximately
RMB257.7 million (2022: loss of RMB2,319.6 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 88.9% (approximately RMB2,061.9 million). It was primarily attributable
to the impairment losses on non-current assets and impairment losses on investments
accounted for using the equity method of approximately RMB1.7 billion provided by
the Group in 2022. In addition, the Group’s has been investing considerable amount in
R&D expenses every year (R&D expenses amounting to approximately RMB577.7 million
in 2023) with its persistence in the innovative transformation and development towards
medical aesthetics and innovative biopharmaceutical businesses in recent years. The
changes in industry policies also caused a combined effect of the year-on-year decline in
revenue and profit from the generic medicine segment.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB54.0 million (2022: RMB1,914.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
97.2% in loss (approximately RMB1,860.9 million). The loss for the Year was mainly
the net result of the profitable operation of the Group’s medical aesthetics business
and generic medicine business segments and the loss of the innovative drug business
segment of the Group (mainly Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm) for which
considerable annual R&D expenditure was incurred.

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB203.7 million (2022: RMB368.4 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
44.7% (approximately RMB164.7 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the
significant year-on-year decrease in loss of the Group's innovative drug business segment
during the Year, which incurred by considerable R&D expenditure, and the significant
decrease in the Group’s impairment provision in 2023.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group maintained strong financial position. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, wealth management products, pledged deposits and
time deposits amounted to approximately RMB4,610.5 million (31 December 2022:
RMB4,969.1 million) in aggregate, of which, cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB3,778.7 million (31 December 2022: RMB3,828.9 million). In addition,
the total wealth management products recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position amounted to approximately RMB589.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB963.0 million), pledged deposits and time deposits amounted to approximately
RMB242.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB177.2 million). During the Year, net cash
inflows from operating activities amounted to approximately RMB199.5 million and the
2022 final dividend of approximately RMB298.6 million was paid to shareholders of the
Company.
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In general, the Group places its excess cash into interest-bearing bank accounts. The
Group may use extra cash for short-term investments for higher returns. Thus, the Group
has entered into agreements with certain banks for surplus cash investment. According
to the terms of the agreements signed, the total amount of investment conducted by the
Group for the Year was approximately RMB10,091.4 million. The investments made by
the Group were short-term in nature and mainly consisted of financial planning products
purchased from certain state-owned banks. At their discretion, issuing banks for the
above-mentioned financial planning products may invest in financial instruments such
as government bonds, discounted bank acceptance bills and commercial acceptance
bills and bank deposits. As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
investments in each bank (after aggregation according to rules 14.22 and 14.23 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) separately is less than 5% as at the time of
the investments according to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules, such investments did not
constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, bank borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1,133.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,135.5 million) and other borrowings of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB40.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB54.2
million). Approximately 75% of total amount of borrowings were at floating rates and
the remaining 25% were at fixed rates (31 December 2022: 73% floating; 27% fixed).
The Group’s borrowings-to-equity ratio, expressed as a percentage of borrowings over
equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 26.5%.

The Group had sufficient cash as at 31 December 2023. The Directors are of the opinion
that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2023, inventories amounted to approximately RMB557.3 million (31
December 2022: RMB606.7 million), representing a decrease of 8.1% (approximately
RMB49.4 million). The inventory turnover period for the Year was 371 days (31
December 2022: 343 days), which was mainly due to the fact that the decrease in cost
was greater than the change in inventory balance as the cost of goods sold decreased by
approximately 18.6% during the Year but the average inventory balance decreased by
only 12.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables and notes receivable include credit sales of its products to
be paid by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group mainly consist of prepayments
to suppliers and deposits. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and other
receivables were approximately RMB1,134.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,118.6
million), representing an increase of 1.4% (approximately RMB16.2 million). Trade
receivables and notes receivable were approximately RMB397.8 million (31 December
2022: RMB522.2 million), representing a decrease of 23.8% (approximately RMB124.4
million), which was mainly attributable to the decreased revenue during the Year.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment include buildings, production and electronic
equipment, vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 December 2023, the net
book value of the property, plant and equipment was approximately RMB2,174.6
million (31 December 2022: RMB2,301.0 million), representing a decrease of 5.5% or
approximately RMB126.4 million. For details, please refer to note 14 to the financial
statements.

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly comprise customer relationships, deferred
development costs, product development in progress and trademark and software. The
deferred development costs and product development in progress mainly related to the
acquisition of several drug R&D projects and self-development of R&D projects. As at 31
December 2023, net intangible assets amounted to approximately RMB776.0 million (31
December 2022: RMB626.5 million), representing an increase of 23.9% (approximately
RMB149.5 million). It was mainly due to the successive completion of phase Il clinical
trials of several of the Group's self-developed products and their entry into the
capitalisation stage, resulting in an increase in the original cost of intangible assets.

Trade and other payables

The Group's trade and other payables mainly comprise trade payables, notes payable,
deposit payables, accrued expenses and others. As at 31 December 2023, trade and
other payables amounted to approximately RMB1,710.8 million (31 December 2022:
RMB1,926.9 million), representing a decrease of 11.2% (approximately RMB216.1
million). It was mainly due to the decrease in promotion service fees payable during the
Year.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31 December
2022: Nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had neither entered into any off-balance sheet
arrangements nor commitments to provide guarantees for any payment obligations of
any third party. The Group did not have any variable interests in any unconsolidated
entities which provide financing or liquidity funding, or generate market risk or provide
credit support, or engage in the provision of leasing or hedging or R&D services to the
Group.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total capital commitment was approximately
RMB335.8 million. It was mainly set aside for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, notes receivable,
wealth management products and other receivables. All the cash equivalents and bank
deposits are placed in certain PRC reputable financial institutions and high-quality
international financial institutions outside Chinese Mainland. All those irrevocable bank
bills, classified as notes receivable, are issued by banks in the PRC with high credit rating.
There was no recent history of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation
to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
and has policies in place to ensure that certain cash advance has been received upon
the agreement of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit periods
granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. It also undertakes certain monitoring
procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group regularly performs aging analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the
recoverability regarding such receivables based on historical data and cash collection
history of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit risk.

Wealth management products are the bank financial products issued by certain PRC
reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history of default and the executive
directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk related to
the investments is low.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, relationship with the Group, credit history and other
factors. Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of these other receivables
and follow up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive Directors are of
the opinion that the default by counterparties is likely to be low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s functional currency is RMB and financial instruments are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group has some cash balances mainly denominated in United
States Dollar (“USD") and Hong Kong dollar (“HKS$"). It is expected that any fluctuation
of these foreign currencies’ exchange rates would not have material effect on the
operation of the Group. In addition, dividend payment in foreign currencies converted
from RMB is subject to foreign exchange rules and regulations promulgated by the PRC
government. The Group would closely monitor such exchange risk from time to time.

During the Year, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest rate
derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury policy

The Group finances its ordinary operations mainly with internally generated resources.
The principal objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain its ability to
operate on a continuous basis. The Group regularly reviews its capital structure to ensure
that the Group has sufficient financial resources to support its business operations.

Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure mainly includes purchase of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and intangible assets. During the Year, the
Group's capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB296.7 million, of which
approximately RMB125.3 million, RMB1.3 million and RMB170.1 million were spent on
purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and purchase of or
self-development of intangible assets, respectively.

Material investment, acquisition and disposal

During the Year, the Group did not have any material investment, acquisition or disposal.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments and capital assets during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.
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Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged certain assets to secure banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries. For details, please refer to note 34 to the financial
statement.

Human resources and remuneration of employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the Group’s success in a competitive
environment. The Group is committed to providing competitive remuneration packages
to all the employees and regularly reviewing human resources policies, to encourage
employees to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the
sustainable growth of the Company. The Group has also adopted share option scheme
and share award scheme to recognise and reward the contribution of the employees
for the benefit of the Group’s operations and future development. The Group continues
to promote the building of talent training and development system, and conducts
online and offline training based on the competency standards for positions at different
levels to promote the cultivation and development of talents in the Group and ensure
continuous supply of various types of talents.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,872 employees. During the Year, the Group’s
total salary and related costs were approximately RMB681.1 million (as of 31 December
2022: RMB718.2 million), including bonus and non-cash share-based payments of
approximately RMB47.6 million and RMB89.1 million (as of 31 December 2022:
RMB49.1 million and RMB89.7 million). Salary for employees was determined based on
their job nature, personal performance and the market trends. The Group provides basic
social insurance and housing accumulation fund for company employees as required by
the PRC law.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 62, is our executive Director and chairman of the Company
(the “Chairman”) and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006. He is a co-founder
of the Group and is responsible for the overall management, strategic planning and
business development of the Group and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and
business expansion since its establishment in 2001. Prior to the Group's establishment,
Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience as a medical doctor/neurologist and more
than 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical products
and the management of pharmaceutical companies. From 1997 to 2001, Dr. Che was
a general manager of Hainan Kang Tong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. where he was in
charge of the company’s overall management. From 1995 to 1997, Dr. Che was the
assistant general manager and manager of marketing centre of Shenzhen City New
Special Pharmaceutical Products Co., Ltd. where he was responsible for the marketing
and overall management of the company’s business. Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che
was the product promotion manager and East China Regional manager of Shenzhen
City Healthcare Pharmaceutical Company, in charge of sales and marketing. From 1991
to 1993, Dr. Che held the position of neurologist attending physician and lecturer in
First Military Medical University, Zhu Jiang Hospital, Guangzhou City, PRC. Dr. Che was
a neurologist and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military Medical University in Xi‘an
City, PRC and at the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi"an City, PRC
from 1984 to 1991 respectively. Dr. Che was the vice chairman of several committees
and associations including China Political Science Training Centre, China Medical
Economics Magazine Board and the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr. Che is also
a deputy supervisor of the Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee in the Hainan
Entrepreneurs Association as well as a specially appointed research member of the China
Enterprise Reform and Development Research Institute. In 2006, he was awarded the
title of one of the Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen in Hainan Province by the
Hainan Province Commerce Association, the Hainan Industry & Economics Association
and the Evaluation Committee of Top 10 Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and
Enterprising Businessmen in Industry and Commerce in Hainan. He was vice chairman
of the Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber of the All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce from 2010 to 2011. He won the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award for
Life Science Industry of China in 2012. He was awarded the National Labour Day Medal
in 2014. He was appointed as the director for the Fourth Session of the board of the
Beijing Society of Biomedical Engineering in 2014. He was recognised as the National
Labour Model in 2015. Dr. Che received his Bachelor of Medicine (Aviation) and
Master of Medicine (Neurology) from the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi‘an City,
PRC in 1984 and 1990 respectively. He also received an Executive Master of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School in 1999.
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Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 60, is our executive Director, deputy chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006
and is a co-founder of the Group. Dr. Guo is responsible for the overall operations
of the Group, sales and marketing and our R&D activities, with a focus on strategic
planning, particularly in relation to mergers and acquisitions and product collaborations.
He has also become responsible for the overall operations of Shenzhen Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. after it was acquired in 2007. Dr. Guo has been instrumental
to the Group’s growth and business expansion since our establishment in 2001. Prior to
our establishment, Dr. Guo had more than 4 years of experience as a general surgeon
and more than 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical
products. From 1992 to 1993, Dr. Guo held the position of chief surgeon in Guangzhou
Military 177 Hospital. Dr. Guo was a surgeon and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth
Military Medical University, Tang Du Hospital, Xi‘an City, PRC from 1986 to 1989. Dr.
Guo received his Bachelor of Medicine and Master of Medicine (General Surgery) from
the Fourth Military Medical University, PRC in 1986 and 1992, respectively.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 62, is our executive Director and was appointed to the
Board on 20 April 2018. He is in charge of the Group’s investment and mergers and
acquisitions. He joined the Group in 2005 and was first appointed to the Board as a non-
executive Director on 18 May 2006 until 8 December 2017. Dr. Zhang has more than
10 years of experience as a medical doctor. From 1983 to 1992, Dr. Zhang worked as a
medical doctor in Shenzhen People’s Hospital, one of the largest hospitals in Shenzhen
City, PRC. Dr. Zhang obtained an Undergraduate Certificate in Medical Treatment from
Shantou Medical College (Il %8 %8 22 HE £} £ 7) (now known as Shantou University
Medical College (JIli 28 X 2% E3F7)) in 1983. In 1992, Dr. Zhang was conferred the
professional title of attending physician by the Shenzhen City Title Conferment Reform
Leadership Group ORI TH B FE B B E VAR ).

Ms. Chen Yanling, aged 46, is our executive Director, one of the joint company
secretaries and the co-chairman of the Risk Management Committee and was appointed
to the Board on 20 April 2018. Currently, her main responsibilities are to manage day-
to-day matters of the Board, the daily compliance matters relating to the listing of the
Company, the ESG and risk control and management matters of the Group and day-
to-day matters on the management of the Group in Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
companies. She joined the Group in March 2006 and has served in the Group for
18 years. Since joining the Group in 2006, she has been working as an assistant to
the Chairman of the Group and the Board secretariat. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked as an English translation officer at the information centre of Guangzhou
Tourism Bureau in 2001. In 2002, she worked as an assistant to general manager at
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan) Company Ltd. (¥ Kl (1) AR Q7))
in charge of the daily management of the general manager’s office as well as planning

and was

and promotion. In 2004, she worked as an assistant to the president of Guangzhou
Culturecom Company Ltd. (&M 32 {t{E{= A R 2 7) and was in charge of the daily
management of the president’s office, planmng and budgeting, media resources
integration and development, and maintenance, etc.
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Ms. Miao Guili, aged 50, is our executive Director, deputy chief executive officer
and chief financial officer of the Company. She joined the Group in September 2020
and was appointed to the Board on 17 October 2022. Ms. Miao has over 15 years of
management and investment experience in the PRC pharmaceutical industry, and had
held senior management positions as the general manager, deputy general manager,
chief financial officer, etc., respectively, in various well-known enterprises, including
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320.HK), Top Spring
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3688.HK) and Edding Group Company
Limited ({5 & & %2 & & 5 B2 72 7)), for more than 10 years. Ms. Miao obtained a
Master of Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong. She is a Chartered
Certified Accountant (CA) of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants (ISCA),
a fellow member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA),
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) and the Chartered Global
Management Accountants (CGMA).

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 72, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tsang
was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China. He has
over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial public offerings
and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-executive
director of a number of companies, including China Merchants China Direct Investments
Limited (stock code: 133), TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and Shirble
Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (stock code: 312) (all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang is currently an independent director of HUYA Inc.
(which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, NYSE: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an
independent director of Agria Corporation (formerly listed on the New York Stock
Exchange) from August 2011 to October 2017, a director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a
company listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange) from December 2014 to October
2017 and CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566) from November
2014 to November 2022 (a company listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
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Dr. Zhu Xun, aged 66, is our independent non-executive Director and was appointed to
the Board on 20 February 2014. Dr. Zhu is a native of Changchun City. From 1995 to
2000, he served as the vice principal of Norman Bethune University of Medical Science.
From 2000 to 2003, he served as a deputy secretary general of the Changchun
Municipal Government and from 2004 to 2006, he served as a special assistant to the
mayor of Changchun Municipal Government. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Zhu has
over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is currently the chairman
of the board of directors of the Tongxieyi New Drugs Talent Club* ([F% = ¥ &4 5 A4 (2
#438), the Chief of Medicine and Strategy* (%)% (8 ), and the Honorary Principal of
Shell University* (B 5% K %22). He is also a special medical expert of Advantech Capital
Investment* (& 35 & 7% ), an independent director of Shenzhen ChipScreen BioS (&3I4
AEYD), a senior consultant of Changchun Jinsai Pharmaceutical* (K& & E %3 ), and
Shenzhen Osa Pharmaceutical* (& JI| B B & %%). Dr. Zhu is currently a non-executive
director of HighTide Therapeutics, Inc. (stock code: 2511) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) and was an independent non-executive director of Lansen Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 503) from September 2022 to December 2023 (a company
that was listed on the Stock Exchange).

Dr. Zhu founded Changchun Medical Biotechnology Center* (& Z 58 %% 4 %) 1 i
Lx) in 2001 as the supervisor of the center. In the same year, he founded Changchun
Boxun Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (R&EBAEW T F]) and served as the chairman
of the board. Funded with 8 million US dollars from the British listed company Cathay
International Pharmaceutical Limited in 2003. Dr. Zhu founded Changchunbotai* (&£%&
827 as chief executive officer until 2010.

Dr. Zhu has served as a member of the National New Drug Advisory Committee* (%
L HZ EE), a member of the expert review group of the Life Science Division of
the National Natural Science Foundation of China (I B AR ERE ST E 4w Rl
BEERFTFE AR 8), a member of the expert advisory group in Biotechnology of the
National Development and Reform Commission (Bl 5% 3% 2k Z 4 ¥ # 9l B R34 A 4E K
8), a member of the review group of the Innovation Fund for SMEs of the Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC (Bl REHZ R NEERKMAFIE ST ELZE) and
a member of the China Medical Science Awards Committee* (b #E 58 EAR| E2 45 7 52
Z B€Z 8), the founding editor of the Chinese Journal of Experimental Diagnostics*
(PEEHZ 75818 £ 4), the deputy editor of the Journal of Pharmaceutical
Progress* (224 R 752 £ 47 ), the editorial board of the Chinese Journal of Cancer
Biotherapy* (P BIfE & £ YA B & 7545 £ ), and the editorial board of the Chinese
Journal of Immunology* (/F Bl & & B3R E ).

* For identification purposes only

* EHa5
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Mr. Wang Guan, aged 43, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 1 April 2023. Mr. Wang specializes in legal services for
securities capital with over 20 years of experience in legal services for securities capital
and is familiar with the laws and regulations relating to securities capital in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. He is able to provide a wide range of legal services for securities
capital. Mr. Wang is a partner of Zhong Lun Law Firm, an independent director of
Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co., Ltd. (stock code: $2002039), an external internal auditor
of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: SH601377) and a special expert of the
strategy and investment advisory committee of Guizhou Airport Group Co., Ltd. (& /N
EHIZEEBR2AR]). Mr. Wang was a lawyer and partner of S&P Law Firm and V&T
Law Firm. He was also an independent director of Shenzhen Anche Technologies Co.,
Ltd. GR I Z B 4 8 B D B B A 7)) (stock code: $Z300572), and each member of
the State-owned Assets Law Committee of the 9th Beijing Lawyers Association and the
Securities Law Committee of the 10th Beijing Lawyers Association. Mr. Wang obtained a
master’s degree in law from Renmin University of China. Mr. Wang holds the Certificate
of Independent Director Qualification of Listed Companies issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chen Yanling, is our executive Director and joint company secretary. Please refer to
this section headed "Executive Directors” for her biography.

Mr. Li Kin Wai, is our joint company secretary. He was appointed on 17 October 2022.
Mr. Liis currently a senior manager of the Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services
Limited, an integrated provider offering business, corporate and investor services. Mr. Li
has over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational,
private and offshore companies. Mr. Li is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional and an associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period
From 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Year").

Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall performance,
transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial to the modern corporate
administration. The Board, in the interests of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), devotes considerable efforts to maintaining and ensuring a high
standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and accountability.
The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image with effective
corporate governance procedures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
during the reporting period.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal activities of the
Group are the research and development (“R&D"), and the manufacture and sale of
pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products in the PRC. By adhering to the
core values of “integrity and responsibility, pragmatism and innovation, cooperation
and sharing, and pursuit of excellence”, we take integrity and responsibility as the
foundation of our work, encourage the work style of staying realistic and daring to make
breakthroughs, advocate openness and cooperation, attach importance to teamwork,
seek win-win cooperation, and constantly pursue excellence. The four interlocking rings
represent the corporate spirit of “staying focused, staying committed, being professional
and reaching a mutual win”, highlighting the Group’s style and features. The code of
conduct is a positive interpretation of the Group’s core values and corporate spirit. The
Company advocates the practice of the cultural behaviors of “being brave, cooperative,
tolerant, passionate, diligent and pragmatic” among employees, in order to reduce
internal consumption and friction, cultivate team spirit, fully mobilize enthusiasm and
zeal for innovation, and enhance the sense of honor and responsibility.

The Company will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its business strategies
and keep track of the changing market conditions to ensure prompt and proactive
measures will be taken to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.

76 DU 15 58 ZEYR AR & B A R 2 & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



Exg

EEeMNARNTEER=2BIIRITES
MR -R-ZE_=FWA—B FEFELLRH
EBIFATEER T B ELEREERBIIE
HITEE - BRRAFHRIWEN EFEGFKEZ
BB IS - 75 KR EMBBERR -
EEeREZREHNENETSAZIESER
Bl - %R EFETREZNBEEES 8
ZEBBERE/FAELE(ERIE) RDHEME
H(ERITIRAER) 171 -

EE2AREEAEENEREER REAE
ENER BERBREE TERREEZ
BRUBRE  AEINAEENEBIEER -
AEENERERAGBRZNEELCRRITE
A YOREFEETEAREEUEEAR
SENAFERER - M EEFTERD
ETHEEETZHEEESZES  HIEKZE
Bg #FMZRe REZBEENAREREZ

EEenfFEARNRESTEESH -0ITTE
FHIZL4R MEREETEREEES S
BRENGEBA - ARFANESSSAER
SREIUFATEFNERL BEFGREFE
ZEENEHLEAREREEAZTENWE
R 2RESHERBERREEEXMHR
S FEESUMRRESHANEAEDL
HIFERE - o EEFG2RBKNECEREH
ERARBENEB X REFR -

EREEFYEREARWERAERRRE -
ARBMERAMERBEEL XL (RARE
MATESR) RFREELE - FEEELRRT
B EEBR ARRZ L -

MLt RFREEEAERETRAE329%
IAFERET DN/ NG R EEIE o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Patrick Sun resigned as independent non-executive Director and Mr. Wang
Guan was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2023. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the members of the Board. The biographical information of the
members of the Board are set out on pages 71 to 75 in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors”. During the Year, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer are segregated and such roles are exercised by Dr. Che Fengsheng as the
Chairman and Dr. Guo Weicheng as the CEO.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group’s strategic development,
determination of the Group’s objectives, business strategies and policies, and the
supervision and control of the operation and financial performance in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives. Our management team, which possesses extensive operating
experience and industry knowledge, has been delegated by the Board with the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees,
namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk
management committee. Further details of these Board committees are set out below.

The Board convened four Board meetings during the Year. All Directors were sent
meeting notices, at least 14 days prior to the regular meetings, with the Board meeting
agendas. The views of independent non-executive Directors were actively solicited by
the Company during Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees
meetings are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings. All Directors
are provided with Board papers and related statistics in a timely manner, which enabled
the Board to make informed decisions on matters proposed. In addition, all Board
members have regularly reviewed the business documents and information related to
the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries. The joint company secretaries of the Company are Ms. Chen Yanling, who is
an executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Li Kin Wai. The primary contact person
of Mr. Li at the Company is Ms. Chen.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Chen and Mr. Li, has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
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RBEHE SESHFEESTSRANEBER The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, during the reporting

gRUNE period, is stated below:
HERE,
RERLEZ
EEEERARK
Attendance/
No. of Board
meetings eligible
to attend
HITES Executive Directors
BREAEE(ER) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman) 4/4
D4 B A (BRI EFEFRATIRAR ) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO) 4/4
SRAMBEER Dr. Zhang Jionglong 4/4
BRIERIS L Ms. Chen Yanling 4/4
BREBLLT (BIITHAHZERNEE) Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and CFO) 4/4
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BENEE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 4/4
KAEL Dr. Zhu Xun 4/4
TEEE(R-_TE-_=ZFN/—HEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 3/3
FEELRE(R-ZE-_=FNA—HEIT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 11

AABELRHAEENEETRE  UREFER The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors for
AEBMELANETRHESRERE RRE their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
EHEBTFETR © on an annual basis.

ERTARNETESTEMBTARBERER With regards to the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
NBARRAABETRBOEE RIEE RHEAM of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
BEREE TEEBZSFREMPIENOARA as well as their identity and the time involved in such commitments, the Directors have
Al AR A BB A R R S EER BRI TS & agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

WEE EEMEEERERAARRBEERS

BB TS R o
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has currently appointed three independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the three independent non-executive Directors holds appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. One-third of the members of the Board are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan,
being the independent non-executive Directors, have renewed their letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 4 September
2023, 20 February 2024 and 1 April 2024, respectively. The independent non-executive
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or re-election in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws"). Each independent non-executive Director has
submitted to the Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Board adopted a “Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism” on 29 March 2022
to ensure a strong independent element on the Board of the Company, which allows
the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests. The mechanism includes:

° Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of reference to identify
suitable candidates, including independent non-executive Directors, for
appointment as Directors.

° Nomination Policy is in place with details of the process and criteria of identifying,
selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating new directorship.

o For independent non-executive directors (“INED(s)"):

o Every INED is required to confirm in writing to the Company his/her
independence upon his/her appointment as Director with reference to such
criteria as stipulated in the Nomination Policy as well as the Listing Rules;

o Each INED has to declare his/her past or present financial or other interests
in the Group’s business as soon as practicable, or his/her connection with
any of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules), if
any;

o Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there
is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may affect his/her
independence.

F Z S ANNUAL REPORT 2023 79



AN
EEBERAWMSE

RPO

X

REZEEREFTEMBBEILIERNT
EEMHLE RSB LIFRTT
EXNNA LMRMAENBELIERE
A B2 & ST A ) A BE 2 2 4 P9 19 98
THEBNBEERNBR  SUREEES
BB F DB EE A HHELE -

MEEFSAERRREG LEZBEEER A
TRBIYFNTEFNRE  BEBMK
REBEHTIAERRAALTEEER
BIHIEA o

BB EEEERBTRBRERNS KB
FEER  BRBALRQAEE-

HBEEFIMEBELAALRR SR

EREMWMTFE) -

BHESEBYHETFEEE ([ES
BB ML) BEREEHE LR
By UHEBHEBRERODNOBRRXNE
BRRLEEARZRIEAER -

FERBUMETHARDAFAEEE
BT EE  RMALE  TRE
REHEEEBAAAERT B/
WEEERA A NS E N TR
AT -

BBV AREBRIGETS
EEeRAEEEBRT AR HERM
TS

RESHMEMEAE BEFSBHLIET
EHERN A FREROH 2/ ED
EERMEPHE -

FREEEB TG RRASAT
M—ERELE ERERA—BEE
SEE RPN L BRI R
%8 -

NRESBAERRETNEFTS B M EE S
RREREFETTE EFSHAFEES
FHRE RS AR RIB R EE. -
EXeBFENIESSE L T AN
REFERR

80

ATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o The nomination committee will assess annually the independence of all INEDs
and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out
in the Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and circumstances which
are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, their independent judgement.
Every nomination committee member should abstain from assessing his’/her own
independence.

o Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an INED at the
general meeting, it will set out in the circular to Shareholders the reasons it
believes he/she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to be
independent.

o A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense.

o Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s senior
management independently, if necessary.

o An annual review on Board independence (the “Board Independence
Evaluation”) will be conducted, with attention to ensuring that it remains
independent in judgement and continue to present an objective and constructive
challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints presented by the management.

o The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form of a questionnaire to all
Directors individually and may be supplemented by individual interview with each
Director, if necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board considers fit
and necessary.

o The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to the Board
which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if
appropriate.

o The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary of the findings

of the said Evaluation will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report for
accountability and transparency purposes.

o The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded as an ongoing
exercise of the Company while the Company may seek assistance from external
consultant if an external evaluation on the same subject is needed.

The Board Independence Evaluation in the form of a questionnaire had been sent to all
Directors for assessment and the Board is satisfied with the evaluation on structure, size,
composition and independence of the Board for the Year. The Board also reviewed the
“Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism” on an annual basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Bye-Laws provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation and being eligible, can
offer themselves for re-election. In addition, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election. The
retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the Shareholders at the respective general
meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Dr. Che Fengsheng, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun
will retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election as Directors at the annual general
meeting to be held in 2024 (the “2024 AGM").

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before the
expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which such Director
may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him and the Company)
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing
a Director shall contain a statement of the intention to do so and be served on such
Director 14 days before the meeting and, at such meeting, such Director shall be entitled
to be heard on the motion for his removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place to
ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this respect provides sufficient
protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate with the
provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, the Directors are committed
to complying with the code provision C.1.4 of the Code on Directors’ training. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional development and provided a
record of training they received.

FEER -

HERESERE floms BF

HENmEE - RE¥EER

BRERIEY HEAEHNEH

Reading

Attending materials like

seminar, newspapers,

conference journals and

and workshop updates

related to relevant to

Director’s corporate

BEEnE Name of Directors duties governance

HITES Executive Directors

BHISAE Dr. Che Fengsheng v v

20 4 vk B2 Dr. Guo Weicheng v v

SR AR BE B Dr. Zhang Jionglong v v

fRMEIT 2+ Ms. Chen Yanling v v

BB T Ms. Miao Guili v v
BYkHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

BER LA Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong v v

KiiET Dr. Zhu Xun v v

FREE (RS _=FMNA—HEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) v v

FEESLE Mr. Patrick Sun v v

(RZZEZ=FMA—H&T) (resigned on 1 April 2023)

BEREES
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and with its written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent view on the effectiveness
of the financial reporting procedures, internal control and risk management system of
the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as required by the Board. The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan), and
is chaired by Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong who has a professional qualification in accountancy.
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During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s financial reporting matters, reviewed the internal
control system in relation to finance and accounting and submitted improvement
proposals to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2023. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2023 and recommended the Board to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor for the year of 2024, which is subject
to approval by the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members at the meetings held during
the Year was as follows:

HERE,
AEREEZ
BRRH
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEEnE Name of Directors eligible to attend

BENEE (EF) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 3/3
(RZZE_=FNA—HEZTAEERE) (appointed as chairman on 1 April 2023)

KAiEL Dr. Zhu Xun 3/3

TR &L Mr. Wang Guan 2/2
(RZZE_=FUA—HEZT) (appointed on 1 April 2023)

FEESLE Mr. Patrick Sun 1/1

(R-—ZT-_=%FmA—H&T)
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(resigned on 1 April 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng) and three independent non-executive Directors
(Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan) and is chaired by Mr. Wang
Guan. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the
provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance with the requirements
as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the Board comprised members with
diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured check and balance and safeguarded the
interests of Shareholders as well as the public.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify
members of the Board. The Company believes that a diversified perspective can be
achieved through implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The following measurable
objectives were adopted: selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience,
expertise, professional and educational qualifications, background and other personal
qualities. The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria, merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised 2 females (representing 25% of the
Board), out of 8 Directors; and among the 2,872 employees of the Group, female
employees accounted for 57.24%. The Board considers that the Board and the Group’s
workforce are all diverse in terms of gender. At present, the Company has not set any
measurable objectives for implementation of the diversity policies in relation to the Board
members and the workforce of the Group (including gender diversity) and is not aware
of any factors or circumstances that would make it more challenging or less relevant for
the Group to achieve gender diversity among its employees. However, the Company will
consider and review from time to time such diversity policies (including gender diversity)
and setting of any measurable objectives (if applicable).

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors, assessed the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and considered the appointment of the new
independent non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee, had also, taking into
consideration the skills, experience and knowledge, the relevant requirements of the
Company and the structure and composition of the Board, identified, reviewed and
nominated, with diligence and care, candidates who are suitable as Board members
of the Company before making final recommendations to the Board for their final
appointment.
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members at the meetings held
during the Year was as follows:

HERE,

RERLEZ

BRERE

Attendance/

No. of meetings

BEEnE Name of Directors eligible to attend

FREE(ERF) Mr. Wang Guan (Chairman) 11

(RZZE-_=FNA—HEZT) (appointed on 1 April 2023)

20 4 9ok 25 Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2

BENHEE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
(RZZE_=FNA—BTBETERE) (ceased to be chairman on 1 April 2023)

KE L+ Dr. Zhu Xun 2/2

FEESLE Mr. Patrick Sun 1/1
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(resigned on 1 April 2023)

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy on 18 March 2019 according
to the requirements of the Code. It sets out the criteria and procedures to be adopted
when considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors of the
Company.

NOMINATION CRITERIA

1. When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a Director's proposed
re-appointment, the Nomination Committee will have regard to the following
factors:

1.1 age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

1.2 effect on the Board's composition and diversity;

1.3 commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively carry
out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices held by

the candidate in public companies or organizations, and other executive
appointments or significant commitments will be considered;

1.4 potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

1.5 independence of the candidate;
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1.6 in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the number of years
he/she has already served; and

1.7 other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on a
case by case basis.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES AND PROCESS

2.

Subject to the provisions in the Bye-Laws, if the Board recognises the need to
appoint an additional Director, the following procedures should be adopted:

2.1 the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company, pursuant to the criteria
set out above;

2.2 the Nomination Committee adopts any process appropriate to evaluate the
candidates, which may include personal interviews, background checks,
presentations or written submissions by the candidates and third party
references;

2.3 the Nomination Committee will hold a physical meeting to consider the
matter and avoid the making of decisions by written resolutions unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held;

2.4 the Nomination Committee provides to the Board with all the information
required including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
in relation to the candidates;

2.5 before recommendation to the Board, evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board to prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment, then the
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board including the
terms and conditions of the appointment;

2.6 the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee;

2.7  all appointments of Director should be confirmed by letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment of the
Directors, which should be approved by the Nomination Committee; and
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2.8 pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where Shareholders are
required to vote on electing or re-electing a Director, the circular
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting should contain
all the information of the candidates required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

In cases of re-appointments of existing Directors, a physical meeting will be held to
consider the re-appointment based on the same criteria set out in above.

NOMINATION BY SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders may also propose a person for election as a Director, details of which
are set out in the “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” on the Company’s website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to make recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, and to prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises one executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three
independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr.
Wang Guan) and is chaired by Dr. Zhu Xun. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the
Code.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee, during
which the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of executive Directors;
reviewed the remuneration policy; reviewed and approved the proposed remuneration
for executive Directors in 2023 and made recommendation to the Board on the Director’s
fees for independent non-executive Directors; reviewed and approved the proposed
remuneration for new independent non-executive Director.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members at the meetings held

during the Year was as follows:

HERE,
BERLEEZ
BRRH
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEEnE Name of Directors eligible to attend
KAEL(ER) Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) 2/2
B Dr. Che Fengsheng 2/2
BENHEE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
FREA(R-_Z-_=FmMA—BEEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 11
FEERE(R-_Z-_=FNA—HET) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 11
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Details of the Directors’ and executive's remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements for the Year. Since the Company’s executive are also director, the
Company no longer disclosed additional details of remuneration of the executive by
band.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

On 13 December 2015, the Board approved and established the risk management
committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) with written terms
of reference. On 24 March 2023, the Board amended the terms of reference for the
Risk Management Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee
are, among others, to review the Company’s risk management, internal control system
and environmental, social and governance (“ESG") strategies, policies, guidelines
and procedures and to review the effectiveness of the work on risk management,
internal control systems and ESG. The Risk Management Committee consists of three
executive Directors (Dr. Guo Weicheng, Ms. Chen Yanling and Ms. Miao Guili) and one
independent non-executive Director (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong), and is co-chaired by Ms.
Chen Yanling and Ms. Miao Guili.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, and made suggestions to the Board. The Risk
Management Committee had also reviewed and assessed the ESG strategies, policies,
guidelines and procedures, and expressed their opinions to the Board.

88 | MIBEEmREE AR AR SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



WAFE  BRE
mF -

BEREEKEHFEEHTH

EEpS

Name of Directors

BB BE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee members at the meetings
held during the Year was as follows:
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Ms. Chen Yanling (Co-chairman) 2/2
(appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)

Ms. Miao Guili (Co-chairman) 2/2
(appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)

Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2

Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 11

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY THE DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
own code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year. To comply with the Code, the
Group has also established and adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by relevant employees to regulate the dealings in the securities of
the Group by certain employees of the Group who are deemed to be likely in possession
of the inside information of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023. A statement on reporting responsibility with respect to the
external auditor of the Company is set out on pages 126 to 132 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sound and effective risk management and
internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group has adopted internal
control procedures and policies to safeguard the assets, to ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records, to carry out reliable financial reporting and to ensure compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems every year. Review scope covers the control
of all major aspects, including the Company’s financial control, operation control and
compliance control. It also reviews the adequacy of resources in the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, staff qualifications and experience, and the level
of training attended and related subsidies that employees have received. During the
Year, based on the review results from the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee, the Board is satisfied with the review results of the Group’s risk management
and internal control and considers them effective and sufficient.

The Group has established an internal audit team who conducts independent auditing
work under the guidance of the Audit Committee. The annual work plan of the internal
audit team was to review periodically in relation to the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Risk Management Committee and Audit
Committee. The internal audit team reported the audit results to the Audit Committee,
carried out follow-up actions agreed based on recommendations of the Audit Committee
and to assist the Audit Committee and the Board to promote continuous improvement
of the Group’s risk management and internal controls. The internal audit team is staffed
by persons with certain professional ethics, professional competence, audit experience
and appropriate communication skills.

In 2023, the Board has appointed a professional third party to provide professional
advice and services on risk management to the Group. The Group also implemented
internal control review at the Company level and key business processes in 2023.
The management has taken measures to control related risks and developed internal
monitoring management mechanism and rectification plan which will continue to be
implemented.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system and realized
organic integration with the internal control system. Through a systematical risk
management process, a list of risks is compiled by identification with respect to the
operating conditions of the Company. Judgment on the possibility of occurrence and
the effects of various types of risks is attained through assessment of risks. Ranking the
severity of the Group’s business impact by combining qualitative and quantitative analysis
to find out the causes of risks, recommendations of multi-dimensional and effective
responsive strategies are made from seven aspects, including operation strategy, system
process, structural functions, technical tools, skills of staff, allocation of resources
and performance appraisal, and a written report is prepared for submission to the
management and the Board. The Group further developed risk management measures
to maintain risk within an acceptable level. Finally, fruitful results of risk management
will be realized through effective implementation of the internal control system. The
Group has formed a regular mechanism for daily monitoring and regular assessment of
risks to realize continuing supervision on essential risk factors in the daily operational
management activities.
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In addition to internal implementation of risk management and conducting regular
review on internal control, the Group will engage external auditors annually to perform
statutory audits as well as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key
risk management and internal control aspects. Under appropriate circumstances, the
Group will adopt the relevant recommendations of the external auditors to enhance risk
management and internal control.

Moreover, to regulate operations of the Group and to ensure that all businesses of
the Group comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s former surveillance
department has been restructured into the compliance department in 2015 and is
responsible for the establishment, inspection and reporting of all compliance-related
work of the Group. A compliance risk management organizational structure has been
established within the Group since then to conduct regular reviews on the compliance
of conducts of the Group’s internal staff, customers, suppliers and cooperative partners,
provide training and education on observing discipline and laws and complying with
anti-corruption rules, and sign letters of undertakings on compliance with employees
annually, in order to clarify the Group’s management requirements related to bribery,
corruption and unfair competition and standardize the employees’ honest and self-
disciplined behavior. Such practice is aligned with the applicable laws and regulations on
anti-corruption and the industry practice.

Regarding the handling and release of inside information, the Group has formulated
the “Information Disclosure Management Measures”, and has complied with applicable
laws, regulations and the Listing Rules, to disclose information truthfully, timely,
accurately, legally and completely in accordance with the information processing and
release procedures to perform the obligations of disclosure, and to ensure that such
information has been kept confidential prior to the proper approval of its disclosure to
protect the legitimate interests of the Shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders.
The Company has implemented necessary internal control measures to restrict Directors,
senior management and related employees to obtain or use the inside information
without prior authorisation by the Company.

The Group has established the “Whistleblowing Policy” for employees and stakeholders
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In 2023, the Group has participated in a number of institutional investor conferences and
regularly communicated with many investors through various means. The Group has also
set to provide the highest standard and financial transparency through publication of
annual and interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and circulars
through the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, the Company held the annual general meeting on 2 June 2023.

The attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings held during the Year are
set out below:

HERE,
BIZEBRE
Attendance/

No. of meetings held

BITES
BEETE
M=
SR BE B
BRI 2L+
2Rzt
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KRG+
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Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng 11
Dr. Guo Weicheng 11
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 11
Ms. Chen Yanling 11
Ms. Miao Guili 1”7

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 11
Dr. Zhu Xun 1”7
Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 11
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 0/0

ACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Shareholder Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholder communication policy (“Policy”) according to the
Code and will review the Policy at least annually to ensure its effectiveness. Having
reviewed the different channels of communication with Shareholders, the Board is
satisfied that the Policy has been properly implemented during the Year and is effective.

1.  Purpose

1.1 This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that
Sihuan Group’s Shareholders, both individual and institutional (collectively,
“Shareholders”), and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company (including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments,
governance and risk profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the
investment community to engage actively with the Company.

1.2 For the purpose of this Policy, references to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysts
reporting and analysing the Company’s performance.

2. General Policy

2.1 The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and the
investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to ensure its
effectiveness.

2.2 Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Sihuan Group website.

2.3 Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times. Any question regarding
this Policy shall be directed to the Company Secretary or Head of Corporate
Communications.
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Communication Strategies
Shareholders’ enquiries

3.1

3.2

3.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses in order to enable them to make
any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication*®

3.4

35

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely
and effective communications.

Corporate Website

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on the Sihuan
Group website (www.sihuanpharm.com). Information on the Sihuan Group
website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is also posted
on the Sihuan Group website immediately thereafter. Such Information on
website includes financial statements, results announcements, circulars and
notices of general meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with the Company’s
annual general meeting and results announcement each year will be made
available on the Sihuan Group website as soon as practicable after their
release.

All press releases issued by the Company or its subsidiaries will be made
available on the Sihuan Group website.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

3.10

3.12

3.13

3.14

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management executives
and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend Shareholders’ activities organised by
the Company, where information about the Company, including its latest
strategic plan, products and services etc will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

3.15

3.16

Investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities
for investors and specialist industry forums, etc. will be available on a
regular basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.

Sihuan Group’s Directors and employees who have contacts or dialogues
with investors, analysts, media or other interested outside parties are
required to comply with the disclosure obligations and requirements.

Shareholder Privacy

4.1

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and
will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless
required by law to do so.

"Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be
issued by Sihuan for the information or action of holders of any of its
securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report, the interim report, a
notice of meeting, a circular and a proxy form.
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CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated Bye-Laws were adopted on 2 June 2023 in order to (i) bring
the Bye-Laws in line with the amendments made to the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Bermuda, (ii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of
general meetings (including allowing general meetings to be held as hybrid meetings
or electronic meetings in addition to physical meetings) and (iii) make some other
housekeeping improvements. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 24 March 2023 and the circular dated 28 April 2023.

The latest version of the amended and restated Bye-Laws is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the reporting period, there has not been any change in
the Company’s memorandum of association and Bye-Laws.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-Laws, the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 (the “Act”) and applicable legislation and regulation. Shareholders who have
enquires about the following procedures or have enquires to put to the Board may write
to the joint company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) at Room
4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A. Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting (other than a proposal of a person for election as
a Director)

(1) Pursuant to Bye-Laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual general
meeting ("AGM") every year, and may hold a general meeting known as a
special general meeting whenever necessary.

(2)  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right
to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, can
submit a written request for notice of any resolution intended to be moved
at an AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at a particular general meeting to be given to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the AGM or general meeting.
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The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company's registered office at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda with a copy to its
principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than six (6) weeks before the AGM in the case
of a requisition for notice of a resolution and not less than one (1) week
before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM and give notice of the resolution; or (ii) to circulate
the statement for the general meeting, provided that the Shareholder(s)
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by
the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the
notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by the
Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid
or the Shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement
will not be circulated for the general meeting.

B. Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director

M

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/herself) for
election as a Director at that meeting, he/she must deposit a written notice
at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Room
4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed for
election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder concerned
and accompanied by a notice signed by that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.
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The minimum length of the period, during which such written notice(s)
may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to that
general meeting, the Company will need to consider adjournment of
the general meeting in order to (i) assess the suitability of the proposed
candidate; and (ii) publish an announcement or circulate a supplementary
circular in relation to the proposal to the Shareholders at least fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business days prior to the general
meeting.

C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM")

M

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and with a copy to
its principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting, be
signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of those requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition is invalid, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM is as
follows:

A SGM must be called by notice of not less than fourteen (14) clear days
but if permitted by the Listing Rules, a SGM may be called by shorter notice
if it is so agreed by a majority in number of the Shareholders having the
right to attend and vote at the SGM, being a majority together representing
not less than ninety-five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights at the
SGM of all the Shareholders.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the Act.

In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if the Board
does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from the said
date.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the
failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be retained by
the Company out of any sums due or to become due from the Company
by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their services to such
directors as were in default.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3628 3911

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 18 March 2019 according to
the requirement of the Code.

The Company may declare dividends in any currency through the Shareholders’
meeting, but the dividends declared shall not exceed the amount recommended
by the Board. The Board may also declare dividends or other distributions from
time to time.

Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act, the Bye-Laws and other applicable laws and regulations,
and shall not affect the normal operation of the Company and its subsidiaries as
the principle.

Subject to the second paragraph above, whether the Company declares dividends
and the declared amounts will depend on the Company’s financial results, cash
flow and financial status and conditions, operating and funding needs, business
conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, the amount of profit that can be distributed under the
applicable accounting standards and other factors that the Board considers
relevant to the Group.

The Board will continuously review this dividend policy and reserves the absolute
autonomy to update, amend, modify and/(or) cancel this dividend policy at any
time. The Company does not guarantee the payment of any specific amount of
dividends for any given period of time and does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board
to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual to
corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to Directors and employees of
the Company; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the auditor of the Group provided audit services for the Group. The service
fees for audit and non-audit services in 2023 amounted to RMB4.2 million and Nil,
respectively.

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang
Jionglong (collectively, the “Covenantors” and each a “Covenantor”) had provided
an annual declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-
competition undertaking (as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 15 October
2010). Pursuant to the deed of non-competition, each of the Covenantors has, among
other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the Company that at any
time during the relevant period, each of the Covenantors shall, and shall procure that its
associates (other than members of the Group):

(i) not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, or attempt to
participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support to or
otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each other or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, any business which is
the same as, similar to or in competition with the business of the Group; and

(i) not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere with or
disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by the
Covenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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The Board presents the Report of Directors together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Key Relationships

(i)

(i)

Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group regards
the personal development of its employees highly important. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary adjustments
to conform to the market standard. The Group has also adopted share option
scheme and share award scheme to recognise and reward the contribution of the
employees for the benefit of the Group’s operations and future development.

Suppliers

We have developed long-term relationships with a number of suppliers and to
ensure that they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully select
our suppliers and require them to satisfy certain benchmarks.

(iii) Distributors

We sell our products to the end-user customers through distributors. We work
closely with the distributors to ensure that we share the view for enhance our
brand value and customer services.

(iv) Hospitals

We are committed to offer quality products to hospitals. We also stay connected
and maintain a close relationship with the hospitals through various channels such
as visits, marketing materials and meetings.
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A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the Group's
future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 24
to 27 of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 28. Also, the financial risk management analysis of the Group can be found in
Note 42 to the Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the Year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Group Financial
Summary on page 23 of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Group'’s
risk management, internal control, ESG, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement, the Corporate Governance Report
and this Report of Directors on pages 24 to 27, pages 76 to 101 and pages 102 to 125,
respectively, and in the Group’s corporate website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company has always abided by the environmental-friendly sustainable development
commitment in the process of production and operation, strictly complied with
the environmental protection laws and regulations in the places where it operates,
established and improved the environmental management system and monitoring
system, promoted an efficient and green pattern for production and operation,
committed to building a resource-saving and environment-friendly enterprise. For the
Year, the Group focused on promoting its subordinated production units to conduct
various lean production transformation projects, so as to promote an energy-saving
and profit-increasing production pattern; proactively responded to national policies to
strengthen the management of hazardous wastes; at the same time, further standardized
the environmental information management, laying an information foundation for
setting the corporate goals of energy conservation and emission reduction.

The Group is committed to creating a green and comfortable office environment,
carries out a variety of green publicity and energy consumption management methods,
encourages all employees to participate in self-inspection to constantly strengthen
employees’ awareness of environmental protection and energy saving. Meanwhile,
the Group further regulates garbage classification management to make a beautiful
environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work from time to time and continue
to explore the direction of improvement and optimization of environmental management
in its business operations in order to fulfill its commitments to realize corporate economic
and environmental sustainability.
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In order to further improve our information disclosure level in environment, society and
governance and respond to our stakeholders’ concerns, the Group will continuously
disclose the independent Environmental, Social and Governance Report. For details of
the Group’s environmental protection work and performance, please refer to the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
be published in due course.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the Year is set
out in note 4 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 133 to 134 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB3.2 cents per share).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the last five financial years
is set out on page 23 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 14 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture as at
31 December 2023 are set out in notes 20, 21 and 39 to the Financial Statements,
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year together with
the reasons for such movements are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and also in
notes 27 and 29 to the Financial Statements. As at the end of the reporting period, the
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted to RMB946,344,000 (2022:
RMB1,306,486,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND REMAINING LIFE

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at the special
general meeting (the “Share Option Scheme”) held on 24 October 2017 (the “Share
Option Scheme Adoption Date"”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the Share
Option Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this annual report, it has a remaining
life of approximately 3 years 7 months.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as set out
in paragraph (a) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to the Group; (ii) to
reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth and success of the
Group.

(a) Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group,
any executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding an executive,
managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member of the Group, any
proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time Employee, or a person for the
time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of the
Group, a consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of the Group, a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the Group, or an
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any of the foregoing persons
(together, “Eligible Persons” and each an “Eligible Person”).
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(b) Determination of eligibility
(i) The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any Eligible
Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for the Company’s shares (the
“Shares”) under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any option shall
be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of their
contributions to the development, growth and success of the Group.

(i) For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by the Company for
the subscription of Shares to any person who falls within the definition of
Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless the Directors otherwise determine,
be construed as a grant of options under the Share Option Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such information
and supporting evidence as the Board may in its absolute discretion request
from time to time (including before the offer of a grant of option, at the
time of acceptance of a grant of option and at the time of exercise of
an option) for the purpose of assessing and/or determining his eligibility
or continuing eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a Grantee or that of
his close associates or for purposes in connection with the terms of an
option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share Option Scheme and the
administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options which may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option
scheme of the Company) shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date (“Scheme Mandate Limit"”), provided
that the Company may at any time as the Board may think fit seek approval from the
Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the maximum number
of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options which may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.

Despite the above-mentioned, the maximum number of Shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of the Company)
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the Share
Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Share Option Scheme
was passed at the special general meeting on 24 October 2017 would be 947,108,220
Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date. At the beginning and the end of the Year,
the total number of securities available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
83,876,000 Shares and 81,610,000 Shares, respectively, representing approximately
0.90% and 0.87% of the issued Shares, respectively. As at the date of this annual
report, the total number of securities available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 81,610,000 Shares and the percentage of the issued Shares that it represents is
approximately 0.87%. During the Year, no option or award was granted under any
scheme of the Company. Therefore, the number of shares that may be issued in respect
of options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company during the Year
divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the Year is not applicable
to the Company.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Where
any further grant of options to such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and which may be granted to
such Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant would exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue at such time, such further grant shall be separately approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates or close
associates (as the case may be) abstaining from voting.

Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing on the Share
Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to any Eligible Person
as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on acceptance of the offer, grant
such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible Person.

Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition, restriction or
limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in the Share Option Scheme as
the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the
option), including but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing continuing
eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or limitations relating to the achievement
of performance, operating or financial targets by the Company and/or the Grantee,
the satisfactory performance or maintenance by the Grantee of certain conditions or
obligations or the time or period when the right to exercise the option in respect of all or
some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest, provided that the period within
which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on a date not more than ten (10) years
from the date of the grant of the option.
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The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the Eligible
Persons to whom options shall be granted, the number of Shares subject to each option
and the date on which the options shall be granted. The options may be exercised at
any time during the option period subject to certain conditions, restrictions or limitations
imposed pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme. The basis for determining
the subscription price is also specified precisely in the rules of the Share Option Scheme.
There is no performance target specified in the Share Option Scheme. The Directors
consider that allowing the Board discretion to fix, among other things, the minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, performance targets
and the subscription price, upon the grant of options will better serve the purpose of
the Share Option Scheme as this will allow the Board to grant options that cater to the
specific circumstances of the Grantee, taking into consideration the Grantee’s seniority,
experience, past work performance, field of expertise, etc., and thereby providing
appropriate motivation and incentive to the Grantee.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the Grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company within the period specified in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once such acceptance is made, the
option shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect from the offer
date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by the Company from time to time.
Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of such option.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as our Board
may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of the relevant option
(and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option) but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the offer date; and

(i)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with
reorganization of capital restructure.

A "] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that were still
outstanding as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

EE R=B==% rEE KEE KEE KEE R-BZZF
RRAEZHER RiLAH (Br) TR ME2) -A-H BRI BT BH# B4% t=A=t-H
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category Price 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HKS) Exercise Period (Note 2) 2023 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023
@) &%
(a) Directors
RERTL ZEZTEN\AZTRA 0972 ZZZZENAZ+REE 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
ZZZZE\AZ+EA
Ms. Chen Yanling 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
2RELL ZEZTE\AZTRA 0972 ZZZZEJ\AZ+RHE 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
ZZZZE\AZTEA
Ms. Miao Guil 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
ZZZ-EnA-H 220 “E--%NA-BE 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
—ZZ2=-E\F=1-A
1 September 2021 1 September 2021 to
31 August 2031
LERAE ZEZTE\AZTRA 0972 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
pSilhn ZEZTE\AZTRA 0972 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
Dr. Zhu Xun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
FREELE ZEZTE\AZTRA 0972 ZZZFTHNAZ+HE 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 -
(R=%== ZE=REN\ACTIA
MA-BEE)
Mr. Patrick Sun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
(resigned on 25 August 2030
1 April 2023)
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EE R=8==% rEE KEE KEE KEE R-BZZF
RRARERER RUHAH (Br) fTRAME2) -B-H 2R BTk B BA¥ TZA=t-8
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category Price 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HKS) Exercise Period (Note 2) 2023 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023
(b) EE ZZZTE\AZ1RA 0972 ZZZTENAZ+ HE 61,376,000 - - - 266,000 61,110,000
ZZE=TE)\AZTEA
(b) Employees 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
ZFZ-%nR-H 220 —EZ-%NA-BE 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
ZZ=-£\R=1-A
1 September 2021 1 September 2021 to
31 August 2031
H 83,876,000 - - - 2,266,000 81,610,000
Total:
P 5 Notes:

(1) ZE_T-TZFNA-FRNAN_Z-—FH
A—RB (BRERL B8 s ERIKTES 5
7%1.050%8702.310%8 7T °

) BERESZHETELOBEESSTERETS
Eﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁﬂjEHH%§:¢W&1I35
FEHOUEE  BHR/3333% (=D2—) -
FPERCE T4 xﬁl%’fﬂ%ﬁ&%?%iiéﬁ(ﬁﬂ
B) & BIRKER D = F RN EW A ETTE

M

The closing prices per Share immediately before 26 August 2020 and 1 September 2021 (the
dates on which the options were granted) were HK$1.050 and HK$2.310 respectively.

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme would be subject to certain vesting
conditions (if any) and vested in tranches of 33.33% (one-third) each on each anniversary date
following the date of grant for three years. Subject to the satisfaction of certain performance
appraisal conditions and certain performance targets (if any), options could be exercised in
three-year installments and until the expiry of options.
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2022 SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND REMAINING
LIFE

The 2022 Share Award Scheme (the “2022 Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
by the Board at a Board meeting held on 25 October 2022 (the “2022 Share Award
Scheme Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the 2022 Share
Award Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this annual report, it has a remaining
life of approximately 8 years 7 months.

Purpose of the 2022 Share Award Scheme

The 2022 Share Award Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions which the grantees have made or may
make to the Group. The 2022 Share Award Scheme will provide the grantees with
the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving the
following objectives: (i) motivating the grantees; and/or (ii) attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the grantees whose contributions are,
will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

Eligible Participants

Eligible participants who may participate in the 2022 Share Award Scheme include
Directors or candidate Directors (including independent non-executive Directors), senior
and mid-level management, professional technicians, personnel to be introduced by the
Group and other eligible participants.

Scheme Limit

In any event, the aggregate number of Shares under the 2022 Share Award Scheme
available to be granted to the grantees during the valid period shall not exceed 3% of
the issued share capital of the Company, being around 250 million Shares (as changed
from time to time) throughout the valid period; and the number of Shares which may
be awarded to an individual grantee under the 2022 Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time) in
any 12-month period. Any Shares covered by an award (or portion of an award) which
is forfeited, not vested, canceled or expires (whether voluntarily or involuntarily) shall
remain with the trustee and become available for granting new awards under the 2022
Share Award Scheme.
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Source of the Shares

The Company, during the valid period of the 2022 Share Award Scheme, will at all times
reserve or instruct in writing the trustee to purchase existing Shares on Stock Exchange
to keep available such number of Shares as shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements
of the 2022 Share Award Scheme. The Company will not issue new Shares to satisfy the
awards under the 2022 Share Award Scheme.

Grant of Awards

The Board shall periodically approve each grant plan which shall include (1) the range
or the maximum number of the Shares to be granted; (2) the scope of the proposed
grantees; (3) the price range or the minimum price of the purchase price; and (4) the
duration of the grant plan for each batch of the proposed grant under the 2022 Share
Award Scheme from time to time during the valid period (the “Grant Plan”) and such
Grant Plan shall be proposed by the administrator.

With prior approval of the Board, the administrator may choose any eligible participant
as the grantee from time to time, such eligible participants shall be granted awards
within the valid period if relevant terms and conditions are met. When determining the
grantees, the administrator shall consider, among other things, the grantees’ current and
expected contributions to the Company, the financial situation of the Company, and the
objectives and future development of the whole business of the Group.

Any grant of an award to any Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of any
member of the Group, or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), shall
be subject to the prior approval of the independent non-executive Directors and shall
otherwise be subject to compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, unless
exempted from reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules if the award forms part of the
relevant Director’s remuneration under his/her service contract.

Conditions and Vesting of Awards

The term of each award shall be the term stated in the award agreement. During
the valid period, the administrator may, subject to all applicable laws, determine the
provisions, terms, vesting standards and conditions of each award including, but not
limited to, the vesting schedule, the number of shares upon vesting of the award, and
satisfaction of any target setting. Each award shall be subject to the terms of an award
agreement approved by the administrator and the administrator shall have the right to
adjust the vesting schedule of the awards granted to the grantees and waive any vesting
conditions subject to applicable laws.

The vesting of the awards granted under the 2022 Share Award Scheme is subject to
the continuous service, the fulfillment of the vesting conditions of the relevant grantees
and any other applicable conditions stated in the award agreement. The awards shall
be vested in phases, which shall be determined by the administrator and stated in the
award agreement.
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The unvested awards in each vesting period shall lapse automatically and be forfeited for
no consideration upon cancellation, except as otherwise determined by the administrator
in its sole discretion.

Shares granted upon settlement of an award (or any portion thereof) shall be transferred
to the grantees in the name of the Trust.

Unless otherwise agreed by the administrator, the specific vesting arrangements are
as follows: the awards, subject to the Two Target Adjustments (as defined below) and
further reductions and restrictions as stipulated in the rule of the 2022 Share Award
Scheme and the award agreement, shall vest in six (6) years from the grant date (the
grantee is available to vest and settle the Shares by the trustee subject to the satisfaction
of the terms and conditions on each anniversary date from the grant date or any
date determined by the administrator, a “Vesting Date”; each of the three one-year
period, a “Vesting Period”), provided that the grantee (1) remains an employee in
the respective Vesting Period ending on the corresponding Vesting Date, (2) has not
provided notice of his or her intention to resign or be subject to any termination process
on or before such date, and (3) otherwise complies with this 2022 Share Award Scheme
and the award agreement. In accordance with this term, the following vesting schedule
applies to each award granted hereunder: the first 33.33% (one-third) of the awards
shall vest on the first Vesting Date; and the second 33.33% (one-third) of the awards
shall vest on the second Vesting Date, and the last 33.33% (one-third) of the awards
shall vest on the third Vesting Date.

The amount of the awards vested may be further reduced by a certain percentage
as specified in the award agreement if the following targets are not met: (1) the
performance target of the Company, or (2) the performance target of the grantee
(collectively, the “Two Targets”; such reduction, the “Two Target Adjustment”). The
Two Targets shall be further elaborated in the award agreement.

Subject to the fulfillment of all the vesting conditions of the vesting of the awards,
the administrator may determine at its sole discretion to either: direct and procure the
trustee to transfer the number of Shares underlying the vested awards to the grantee
or its wholly owned entity or in the event of the grantee’s death, to the legal personal
representative(s) of the grantee; or direct and procure the trustee to sell the number of
Shares underlying the vested awards, by on-market transactions and pay the grantee the
actual selling price in cash arising from such sale after the full payment of the purchase
price and tax within a reasonable time period.
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Award Purchase Price

Subject to any applicable laws, the purchase price or the consideration for the
purchase of an award (if any), and the method of payment, shall be determined by the
administrator with the previous approvals of the Board.

During the Year, the trustee purchased a total number of 48,433,000 Shares on the
market for the purpose of the 2022 Share Award Scheme.

Since the 2022 Share Award Scheme Adoption Date, no awards had been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2022 Share Award Scheme and there are no
outstanding awards.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the laws of
Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2023, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers were 2.1% and 10.6% respectively of the Group’s sales for the Year.

In 2023, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers were 22.9% and 47.1% respectively of the Group’s purchases for the
Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their close associates or any Shareholder
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary Shares at a price of
HK$4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed below, the net
proceeds raised from such international placing and public offer, being approximately
HK$6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB5,407.6 million), are used in
accordance with the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 15
October 2010.

As at 31 December 2023, proceeds from the international placing and public offer of the
Company have been fully utilized.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

Ms. Chen Yanling

Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and CFO)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Dr. Zhu Xun

Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. Che Fengsheng, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
and Dr. Zhu Xun shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election as Directors at the 2024 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng being the executive Directors,
renewed their service contracts with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 28 October 2022, subject to termination before expiry by either party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Each of Dr. Che and Dr. Guo
currently receives an annual salary of RMB7,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 respectively
as an executive (such annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board
and the Remuneration Committee at their discretion, having regard to the performance
of the relevant executive Director.

Ms. Chen Yanling has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Ms. Chen
currently receives an annual salary of HK$1,440,000 as an executive (such annual salary
is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a
discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
at their discretion, having regard to her performance.
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Ms. Miao Guili has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 17 October 2022, subject to termination before expiry by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Ms. Miao
currently receives an annual salary of HK$2,760,000 as an executive (such annual salary
is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a
discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
at their discretion, having regard to her performance.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Dr. Zhang
currently receives an annual salary of HK$700,000 as an executive (such annual salary
is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a
discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
at their discretion, having regard to his performance.

Each of the executive Directors shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination of the
salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him/her.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan, being the independent non-
executive Directors, renewed their respective letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of one year, commencing from 4 September 2023, 20 February 2024 and 1
April 2024 respectively. The Director’s fee for the year end 31 December 2023 for Mr.
Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan are HK$412,000, HK$412,000
and HK$225,000 respectively.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors standing for re-election
at the 2024 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than the
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS,
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

During the Year, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Furthermore, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements. None of these
transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Group has not conducted any other connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction (as defined under the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into between the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries nor the Company’s controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had the
following interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

Directors’ interests in Shares or underlying Shares

REBQT D
Approximate
Percentage of

RPEB

Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
BETTE REAEER 5.133,125,704 5% (47 2) 55.02% (4 &)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 3,379,917,2250% ({7 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Interest in controlled corporations
3,379,917,225 Shares (L)

—BITBAL (PR
1,745,084,813% ({1 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
1,745,084,813 Shares (L)

Hinigz (H3E2)
8,123,666 % (11 2)
Other interest (Note 2)
8,123,666 Shares (L)
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Approximate
Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
S EREEA 5.133,125,704 % (47 2") 55.02% (4 &)
Dr. Guo Weicheng 11,350,000 8% (47 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
Beneficial owner
11,350,000 Shares (L)
X EE RS
1,100,884,399 1% (47 &)
Interest in a controlled corporation
1,100,884,399 Shares (L)
—BITB AL (FHEE3)
4,020,891,305 % (47 8)
A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,020,891,305 Shares (L)
RABER REEERER 5,133,125,704 % (47 &) 55.02% (4F &)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 255,582,886 1% (17 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Interest in a controlled corporation
255,582,886 Shares (L)

—BITB AL (FH5E4)
4,877,542, 818 % (11 8)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
4,877,542,818 Shares (L)

BRI 1 EmER A (HFES)
Ms. Chen Yanling 4,000,000 3% (4 &)

Beneficial owner (Note 5)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

BWMBLL BEmEA A (HES)

Ms. Miao Guili 9,000,000 % (478)
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
9,000,000 Shares (L)

BENLE Ensa A Ps)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3,000,000 f% (47 8")

Beneficial owner (Note 5)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

KAEL BEEA A (H3E5)
Dr. Zhu Xun 3,000,000 8% (¥ 2&)

Beneficial owner (Note 5)
3,000,000 Shares (L)
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4,000,000 % (45 &)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

9,000,000 % (472"
9,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,000 3% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,000 % (4 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

0.04% (4 2&)
0.04% (L)

0.10% (47 &)
0.10% (L)

0.03% (4 &)
0.03% (L)

0.03% (47 &)
0.03% (L)
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Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested in the
11,350,000 Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held
by Dr. Guo Weicheng, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited
and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan Management
(PTC) Limited is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested in the long position
of 8,123,666 Shares held by Sihuan Management (PTC) Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be interested in
the 8,123,666 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and
255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process
International Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited,
respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested
in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
377,267,528 Shares and 1,100,884,399 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Successmax Global Holdings Limited, respectively.

On 26 August 2020, Ms. Chen Yanling was granted to purchase 4,000,000 Shares; Ms.
Miao Guili was granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares; Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was granted
to purchase 3,000,000 Shares and Dr. Zhu Xun was granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares
pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 24 October 2017. On 1
September 2021, Ms. Miao Guili was granted to purchase 6,000,000 Shares pursuant to the
Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 24 October 2017.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S” denotes
the Director’s short position in such Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December
2023.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief executive
or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial interests by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company, and none of the above
persons have exercised the said rights during the Year. The Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries were not a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's charitable donations during the year
amounted to RMB 14,303,000 (2022: RMB535,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Employee Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, every Director or other officers of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts,
provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the said persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors for
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or more (including
short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company:

BRREEE8 BEME 55 47 48 8 BREBNEI

Approximate
Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
aEBLLE REEEREE 5,133,125,704 3% (47 &) 55.02% (4F &)
Mr. Meng Xianhui 377,267,528 % (17 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Interest in a controlled corporation
377,267,528 Shares (L)

—BITB AL (FHEE1)
4,755,858,176 f% (41 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
4,755,858,176 Shares (L)

Proper Process International Limited BEmEAA 5,133,125,704 % (17 &) 55.02% (47 &)
2,882,469,225% (17 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Beneficial owner
2,882,469,225 Shares (L)

—BITB AL (FHEE2)
2,250,656,479 % (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 2)
2,250,656,479 Shares (L)

Network Victory Limited E=nEAA 5,133,125,704 %% (47 &) 55.02% ({1 &)
497,448,000 % (47 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
Beneficial owner
497,448,000 Shares (L)

—BITB AL (PHEE3)
4,635,677,704 % (11 8)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,635,677,704 Shares (L)

Successmax Global Holdings Limited E=REAA 5,133,125,704 % (47 &) 55.02% (41 &)
1,100,884,399 % (}F &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
Beneficial owner
1,100,884,399 Shares (L)

—BITEB AL (FH5E4)
4,032,241,305 % (47 8)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
4,032,241,305 Shares (L)
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BRRER LB BEEE /56 B 67 48 & BRESATI L
Approximate
Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
Victory Faith International Limited E=nEAA 5,133,125,704 % (#F &) 55.02% (#1&)
377,267,528 % (11 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
Beneficial owner
377,267,528 Shares (L)
—BAITEA L (MI5E5)
4,755,858,176 % (11 &)
A concert party to an agreement (Note 5)
4,755,858,176 Shares (L)
Mingyao Capital Limited EXBEBA 5,133,125,704 % ({1 &) 55.02% (47 &)
255,582,886 % (11 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Beneficial owner
255,582,886 Shares (L)

— BB AL (HI5E6)
4,877,542,818% (47 8)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 6)
4,877,542,818 Shares (L)

B o

(1 REBEEFRBEGROIE37RIBKEME &
BELEERRANEFAEE  THERE
Proper Process International Limited - Network
Victory Limited * Successmax Global Holdings
Limited & Mingyao Capital Limited % Bl #5 &
8,123,666 % + 11,350,000 f% - 2,882,469,225
% - 497,448,000 A% - 1,100,884,399 ix %
255,582,886 X f& 1) 2 A #E % o

2 BEEFRIEGIFI17TRI18KR
5E ' Proper Process International Limited
BWERREBSABE BHEMRE
Network Victory Limited * Successmax Global
Holdings Limited ~ Victory Faith International
Limited & Mingyao Capital Limited % Bl ¥ &
8,123,666 % + 11,350,000 iz * 497,448,000
% ~1,100,884,399 % + 377,267,528 % %
255,582,886 % ik {7t #E 2

Notes:

m

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
1,100,884,399 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Proper Process International Limited, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Proper Process International Limited is deemed to
be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 1,100,884,399
Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.
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Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Network Victory Limited is deemed to be interested
in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares,
377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng,
Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Successmax Global Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225
Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Victory Faith International Limited is deemed to be
interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225
Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mingyao Capital Limited is deemed to be interested
in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
1,100,884,399 Shares and 377,267,528 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited and Victory Faith International Limited, respectively.

The letter “L" denotes the Shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the Shareholder’s short position in such Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an interest or a short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of the Company recorded
under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76 to 101 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital were
held by members of the public as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no significant events
after the reporting period up to the date of this annual report.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee was satisfied with Ernst & Young's work, their independence,
and their objectivity, and therefore recommended the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
(which have indicated their willingness to continue in office) as the Group’s external
auditor for 2024 for Shareholders’ approval at the 2024 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 were audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the Company
in the preceding three years.
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EZERCBE CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

B EHRANEI3SIBNE  RART - Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of Directors

CEFHREmETIRABREESENEENT subsequent to the date of the Company’s interim report 2023 are as follows:

1. BUFROTEERABIERA-_ZT-= 1. Dr. Zhu Xun, an independent non-executive Director, resigned as an independent
FHZATNLBEERERESZITRER non-executive director of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (stock code:
Al (RMAEE : 503) (ZA R ERER 503), a company that was listed on the Stock Exchange, on 19 December 2023.
FrEm) MBI FNITEE - FR T He was appointed as a non-executive director of HighTide Therapeutics, Inc. (stock
TFE+—A=ZTHEZEREXREY code: 2511), a company that has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 22
(BDREE: 2511) (RAFRIEZT==F December 2023, on 30 November 2020.
T AT ZHEEBRZAT ) BB
TEE -

REEG D By Order of the Board

EEFSTFE Dr. Che Fengsheng

BESAELE Chairman of the Board

“EomME=A=-+/\H 28 March 2024
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Ernst & Young Lok EsHENE AR Tel E&E: +852 2846 9888
27IF, One Taikoo Place HHEMEHEEEEI795E  Fax{HH: +852 2868 4432
979 King’'s Road Kt —EE2748 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 133 to 300, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs")
issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

126 | mHImEs s £ B AR 2 F SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



FEETEE

HREFSASRBRMANERAE  R5Y
BHAARGAMBRROBARREEZNETIR -
EURRETELGE VB RRBERETEML
FWRERNE R TETEEN R TEELE
SEEHREBENER - RMABTNEE-FBEE
FEar RN EYNEHA DAL SE S -

BPCEETT RANMELHMAF A E
HBEHZAENEFROMANEE 2R
B REARBEWEE - BEM - RPNET
EBRERITREE T ENES M B MREKNE
RER AR R EHEVE T2 o AFTRRITE S
BEFNER  BEEY T U EEMAITOIRZR -

B 2 AR S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit

REERIMGEMBERRERBIERIRM TR -

HREETER

Key audit matter

opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

EMNEFNNEERARESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(2 Z NN

Capitalisation of development costs

RIZBZ=F+ZA=+—0 BESELBEAXAEIEEERD
EEETHRBRAREREL  SEHARK61915ET - HEED
BT HER &M FE2.10(a) (47 B 5 8 | R IR B 69 P B IR RS 1 & R
- ERTEEEREHFRENMBER  FTEETERNERMG
5T B -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had capitalised development
costs in progress amounting to approximately RMB619.1 million for
the development of new pharmaceutical products. The expenditure on
development activities was capitalised when all the criteria mentioned
in note 2.10(a) “Research and development” were satisfied. Significant
management estimation and judgement were required in determining
whether the Group met the capitalisation criteria.

R RN ARSI SR M 5E2.10() [ 75 B2 2] - B &
3 IFAERANERNE ] KM 18\ EE] ©

Related disclosures are included in note 2.10(a) “Research and
development”, note 3(d) “Capitalisation of development costs”
and note 18 “Intangible assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.

BMARTESECANEHERRIEETMEAZREFE
BEstEREIBRNMTE BEUES THBRABEHNEELNS
Wi ERTTEE G L BET i T B IR B H RN R 15 e 2
We assessed the compliance of the accounting policy and
methodology for capitalisation of expenditures used by the Group
with International Accounting Standard 38, obtained and examined
trial readouts and regulatory announcements, and evaluated the
management judgement on the satisfaction of criteria through
comparison to industry practice.

BMTE AR TEERRERANERNM RN IMEIEMNE
HEZFOHEEAEZES - WES T AEEEMRMAIITIERE -
We obtained an understanding of, assessed and tested the relevant
internal controls over the Group’s internal governance and approval
process on capitalisation of development costs and examined the
internal commercial and technical feasibility reports.

BFEHE T EEEE MM BERRPERKAERNMENBEBRRZE RS ©
We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of
capitalisation of development costs in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EMNBSANAREBERETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Y - B RREABE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

RZZZ=F+-A=+—H BEEEHREREWE  HFE REH -
CENONRARE217TS-BE T - PEARKMBEBGTEHBE —Z5|
HESETERANFEEN T ERRFEIEZERNMBRE LR
FEEREEM -

The Group had significant property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB2,175 million as at 31 December 2023. A series
of major policies related to the in-depth reform of the pharmaceutical
industry imposed by the government of the People’s Republic of
China have created uncertainty in the financial performance of the
Group’s main products in general.

Hit - ERERTE TREESTBEENAEEREENER LA
RMRBEeRBAGAIRD SR HYWE BELKRGBEBN
ReEFEU((ReEEEML])ET TRENE - ZEFENEM
WESIEETEE  BRBMENFARFRENM LY & EZHE
K fhEt e

Accordingly, the management identified impairment indicators and
performed impairment assessment of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") that the property, plant and equipment were related to
by estimating the recoverable amounts based on the value in use
calculation using discounted cash flow projections. This matter was
significant to our audit because the process of impairment assessment
was complex and involved significant judgements and estimates.

MHERBRAONGA M BRRMT27[F2REERE] - MT2.8
[ BERZEBARTE]  WIE30) [ - BE REERE]
KMIEE 1412 - R RERE]

Related disclosures are included in note 2.7 “Impairment of non-
financial assets”,
depreciation”, note 3(b) “Impairment of property, plant and
equipment” and note 14 “Property, plant and equipment” to the

note 2.8 “Property, plant and equipment and

consolidated financial statements.

BMEABEEERBHRMTEREDT PR E -
We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in the
evaluation of the methodologies used in the impairment analysis.

BHMBALREANSREEEEUNE L ZFEMEHERAE
FETHERRR RREMNEGWSNE  BHEEKREKK
AT L KB EREAERBOR -

We evaluated the key assumptions including the products’ projected
market shares, expected selling prices and associated costs applied in
the future revenues and operating result forecasts by comparing the
forecasts with the historical performance of the respective CGUs and
the business development plan.

BMAHESERGAVBREPEYE  BERRENRED
HEEERRE °

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures concerning
impairment of property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BMNEFNNEEARENEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of intangible assets

RIZBZ=F+ZA=+—0 BE£ENETPERRERELR
BERADNHBARBEIOINEETIARE 120488 - E12E
ERESEMEENERMFAEXNEARMAEETHEMRENSE
BHERSFFAINMERRBE@MENRE EITEMCENEER
Hap B EIE L RERE - L FIEP R ERE IR G HE R fhET o E
A mER  RRERFE  FUBRRAR X - ZEREF (A8
BHOREARLREL -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had product development in
progress and deferred development costs amounting to approximately
RMB619.1 million and RMB120.4 million, respectively. The
management made impairment assessment based on estimated future
cash flows generated by all pharmaceutical patents or licences in
capitalisation of development costs and all product development in
progress that the Group possessed, and projected product lifecycles
experienced in the pharmaceutical industry. This matter involved
significant management judgements and estimates, such as forecasted
revenue growth, future beneficial life, profit margin and discount
rate. Changes in these assumptions might lead to a change in the
impairment results.

AR RN AR E MBS mEM T 2.7 ESmEERE] - HizE2.10
[EEE] ~ M3k 3(a) [ AL 5 3R AR RETTH & B R E ] &M
sl mEEE] -

Related disclosures are included in note 2.7 “Impairment of
non-financial assets”, note 2.10 “Intangible assets”, note
3(a) “Impairment of deferred development costs and product
development in progress” and note 18 “Intangible assets” to the
consolidated financial statements.

BFEANBEEZERBE M ERES TR TR AR E -
We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluation
of the methodologies and discount rate used in the impairment
analysis.

BMAANERReRENERERREEELNEATISMHE -
TAEEE LB EEMNEBKAR - ¥E T aREE M — 888 Rl
BB ARMELEHE (HMAER) - RHMBBRLEBREREREL
AT HA RS P EHE R SRET (R B IR B TR0 -

We evaluated the key assumptions in the cash flow forecast,
including the products’ projected market shares, expected selling
prices and associated costs to be incurred against consensus forecasts
of certain therapeutic areas and benchmark data for comparable
companies where available. We assessed the management’s forecast
by comparing of the actual results and the projections made in prior
periods.

B ERERNRE M BRRPEBLEERENKZEZERE °
We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of impairment
of intangible assets in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

—E== —E-_F
2023 2022
B 5 AR TR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEKEER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
g Revenue 5 1,860,539 2,181,189
B E AR Cost of sales (564,895) (693,608)
EF GROSS PROFIT 1,295,644 1,487,581
HA A Other income 5 197,735 157,919
H bl — F 58 Other gains — net 5 216,148 350,174
SERMBEAEREEIE Impairment losses on non-current assets 19 - (1,337,808)
FRAERETENREREREIE  Impairment losses on investments accounted for using
the equity method 21 - (389,311)
2k =153 Distribution expenses (442,257) (471,144)
1TERFAX Administrative expenses (468,958) (552,192)
M RAEREZ Research and development expenses (577,656) (936,581)
HEMAX Other expenses (58,958) (139,365)
SRR (BR) OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 161,698 (1,830,727)
b Finance expenses 7 (269,337) (211,176)
DL RAERETENRE Share of profits and losses of investments accounted for
St M) K 48 using the equity method 21 (53,621) (80,875)
RS R M R ATE R LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 (161,260) (2,122,778)
FTisHiA X Income tax expense 10 (96,427) (196,794)
BFEREERNFEESER LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (257,687) (2,319,572)
ERIEEEER DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
RIS EBOFE R R Profit for the year from discontinued operations 11 - 36,296
FEEE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (257,687) (2,283,276)
AR AL - Attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZ PN Owners of the Company (54,017) (1,914,918)
FEFERRE 2 Non-controlling interests (203,670) (368,358)
(257,687) (2,283,276)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RE-P-=#+-A=t+-ALFE

—E== —E-_F
2023 2022
B 5 AR®T T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEER LOSS FOR THE YEAR (257,687) (2,283,276)
FEHMEZHEER  MRHHE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX - -
FEXHBEARE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (257,687) (2,283,276)
AT AL (L - Attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZ PN Owners of the Company (54,017) (1,914,918)
FEFERRE = Non-controlling interests (203,670) (368,358)
FEXHEBRER TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR (257,687) (2,283,276)
AR®T AREETT
RMB RMB
ARAEBESEEAEW LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
BRER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
BRENEE Basic loss per share
FEEBA For loss for the year (0.58) % cents (20.52) % cents
BERKEEBNER For loss from continuing operations (0.58) 7 cents (20.90) 4 cents
GRREEEE Diluted loss per share
FEEE For loss for the year (0.58) % cents (20.52) % cents
BEKEEBNER For loss from continuing operations (0.58) % cents (20.90) % cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
—E=F+ZA=+—H

+=—BA=+—H
31 December
—E-= —F-—
2023 2022

Ft 5 AR TR ARETT

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - WE R Property, plant and equipment 14 2,174,591 2,300,959
HEME Investment properties 15 245,930 221,059
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 667,438 697,367
EES Goodwill 17 1,853 1,853
mIVEE Intangible assets 18 775,962 626,462
FAERESTENEE Investments accounted for using the equity method 21 649,619 682,174
BATFEFABENSRERE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 354,275 225,164
HibEmeh g e Other non-current assets 23 331,481 594,359
RERTEE B Deferred tax assets 33 31,770 96,774
EHEARFER Pledged deposits 26 98,756 143,994
ERMBNEELTE Total non-current assets 5,331,675 5,590,165
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
rE Inventories 24 557,323 606,700
B 5 & B R AR 3R Trade and other receivables 25 1,134,750 1,118,628
BATFEFABENSREE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 589,016 962,988
ReERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 26 3,778,666 3,828,863
EHERF R K E TR Pledged deposits and time deposits 26 144,000 33,207
RENVEEATE Total current assets 6,203,755 6,550,386
FEBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 & E MR Trade and other payables 31 1,710,825 1,926,944
FHERITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 34 269,680 327,075
EHBE Contract liabilities 32 131,785 164,010
FERFRIGHE Income tax payable 44,205 67,862
HEBE Lease liabilities 16 12,385 13,184
HEMREasE Other current liabilities 30 1,937,922 33,925
ME R Total current liabilities 4,106,802 2,533,000

F[Z R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

135



AR A B ISAIROR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E=F+=ZA=+—8
31 DECEMBER 2023

+=—BA=+—H
31 December
—E-= -
2023 2022
B 5 AR® T ARBTT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BERBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,096,953 4,017,386
BEERRBERS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,428,628 9,607,551
EFRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
REFIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 33 70,323 99,040
FHERITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 34 864,142 808,383
HEBE Lease liabilities 16 30,276 45,856
aRARE Contract liabilities 32 44,190 5,660
HiIEREaE Other non-current liabilities 30 1,282,673 3,008,786
FERB B ELAE Total non-current liabilities 2,291,604 3,967,725
FEE Net assets 5,137,024 5,639,826
& EQUITY
EREHEEAELER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
(N Share capital 27 77,058 77,058
EFRRAD Treasury shares (33,811) -
f& 15 % (B Share premium 27 3,882,304 3,882,304
Hin % Other reserves 29 (439,765) (528,850)
REB & F Retained earnings 29 946,344 1,306,486
4,432,130 4,736,998
FEERER Non-controlling interests 704,894 902,828
B Total equity 5,137,024 5,639,826
BHSH SRAE A
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
EE Ea
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_ZT-_=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMB

ER 2023

ARFEE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
R EERG ROEE EtRE  REEX &5 FERER BRE
Non-
Share  Treasury Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
Mt AR%Tn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Notes RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
RZB-=%+-F=1-H At 31 December 2022 77,058 - 3882304  (528,850) 1,300,486 4,736,998 902,828 5,639,826
ERER Loss for the year - - - - (54,017) (54,017)  (203,670)  (257,687)
EERMREEE Employee share award scheme
-EIRBEE - Value of employee services 28 - - - 89,084 - 89,084 - 89,084
“E-CERERS Final 2022 dividend 12 - - - - (298,560) (298,560 - (298,560)
IAFHERRE RS Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - (12,0000  (12,000)
EREREETERES Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund 29 - - - 4,241 (8,241) - - -
HoR-ERHREEE Purchase of shares for the 2022
BERH Share Award Scheme - (3381) - - - (3381) - (3381)
BEREEES ZBEHRARDE() Spedal reserve for maintenance and
production funds (i) - - - 3,324 (3,324) - - -
B AR IR R A Capital contribution by non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - (7,564) - (7,564) 17,736 10,172
RZBZ=%+-F=1-H At 31 December 2023 71,058 (33811) 3882304  (439,765) 946,344 4,432,130 704,894 5,137,024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=1+—BILFE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

ARAERAEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BA ROEE  EbERE  REEN B JFRER aEs

Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium Teserves earnings Total interests equity

Wi ARMTE ARETE ARBTL ARBTL AREBTL ARETL ARETR
Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

WZEZ—-F+ZA=F—H At31December 2021

FRER Loss for the year

EERMHEBHE Employee share award scheme
-BIRKEE — Value of employee services

ZE-FRBRER Final 2021 and 2022 interim dividends
T CFhERE

BREEEERES Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund

BEREEES I ER Special reserve for maintenance and
BHLHE() production funds (i)

WBARRG < ER Recognition of redemption labilities on
AEER subsidiaries shares

WBARMFHERRERELE  Capital contribution by non-controling

shareholders of subsidiaries
HENRBLR Disposals of subsidiaries

pesl]

77,058 3882304  (221437) 4546223 8,284,148 865918 9,150,066

- - - (1914918) (1914918)  (368358) (2,283,276)

28 - - 89,666 - 89,666 - 89,666
12 N - - (1,315530) (1,315,530 - (1,315,530)
29 - - 9,289 (9,289) - - -
- - 3,368 - 3,368 - 3,368
- - (989,949 - (989,949 - (989,949
- - 580,213 - 580,213 399,787 980,000

- - - - - 5481 5481

WZZEZZF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022

77,058 3882304  (528,850) 1,306486 4,736,998 902,828 5,639,826

0] RBHEETEER  AEEASLEERBEE
SREANMBEELREBERERERS - &
EREEESTERELERER L E2HEEH
XHARL L ER EERFEESHOEE
RN ERBERESHME -

Note:

@

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to transfer production and
maintenance funds at a fixed rate based on revenue, to a specific reserve account. The
production and maintenance funds could be utilised when expenses or capital expenditures
on production maintenance and safety measures are incurred. The amount of production and
maintenance funds utilised would be deducted from that specific reserve account.

138 VY ER B8 s fE S B A PR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



mrelRenRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z-_=—F+-_A=+—HIFE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
Bt 5 AR TR ARETFT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
RETHHEESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EEEANES Cash generated from operations 35 283,284 203,473
B FTER Income tax paid (83,797) (156,980)
REFTHNRESREFHE Net cash flows from operating activities 199,487 46,493
REFDHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEE N h—BEeEEHE Capital contribution to associates and a joint venture - (478,000)
BEWE WENIEB Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (125,346) (402,459)
BEIREME Purchases of investment properties (1,296) -
BERFEE Purchases of intangible assets (170,072) (191,478)
BER AT EFAEBRREN Purchases of financial assets at fair value through
STREE profit or loss (10,091,380) (16,163,360)
PEZRATEFABEN Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
SREEMSHIE through profit or loss 10,468,006 15,451,028
HEWE - BERZER Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
FriS 5B plant and equipment 35 15,538 14,353
HE SR EERNSRIE Proceeds from disposal of items of intangible assets 36 3,984
E=FEHRBN Advances of loans to third parties (39,500) (79,464)
YN § /€] Advances of loans to associates - (78,000)
E=HENERFE Repayment of loans from third parties 4,317 57,609
HEKBAR - AKRES Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash 37 14,925 88,448
EAERE R E BF N Increase in pledged deposits and time deposits 26 (65,555) (32,570)
B U F B Interest received 160,204 148,788
RETEHMEE(FTA) Net cash flows from/(used in)
REREFHE investing activities 169,877 (1,661,121)
MEFBDRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BETRITE IR Repayment of bank borrowings (385,648) (313,926)
B E At {8 R IB Repayment of other borrowings (14,866) (1,500)
HIRTTRER New bank borrowings 384,012 456,168
EMER New other borrowings 1,573 24,152
HENRHARE Principal portion of lease payments 16 (16,453) (12,620)
L)=pNGIE P e HXHX% hE Capital contribution by non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 10,172 980,000
& Bl B 1n Shares repurchased (33,811) -
BERARRBRRI RS Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders 36 (298,560) (1,315,530)
B M FE AR AR 3R 2 A AR Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (12,000)
[SEAREAlNSS Interest paid 36 (53,980) (55,678)
REEFBHMARSREFHE Net cash flows used in financing activities (419,561) (238,934)
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MERESRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BE-_Z-_=F+_A=1+—BLLEE

—E== —E-_F
2023 2022
Bt 5 AR®T T ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RERREZEYRD FHE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (50,197) (1,853,562)
FUHReRBEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,828,863 5,682,425
FRASRRESZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 26 3,778,666 3,828,863
RELBRSEEBWERIT ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
& RiRTTH Cash and bank balances 2,944,379 3,144,842
BERVBHRLPONR=@AZ  Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of
EEHTEHRER less than three months when acquired 834,287 684,021
FREMBRAERR Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
GFERERERMIZ consolidated statement of financial position and the
ReRREEEY statement of cash flows 3,778,666 3,828,863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are the research and
development (“R&D"), and the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of the principal place of business
of the Group in Hong Kong is Room 4905, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the address of the principal place of
business in Beijing is 22/F, Building 4, Zhubang 2000, West Balizhuang, Chaoyang
District, Beijing 100025, the PRC.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to both years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for wealth
management products, notes receivable and equity investments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(0 the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
year as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

B G ERE 1 R R ERSBRELEEBLE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

BB & 5t 2RI 5 85k M8 RT
Amendments to IAS 8

BIfR g st ERIE 125 IERT

Amendments to IAS 12

B2t ERE 125 AEET
Amendments to IAS 12

Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related
assets (including goodwill), liabilities and any non-controlling interest;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained and any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

REEH
Insurance Contracts

DI E R EE
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BATIGET 6 E

Definition of Accounting Estimates

HE—XZEFHEERBERANELERE
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

BB NE —F =AY

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The Group
has disclosed the material accounting policy information in note 2 to
the financial statements. The amendments did not have any impact
on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s approach and policy
align with the amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below: (continued)

(0)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions.
The Group has earlier applied the amendments, so the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from
the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income
taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective
and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information
of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the
legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect.
The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the
Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the
amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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BEAETHER® 2.

2.3 © MR AR 4 R B B
B35 3R & %A
REBYERZEHHHRREM
DA B AR 5 18 1 R A B 0 R 42
BB B 7 R 4 A B o A SR B A 2%
S 4515 AT EIR B 75 3R 5 A (fi
FA) RIS FEA -

BRI IS RS ERIZE 109 R B & 5T 2R
%285 B R]
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B B B 7S S R R 28 16 SR V1B ET
Amendments to IFRS 16
B e ERE 1 5RMEET

Amendments to IAS 1

B e ERE 1 5RMEET
Amendments to IAS 1

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. The Group
intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

RERHERE 7 BB BREERE T RNERT

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

B ERE 2155 M1EE]
Amendments to IAS 21

! RZTZWFE—-A—Hzz#%&
48 ) 45 FEE AR A 2

2 WNZZE-_RAF-A—HAkzi&
10 B R 2 B R AR

3 WoRKEE @B AE AR - (ER]
TR

3

WEEBABZPER S LT FHEELELRAC

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

EXECHER G
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

BESEARBDEHETEH ([ ZE_F B
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’ (the “2020
Amendments”)’

Witz g R E ([ B —FE5]])

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)’

HEFBELH

Supplier Finance Arrangements'
= A s it
Lack of Exchangeability?
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee uses
in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction
to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify
that a liability can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only
if a conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously
the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 lIssued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of supplier
finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such
arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments are
intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. The amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at the beginning of
the annual reporting period and interim disclosures. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether a
currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it shall estimate
a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when exchangeability is
lacking. The amendments require disclosures of information that enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of a currency not
being exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to the
cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

2.5

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or
vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Business combinations and goodwill (continuea)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

VO 3R B8 SE i i &2 B B R 2 B] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



2. EXEFEHE®

2.5

2.6

EREHREE @)

BMEZBHEMEAHZASE
ABEMCReELSEUARN) 27
Yol SR TR MAEE - iR &
ELEUReEELEMAN 2
A BRRE AN ARTEE - BIFERRR
EFE - SRR REBERT
BB ER B -

WEEEOREERSEESEM (K
ReELEMMARN) I HEZEM
NZ AN %R AIREEHEZA
B - TR EEB AR
SRAREBEERE - RZEBERT
HEZHE  EAHEEB AR
BHeELABUND 2BHEE

| s
=T '=
B o

AFEMNE
AEEREREHRRAFET
EETERTA -AFERTSES
HERFGEBEREREFRZTHE
AEPMBIZ ERREEAEMN
XS Z B o A EAETRER
HRHEEEXERRBEZIRSH®
BEXABZIEMSH(EEE
EMEZBAT) EEERARZ
RABETIHETMEL - TBHK
REEBMBUERAREA K
AZWiG - BEXABZAFETS
ZERRME2EEREELAER

EEREARERENZTENE -

B 75 R B ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis
or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The residual rate and estimated useful lives used for
this purpose are as follows:

BEEXR MAFAUTEAFH

Estimated

Residual rate useful lives

gF Buildings 5% 10E 354
10 to 35 years

FENRETFEE Production and electronic 5% 3Z104
equipment 3 to 10 years

PNERE Office equipment 5% 3106
3 to 10 years

RE Motor vehicles 5% 4Z10F

4 to 10 years
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including right-
of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated
using a straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives of the properties. The residual values
and useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The effects of any revision
are included in the profit or loss when the changes arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(a) R&D
(i)

(ii)

VO 3R B8 SE i i &2 B B R 2 B] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities (relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) is capitalised under the category of
“product development in progress” if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
the development, the Group has sufficient ability to use
or sell the asset, the asset will generate future economic
benefit, and the cost can be reliably measured. Upon the
commencement of the commercial production of a product,
the expenditure on development activities is transferred
to “deferred development costs” and amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit.
R&D costs comprise costs that are directly attributable to
R&D activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to such activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by the Group
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

R&D (continued)

(iii) Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
acquisition or its completion is recognised as an expense
when it is incurred unless it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits
in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance
and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the
asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

(iv) Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged to
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products which are not exceeding 5
to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are initially recorded at historical
cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Customer relationships

The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit
or loss when the changes arise.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,

a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right

to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for

all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The

Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

252504
25 to 50 years

2E6%F
2 to 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)

Gr oup as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

F Z S ANNUAL REPORT 2023 163



BA 15 R ) P a
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SECEHFFA=tH

31 DECEMBER 2023

2.

164

BERETTEHE 2
QN REREMERMEE (&)

(a)

AL ERRGE (%)
AEMERSRMEENLS
ERIEENAERESHE
EUEERSTE ¥BE
ARTRSRELSERAEK
EANHEKE HESR
BE AWMERE  REH
REDHERSBHEREE
TREERESRMEENK
BANRSREHEBER
WA MIEATES AR
wEERSHERSTENS
BMEEDNEESELRE
ENKRAHRS RERE
EMEBERNZE - LI
REREBEANBTENE
REE R AT E AL
HERETE -

BERBER-RITHH
318 ) AT 52 E O B [ 0 [
ARNEEMNEREERR
Z B (BIAREBEAZRBER
HEEEMRAS) ER -

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the consolidated profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments also
recognised as other income in the consolidated profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

VO 3R B8 SE i i &2 B B R 2 B] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



BERETTEHE 2
214 TREERE

RS B HER Y I IR IR A P EF A
BREMMAEHRTIARMEES
BEBEEBERED) WEE-A
HEEBBEDERREAHIH
meRenE @A EERNK
B AEREREZMNERM
EE - WAREBRAN XATOUER
H-FAHRERESBEHERR
EROR SR EREKRE DIEK
MEME SRR °

— R E
FEHEEBESMEMRERER - 5t
BYREREREBELNOE
ERRMNE  BHREEEBARRK
NREARNATREEEENEHME
¥WMEEEEB(NEREHEEE
B)FTIRBE HBEVHEERBL
EEEZEMNEERRKRMNE © T
AREEEY  RETRRFHA
MEBEEBHBYANREBER
B(2HEHEEER) -

RNERSAY AEEFHEESBRT
AW EERR B V5 ERIARE
BAMRIE N - EITF AR - AR E
SR mESANRERTAESE
B KO [ B0 ) 9 WE R B A A
SRTAEENENRR LEE
BaRkBEEERAEHALEERE
AN ESHER - B
BEKBIATEIEER -

B 75 R B ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are considered
to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Financial liabilities

(a)

(b)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, and payable.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated profit or loss.
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31 DECEMBER 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise
cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid deposits with a
maturity of generally within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term deposits
as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 DECEMBER 2023

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

2.20 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the grants are
recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets and released to the
profit or loss over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal
annual instalments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or at a

below-market rate of interest for the construction of a qualifying asset,

the initial carrying amount of the government loans is determined using

the effective interest rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the government
loans granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and the proceeds

received, is treated as a government grant and released to the profit or

loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension scheme

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and medical
insurance scheme organised by the local social security bureau
pursuant to the relevant provisions. The Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of the above insurance scheme
to the local social security bureau based on the monthly salaries of
its employees. The Group has no further liabilities other than the
above defined contributions. The Group’s contributions under the
scheme are charged to the consolidated profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the year are discounted to their present value.
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The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the year.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

2.22 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

The group operates a Share Option Scheme and Restricted Share
Unit ("RSU") Schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”). The cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees for grants is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using market-value model, further
details of which are given in note 28 to the financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

(continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction
(continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical
aesthetic products is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products.

Some contracts for the sales of industrial products provide customers
with volume rebates, giving rise to variable consideration.
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2. EXEFHEw® 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Wz (4) 2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
(a) EF&H Wz #) (a) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
HEIH Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain customers
once the quantity of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset
against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume threshold
and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number
of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied and a
refund liability for the expected future rebates is recognised.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)

Other income (continued)

Income from the provision of R&D services is recognised over time,
using an input method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the Group’'s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method recognises income
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.

Revenue from hospital services is recognized when the related
services have been rendered and contains outpatient and inpatient
services. For outpatient services, there are two performance
obligations, including (i) provision of consultation services and
(i) sale of pharmaceutical products. The control of services or
pharmaceutical products for both performance obligations (i) and (ii)
is transferred at a point in time. For inpatient services, there are the
third performance obligation (iii) provision of inpatient healthcare
services. The revenue from (iii) provision of inpatient healthcare is
recognized over the service period when customers simultaneously
receive the services and consumes the benefits provided by the
hospital.

Revenue from the sale of distribution rights is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

2.24 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment

is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers

the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue

when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with
a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(0) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

2.26 Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the note 12 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss.

Al the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
profit or loss within “Other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and the
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve, except to the
extent that the differences are attributable to non-controlling interests.
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2. EXREFBR® 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.28 B 2.28 Related parties
ETINERT - BEHBHER AR A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
SEEBER
(@ FBAFTR—HBALIZAL (@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
BT - Mz AT that person
(i) 7 il sk A E AR & (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
;
(i HEAREBBEEATE (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
17
(i) AAEESAE (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
NAMEEEEAR or of a parent of the Group;
54 or
(b) BEBEFEFE TIMEMAGME (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
BB
() ZERBEAEZEER (i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
—SEMNKE AR
iy ZEBARZ —HEN (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
HE AR HEERE of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
(HZEENT AT
NS AT ES
NG
(i) ZHEBRAKEHAR (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
B—%=ANa%0 party;
E S
vy “EEAF-HER (iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
MeEERE TS — entity is an associate of the third entity;
ERARZE=ZFEE
o)A WNCII
v) ZELBAMBEEN (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
&l ZErEMER of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
ABREBESEEAE Group;
EEHENERNES:
(vi) ZEBEBZ@FM#A (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
T ZHREES identified in (a);
(viiy R @O FTFE A LT H (vii)  a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the
ZERBBEERTEN entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
BZERE (EE the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
NCIDEE 1-S: YN -1
&
(viipy EBENEMBEED (viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
e HBZ BRARIMASE provides key management personnel services to the Group or
B AEEHE QA to the parent of the Group.
REFTZEEABR
7 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and

the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

(a)

Impairment of deferred development costs and
product development in progress

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
generated by all pharmaceutical patents or licences in capitalisation of
development costs and all product development in progress that the Group
possessed. These estimates are based on projected product life cycles in the
pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development costs when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related development costs.

The carrying amount of deferred development costs as at 31 December
2023 was RMB120,442,000 (31 December 2022: RMB32,358,000). The
carrying amount of product development in progress as at 31 December
2023 was RMB619,123,000 (31 December 2022: RMB552,318,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
of each cash-generating unit that the property, plant and equipment
are assigned to. These estimates are based on product life cycles in the
pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related property, plant and equipment.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different. Details of the deferred taxation are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy
for R&D costs in note 2.10(a) to the financial statements. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to make assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December 2023,
the amount of capitalised development costs estimated by the management
was approximately RMB619,123,000 (2022: RMB552,318,000). More
details are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their products and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a) the medical aesthetic products segment including the filling, shaping,
supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic device, body sculpturing, skin
care and others to provide non- or minimally invasive medical aesthetics
comprehensive solutions;

(b) the innovative medicine and other medicine segment; and
(0) the generic medicine segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing operations is
measured consistently with the Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations
except that interest income, non-lease-related finance costs, dividend income, fair
value gains/losses from the Group’s financial instruments as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker who
assesses the performance of the operating segments based on their revenue and
operating profit rather than their assets and liabilities.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. TEER =) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_ZE_=5+-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2023
BXEm RAFERHGER % Fohy
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR¥ETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
22Uk (BEES) Segment revenue (note 5)
SVERE P HE Sales to external customers 449,884 11,807 1,398,848 1,860,539
DEFEHE Intersegment sales 25 24,966 - 24,991
449,909 36,773 1,398,848 1,885,530
R Reconciliation:
D EBEHE £ 58 Elimination of intersegment sales (24,991)
FELCE W Revenue from continuing
operations 1,860,539
DEBLE Segment results 91,763 (676,062) 564,300 (19,999)
R Recondiliation:
AR D B E AU A Unallocated other income 43,483
TR DB E M —F Unallocated other gains - net 3,140
Al DM E B Unallocated expenses (100,030)
Al DRI R X Unallocated finance expenses (34,233)
DEERERENEDN Share of profits and losses of
BE RN RER investments accounted for
using the equity method (53,621)
REFBREEBL Loss before tax from continuing
BRELATE B operations (161,260)
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4. DEER @ 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
B E-—F+-_A=+—HIEE Year ended 31 December 2022
BXEm AMEREMESR EY: 45
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
22Uk (BEES) Segment revenue (note 5)
SVERE P HE Sales to external customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
DEFEHE Intersegment sales - 104,798 - 104,798
149,780 165,711 1,970,496 2,285,987
R Recondiliation:
7 2R E 8 & T 4H Elimination of intersegment sales (104,798)
FELeln Revenue from continuing
operations 2,181,189
FRBEERAERE Impairment losses on non-current - (314,455) (976,588) (1,291,043)
assets
DHEEE Segment results 3,576 (1,400,204) (16,009) (1,412,637)
R Recondiliation:
B RS ON Unallocated other income 13,018
TR DB E M —F Unallocated other gains - net 19,000
Al DM E B Unallocated expenses (625,964)
Al DRI R X Unallocated finance expenses (35,320)
DEERERENEDN Share of profits and losses of
BERF REE investments accounted for
using the equity method (80,875)
TEHBLEEE L Loss before tax from continuing
BRELATE B operations (2,122,778)

FJZ R 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 189



B 75 ¥ K P o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E=F+=ZA=+—8
31 DECEMBER 2023

4. PEER @)
(a) SPEBEF Yz

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

—_B=-= T
2023 2022
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

& ™5 Geographical markets

AR i Chinese Mainland 1,846,751 2,166,784
EH United States of America 13,788 14,405
1,860,539 2,181,189

PRFBEREEB 2 WS ER T
BEFMAEMESD -

(b) F¥HEBEE

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

—_B-= T
2023 2022
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

& ™% Geographical markets

AR A 3 Chinese Mainland 4,516,383 4,531,294
3G United States of America 10,958 13,982
4,527,341 4,545,276

PRFEEEEBZERDEE
AEMDNIREEMERRED A
BEERTANEEHRAEE -

BE-_T-_=—F+-A=+—HLEEFE"
FEHEHERADHEAAREEMER
RBEAEEKRI0%IALE(ZF =
F BN HER

The non-current asset information of continuing operations above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all sales were from distributors and
there were no distributors of the Group from which the revenue amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue (2022: Nil).

190 DU 35 58 ZEPR AR 2 B 4 R 2 7 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

5. W& Hittli AR W= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WA T : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E=-= —E__F
2023 2022
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Ly T Revenue from contracts with customers 1,860,539 2,181,189
EEEHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) ZEHUZEH (a) Disaggregated revenue information
BE-_ZE-_=5+=-A=+-—H Year ended 31 December 2023
IHFEE
BXER AFERAGER {35 Foy
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR¥ETR ARETR AR¥ETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EREHR Type of goods
HERBEEQREBEER Sale of pharmaceutical products
and medical aesthetic products 449,884 11,807 1,398,848 1,860,539
HhEN S Geographical markets
P EI A Chinese Mainland 436,096 11,807 1,398,848 1,846,751
EJE United States of America 13,788 - - 13,788

Total revenue from contracts with
customers 449,884 11,807 1,398,848 1,860,539

W 5 B
EX-BREEENER

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point
in time 449,884 11,807 1,398,848 1,860,539
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5. WEH HMWARWKE = 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

EFEHWR®) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) TEHPAZHR &) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continuec)
HE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—H Year ended 31 December 2022
1FE
BXER BIHERHEMZER 3 s
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
EmER Type of goods
HEBEEMRBXESR Sale of pharmaceutical products
and medical aesthetic products 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
it & 35 Geographical markets
R A, Chinese Mainland 135,375 60,913 1,970,496 2,166,784
x United States of America 14,405 - - 14,405
BEPaflimes Total revenue from contracts with
customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
Wy 225 e 0k Timing of revenue recognition
EX-EFREERNESR Goods transferred at a point
in time 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189

192 DU 35 58 ZEPR AR 2 B 4 R 2 7 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



5. k= -HEMWARWKEZ# 5.

BEFEHWE &)
(@) ZEUAEZH &)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H

31 DECEMBER 2023

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

TRENEPEHORGZHS HE Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with
KBRS AR customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:
BE-_ZE-_=%+=-HA=+—8H Year ended 31 December 2023
IHEE
BXER AFERHAGZER GEES Foy
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARET R ARET T ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
] Segments
INBREIEE Sales to external customers 449,884 11,807 1,398,848 1,860,539
HEEHEE Intersegment sales 25 24,966 - 24,991
449,909 36,773 1,398,848 1,885,530
R Reconciliation:
5> 2R fE) 8 6 H1 4 Elimination of intersegment sales (24,991)
BEFAHIREEE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 1,860,539
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5. WEH HMWARWKE = 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

EFEHWR®) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) TEHPAZHR &) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continuec)
THREINEPEHN W R E D FE Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with
KRN SENEER : (&) customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information: (continued)
HE-_Z-_—F+=-A=+—H Year ended 31 December 2022
IEFE
BXER BIHERHEMZER 1 gk ok
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARBETTT AREFT ARBETFTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
] Segments
IBEFIHE Sales to external customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
DEEEE Intersegment sales - 104,798 - 104,798
149,780 165,711 1,970,496 2,285,987
ik Reconciliation:
5> 2R 3 6 H1 4 Elimination of intersegment sales (104,798)
BEPeflimesE Total revenue from contracts with
customers 2,181,189
TREINNARFEE @RI AF The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the year
MeaERIEBEFERRE that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
THRNETRRAC W=SHE - and recognised from performance obligations not yet satisfied in previous
years:
+=—HA=+—H
31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
AR%BT R ARKETFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FFAEYEDNABENE R Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year:
HEREEMREXER Sale of pharmaceutical products and
medical aesthetic products 161,180 201,042
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B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

()

Performance obligations
Sales of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of the

pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products and payment

is generally due within 90 to 180 days from delivery, except for new

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance

obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. The

amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is

constrained.

Har A Other income

—E=-= —E__F
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
F B U A Interest income 147,908 146,794

REMELLEHEZAS KA Gross rental income from investment
W property operating leases (i) 10,663 6,079
ZePr RIS UA Hospital services income 29,023 -
& 5 S Sales of distribution rights (i) 2,830 2,409
A Research and development income (iii) 1,482 195
HAh Others 5,829 2,442
197,735 157,919

iy BREEMEL

EHEZHSW 0]
ABBYFRERAEENTE
5% Pk gat ARMIRA - B2

Gross rental income from investment property operating leases is included
in other income as it is not derived from the Group's principal activities.
An analysis of rental income is as follows:

WAB DT

== —E-=
2023 2022
AR TR ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

i & 45 Geographical markets

B Hong Kong 3,207 3,372
B A Chinese Mainland 7,456 2,707
10,663 6,079
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31

5.

DECEMBER 2023

Wz B ARWEFE® 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continved)

HMW A o#) Other income (continued)
iy BAREEDHBWEILIERER (i) Revenue from sales of distribution rights is included in other income as it is

AEBMEEXRR  EBEGAR
WA = HE D IR I & T 51
RTPEARM - BB EERTRE
REEREET  LEERBERITA
RIBEIREATTANKIE - HED#
ROBER=ZZ2EF - N+ A
=t—B SEEHRTEHEECK
BITRE D RETT) X BB

not derived from the Group’s principal activities. The geographical market
of all the sales of distribution rights is Chinese Mainland. The performance
obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered and advances are
normally required before rendering the services. Distribution rights are
sold for periods of three to five years. The amounts of transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

=
+=A=+-—H
31 December
—EBE-=F —F-=
2023 2022
AR T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEESERREMB AN SR Amounts expected to be recognised as other income:

—FQRA Within one year 13,170 2,830
—F1& After one year 44,190 5,660
57,360 8,490

TREHNFARRBIL T AFAD

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the year

BHRBRBRz KNGS that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year:

—E-= —F-—
2023 2022
AR TR ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

FFARREHYIA OB ENE R © Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

oS o iEE Sale of distribution rights 2,830 2,409
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31 DECEMBER 2023

5. WEH HMWARWE = 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Ha A () Other income (continued)
(i) HBARMBERATIEREERAER (i) R&D income is included in other income as it is not derived from the

MERET - FULBET AEMKA -
MEEHOWRTSEHR/PER
o BRI E EAER RIS ERE R

Group's principal activities. The geographical market of all the R&D activities
is Chinese Mainland. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the

BiT —MARFEBEE30H date of billing.
R o
Hiblh s — 38 Other gains - net
—E-= —E-=
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
TR #7 BA (i) Government grants (i) 60,700 57,493
RIEME -2 QR 2 Ea il Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 21,251 9,554
BRATEFAEENEREED Gain/(loss) on changes in fair value of financial assets
N EEFHUE (EE) at fair value through profit or loss 131,765 (11,548)
HEWE - BB REEN R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,378 -
HEFEREAEN KR Gain on disposal of right-of-use asset 3,695 23
Hith Others 1,118 31
& H 18R % Exchange losses, net (6,759) (18,392)
IR — B A R M Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary - 194,068
HERATEFABENSBMEENKE Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 111,945
BRI B EE O =S Gain on transferring a R&D intellectual right - 7,000
216,148 350,174
() R B) 42 FE 48 1 3 77 IKURT WO ER (i)  The total government grants represented the subsidies received from the

L3 5 B 755 55 B R A RO /R B o

local government and no specific conditions were attached to them.
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6. FRBiATEE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
AEBRAFELCEEB ZRBIATEE The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after charging/
KmeR, (%) - (crediting):
—E-= —F-—
2023 2022
B 5 AR TR ARETTT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EERMNAZ (BREESEK Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
B=1TBABRFE) (M:Es) and chief executive’s remuneration (note 8))
TENFH Wages and salaries 488,399 513,430
RIREETEIER Pension scheme contributions (i) 90,079 96,016
=l Welfares 13,519 19,040
LA B& A7) 7 ZE B8 89 <1 3% Share-based payments 89,084 89,666
681,081 718,152
BEETFERAE Cost of inventories sold (i) 564,895 693,608
R RFAERS Research and development expenses (i) 577,656 936,581
Y B REETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (iiyGii) 22,474 36,194
KREMERE Depreciation of investment properties 15 9,323 8,292
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 0Ydn 31,125 31,980
EEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets (ii)/Gii) 16,813 22,684
HEYE - BE REE (Gainyloss on disposal of property, plant and
(Wezs) /E18 equipment (4,378) 2,663
HEGREEEN KR Gain on disposal of right-of-use asset (3.695) (23)
HE R EENEE Loss on disposal of intangible assets 139 23,537
Y - B R ERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 - 1,130,627
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets 18 - 113,138
KEMERE Impairment of investment properties 15 - 772
FREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 16 - 84,510
[EENERE] Impairment of goodwill 17 - 8,761
E AR RETIBRRIRERIE Impairment of investment accounted for using
the equity method 21 - 389,311
B 5 K E A U AR X (Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses of
(BEERE) REERE trade and other receivables 25 (7,953) 28,443
WREFEZ 2R FE Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 11,419 90,778
KT AHEEBEFEMAENI  Lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities 4,506 7,823
M 5 B 18R 5 Exchange losses, net 6,759 18,392
A G 3 Auditor’s remuneration 4,200 4,200
IRITFESE Bank charges 1,051 3,055
(i) EARE AEER_ZT_=F () There are no forfeited contributions at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil) that
TZA=T—HHEATAREK may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
RRFEBRBHIOKFHERK contributions in the future years.
HR(ZBZZF  E)
(ii) TE =R B _F+-A8 (i) The depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
=S+-—BRREERMEAEYN use assets and intangible assets for manufacturing and research function
M BELRZRE EREEER for 31 December 2023 and 2022 are included in “Cost of inventories sold”

EBREENE BT AIBES and “R&D expenses”.
ERA| R [FFBERE] -
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B 75 s Z= I AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—T-=f+-R=+—8

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

(i)  Depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets from continuing operations:

By
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FFAC Included in:
Paxiz 153 Distribution expenses 612 39
TR Administrative expenses 69,800 90,819
7. HBHAX 7. FINANCE EXPENSES
FBEEEBNMBRZDTAT An analysis of finance expenses from continuing operations is as follows:
—EB-=F —F-—
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
UTEENFBRAX Interest expenses on:
AT EIRTT R E A fE 3k (Fi7E34) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 34) 57,415 58,748
B A AR 17 Ay BB [0 & & (M 7£30) Redemption liabilities on subsidiaries’ shares (note 30) 211,266 151,529
HEAE (i 16) Lease liabilities (note 16) 2,573 2,754
FRATEFAEZNERAR Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair
ez e value through profit or loss 271,254 213,031
B BRI FLE Less: Interest capitalised (1,917) (1,855)
269,337 211,176
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8. EENRERITHAEN 8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's
A REMUNERATION
BE LA BB QARG £ 383(1) Directors’ and executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
@~ o QREOBEUAEAR (FHEEEF Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
HER)ROIB 2D BEES RS R Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
BABFAHMAOT - of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
== —E-—
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
2k Fees 1,037 1,056
HinBi & : Other emoluments:
e Salaries 14,409 14,860
RIK&FH SR Pension scheme contributions 48 46
TEAT Bonus 945 898
H e R E WA= Other allowances and benefits in kind 346 143
AR B R ER Equity-settled share option expense 1,712 934
18,497 17,937
ZEBERE(CREBIHNERNER The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the profit or loss
WAFEERBRLBEHET  AFEH over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
BHREMBASEHIN LR EERES included in the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
THRA BB H M EF directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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31 DECEMBER 2023

FEZRER/ARRBILIFNT
L

FARERBIIENTEELN
Hipie (ZF——F: |) -

the Company on 1 April 2023.

8. EERERITHAEBW 8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's

ES 0 N REMUNERATION (continved)

() BYFHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FRAXNTELIFERAITESNE The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were
2T as follows:

DREZEDN
e B RER X at

Equity-settled

share option
=B== 2023 Fees expense Total
AR®T AR®T T AR® T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
FEESLES Mr. Patrick Sun* 93 - 93
BEN L Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 371 - 371
RS+ Dr. Zhu Xun 371 - 371
FREAE Mr. Wang Guan** 202 - 202
1,037 - 1,037

UARRHE 5 E B

ik AR A 2 o

Equity-settled

share option
—E-—F 2022 Fees expense Total
AR®ET T ARBTT AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
EEERE Mr. Patrick Sun 352 110 462
BER L L Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 352 110 462
KaEL Dr. Zhu Xun 352 110 462
1,056 330 1,386

* FEERER-_ZT_=FWNA * Mr. Patrick Sun resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
—BEHEARR R IEMITES - Company on 1 April 2023.
xx THERAERZ-ZZTZ=FWA— *x Mr. Wang Guan was appointed as an independent non-executive director of

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).
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8. EENRERITHAEN 8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's
Fr =) REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) MITES (b) Executive directors
Bike Hit#A Rk HREEER
ne e HE L5 AL BYRE  BRERX st
Other
Pension allowances Equity-settled
scheme and benefits  share option
Fee Salaries  contribution Bonus in kind expense Total

ARBTT ARKTRT ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARE®TR ARKT:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

“E-=F 2023

woEE: Executive directors:
BEEAEL Dr. Che Fengsheng - 7,000 - - - - 7,000
BrmBEE Dr. Guo Weicheng - 3,000 - - - - 3,000
RMEBAE Dr. Zhang Jionglong - 630 16 - - - 646
e Ms. Chen Yanling - 1,296 16 324 130 - 1,766
BREXL Ms. Miao Guil - 2,483 16 621 216 1,712 5,048

14,409 48 945 346 1,712 17,460
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Fr =) REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) BITEZE®) (b) Executive directors (continued)
iy N Hiheik DAREAED
ik Ek STEIfHR AL EWFla  BRERX @5t
Other
Pension allowances  Equity-settled
scheme and benefits  share option
Fee Salaries  contribution Bonus in kind expense Total
ARBFTT ARBTr ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AREKTn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i 2022
woEE: Executive directors:
BEEAEL Dr. Che Fengsheng - 7,000 - - - - 7,000
P BEs Dr. Guo Weicheng - 3,150 - - - - 3,150
RERE Dr. Zhang Jionglong - 727 15 - - - 742
BRBLE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong - 2,259 13 - - - 2272
F¥:33 e Ms. Chen Yanling - 1,232 15 308 100 147 1,802
BREBLT Ms. Miao Guili - 492 3 590 43 457 1,585
- 14,860 46 898 143 604 16,551

FAREEFARSTRAER
ENRAEREEMFIMZ L8

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. HIEBREFEE 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FAN - IEGEaRHEERE=Z®%EF (= The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors (2022:
TFZRKEF)  EFMFBEER three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
EXHES - FRMBTME (== Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2022: two) highest
Fmf) WIFARAEENESITHA paid employees who are not a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
MR EENFIFEIEHET follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
ARET R ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
e REREWNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,599 4,534
BERIEAL Performance related bonuses - 1,801
4,599 6,335
HHMNTUTHENESHEE FES The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
MIEBERITBAB) ABWT ¢ whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
—E=-= B
2023 2022
2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 %8 7T HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 % 7T & 3,000,000 %5 7T HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 % 7T & 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 - 1
4,000,001 77T 2= 4,500,000 7 7T HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 - 1
2 2
HE-_ZT_="k=-_FT-_—_+=A For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no payments had been made
=+ —HLEFE FAEBYERMEZESK by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individuals in respect of an
= HMA LRSI EMASHE LR inducement to join or compensation for loss of office, and no directors or the
B MRIE THEEEHES HH highest paid individuals waived any of the emoluments.

ALTHREREERE BB S -
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10.

B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Bermuda profits tax

The Group was not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction during the year (2022:
Nil).

British Virgin Islands (“BVI") profits tax

The Group's entities established under the International Business Companies Acts
of BVI are exempted from BVI income tax (2022: Nil).

Cayman Islands profits tax

Subsidiaries incorporated as exempted companies with limited liability under the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands are not subject to tax on income or capital
gains. Additionally, the Cayman Islands do not impose a withholding tax on
payments of dividends to shareholders. The Cayman Islands are not a party to any
double tax treaties that are applicable to any payments made by or to the entities
(2022: Nil).

Macau profits tax

The subsidiary incorporated in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax on the
taxable income in accordance with relevant Macau tax laws. Taxation for overseas
jurisdictions is charged at the appropriate prevailing rates ruling in the respective
jurisdictions and the maximum rate is 12%.

United States of America profits tax

Pursuant to Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA") enacted on 22 December 2017, the
United States federal statutory income tax rate for the subsidiaries are 21%. Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax was provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies now comprising
the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for those items which are not
assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the corporate
income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the
tax rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech enterprises.

Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate income tax for 2023 and 2022 was
provided at the rate of 15%.
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SECEHFFA=tH
31 DECEMBER 2023

10. FREHBA X @)

AREFHE_E_=FK_FT -
T AT —HALFENMEHRASZS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

2022 is analysed as follows:

The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023 and

HIEUENE
—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BVERTR I8 Current tax 60,140 98,454
BIETIA (P 7E33) Deferred tax (note 33) 36,287 98,340
RE R RS B FENTIE Total tax charge for the year from continuing
Bz 2 58 operations 96,427 196,794
RE DRI EEEBFRTIE Total tax charge for the year from discontinued
F X 4258 operations - 141
96,427 196,935

N 55 [ B B B A5 8 A T TR BB R OB A Y
EHERBENNZEEREFENERE

BAR - &I

consolidated entities as follows:

The tax on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise from using the statutory tax rates applicable to profits of the

== —E-=
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARKETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BB AT R 1R Loss before tax (161,260) (2,086,341)
REFECEER From continuing operations (161,260) (2,122,778)
RE DI T From discontinued operations - 36,437
BEEBETEN %)EEIE Tax at the statutory tax rates (35,323) (504,771)
THEENHBTE Tax effects of:
— B R SRR RN TS E 1B — Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (3,055) (11,490)
—HIEEERAENTE — Effect of tax concessions and exemptions (46,332) (19,602)
— B BB EFEZEINT OB — Additional deductible allowance for
qualified R&D expenses (125,829) (131,009)
—NAIB — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,846 97,219
— R EATERR &) 38 7 B BN AR B T ) - Adjustments recognised in the period for
T current tax of prior periods (7.,644) 24,338
—BEAEE XML A TR & — Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures
Eiﬁé! and associates 8,092 17,830
—EEMBF A — Income not subject to tax (33,474) (65,645)
—RERBIEEE — Tax losses not recognised 326,146 790,065
s Income tax expense 96,427 196,935
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10. MEHRBA X »

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

—E-=F —F-—
2023 2022
AR T ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
REFELSEBNFARIE Total tax charge for the year from continuing
sz s operations 96,427 196,794
REBRIREEBHFATIE Total tax charge for the year from discontinued
%485 operations - 141

11.

CARILREET

ZEZZF  ARAMBRAR S AR
{EIBRAR ((EMAR) BBHER
IR ARBRECBERIMABR AR ([HA
2] bR AR ER AR AR ([H
ARED EEMRERBCIBERRAR (F
MERD M ARE (FREIERIELEE
¥BDMRrRER - RZTEZ=_F+=A
=+—H BREEEEBTITARE
B B®RE

HE_Z-_—_F#—AF—HzHE0HY
o BRIEEEEBNEREZ2IWT

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2022, the Company’s subsidiary, Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Shengtong”) passed a resolution on disposals of all the equity interests in Beijing
Lianben Pharm-chemicals Tech. Co., Ltd. (“Lianben Chemical”), Beijing Lianben
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Lianben Technology”) and lJilin Jiahui
Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui”), (collectively “discontinued operations”). As at
31 December 2022, the discontinued operations were excluded from the financial
statements of the Group.

The results of the discontinued operations for the period from 1 January 2022 to
the disposal date are presented below:

=2
2022
AREFTT
RMB’'000
g Revenue 199,474
SHE R Cost of sales (159,138)
553 Expenses (36,169)
& M ek Gain on disposal 32,270
Rk B B ) Profit before tax 36,437

Fris#i - Income tax:

BEARTAIEE Related to pre-tax loss (141)
F R A Profit for the year 36,296
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11 BRILEREEK =) 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
ERIREEBELENREREFE The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations were as follows:
LN
—E-—F
2022
ARETT
RMB'000
R EE Operating activities 27,482
BEES Investing activities (3,480)
BEEY Financing activities (11,783)
REeEMAFE Net cash inflows 12,219
BRAF Earnings per share:
AR (RBB R =2 ER) Basic, from the discontinued operations 0.38 % cents
e (RE BRI ER) Diluted, from the discontinued operations 0.38 % cents
BRI E BN ERER REE AT 6 The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued
FTEER: operations are based on:
—Z__
2022
ERIEREXEBNE AR EBER Profit attributable to ordinary equity
BHEABRGERN(ARBTT) holders of the parent from the
discontinued operation (RMB’000) 34,672
ATEERERBAAFTAND T Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
Eimr i E (FAR) (B 13) issue during the year used in the
basic earnings per share
calculation (Share’000) (note 13) 9,329,999
AEEREERT AL ER Weighted average number of ordinary
INAEF 9 E(FRR) (£ 13) shares used in the diluted earnings
per share calculation (Share’000) (note 13) 9,336,768
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RIE-=FN T - _FRNHOKE
2 B A& AR 298,560,000 7T & A R
1,315,530,0007t - EE G T EZRES

B 75 R B ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIVIDENDS

TECZF+-_A=Z+—HUEFERHN

RHBEERE -

REERIEL RN FARBEE AL

—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

The dividends paid in 2023 and 2022 were RMB298,560,000 and
RMB1,315,530,000, respectively. The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of the final cash dividend for the year ended on 31 December 2023.

Dividends approved and paid to owners of the Company during the year:

BB
—E=-= —E__F
2023 2022
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR CFREAKREEREBER Final 2022 dividend of RMB3.2 cents
AREE3 2D (ZE_—_F: —F=-—4%  (2022: Final dividend for 2021 of RMB1.3 cents)
REBREARE1.35) per ordinary share 298,560 121,290
AR R EERTBRET Special cash dividend of nil
(ZZ==F : AR®95H) (2022: RMB9.5 cents) per ordinary share - 886,350
FHReREBEERERART Interim cash dividend of nil (2022: RMBO.1 cents)
(ZZ=—=F: /\EVH@O 19) per ordinary share - 9,330
THERREREGREBRT Interim special cash dividend of nil
(ZF=——F: /\EMB 29) (2022: RMB3.2 cents) per ordinary share - 298,560
298,560 1,315,530
FRBRBZARTRE : Dividends proposed by the Company for the year:
—EB=-= T
2023 2022
AR TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEAHReREGREBRT Proposed final cash dividend of nil
(Z==—%: /\E’%B 29) (2022: RMB3.2 cents) per ordinary share - 298,560
- 298,560
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13.

BREE
BEREAEBEBSEIREFAERR
RIEBAEREBEABRGEBEEARE
54,017,000t (ZZEZZF : AR¥
1,914,918,0007T) R FANBE BT EBK
hn#E 15 809,297,073,000% (—F = —
4F 1 9,329,999,000 f%) 5t & o

FREIBRESBENRATTRERE
BENFARDRERERER ARGE
BB - EEANTERMETFIH
SRR EEREABENFAD #T
LBEHE UERMEEEHELR
BRIBRIEITRRB RS L BREGAERE
A BITE BN IR -

FRERREEBERTRTIIBEE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of RMB54,017,000
(2022: RMB1,914,918,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 9,297,073,000 (2022: 9,329,999,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amounts is based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, as used in the basic
loss per share calculation. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic loss per share calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

—E-= —E__—F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB Loss
BEAESREARANEEREBNALQGT  (Lossyprofit attributable to ordinary equity holders
LTRERER ARG (BB, %5 of the Company, used in the basic and diluted
loss per share calculation
KEFFEREER From continuing operations (54,017) (1,949,590)
REEKRIEEEER From discontinued operations - 34,672
KRR EEERER AEIS Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
18 of the Company (54,017) (1,914,918)
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31 DECEMBER 2023

13. BREBERE 13. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
TR T &
Shares ‘000 Shares ‘000
IR 3 Shares
REREREEMSH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
B BT MR N T in issue for basic loss per share 9,297,073 9,329,999
BEYE - LBRINET S - BIRE*  Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares: Share options* - 6,769
9,297,073 9,336,768
* HE-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—H * For the year ended 31 December 2023, the calculation of diluted loss per
IEFE EEEREEEBRIL share has not considered share options under the share option scheme of
B RAARBRESEETHY the Company as the inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
BBARRE - RN EGABEERE
SHIRE o
—E-=F —F-—
2023 2022
AR AR¥
RMB RMB

TBREAREIE Basic loss per share
FAERE For loss for the year
REFELEEG 2 BB For loss from continuing operations
BREEEE Diluted loss per share
FAERE For loss for the year
REFHELEEG 2 BB For loss from continuing operations

(0.58) 7 cents
(0.58) 7 cents

(0.58) 7 cents
(0.58) 7 cents

(20.52) 7 cents
(20.90) 7 cents

(20.52) 7 cents
(20.90) 7 cents
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SECEHFFA=tH
31 DECEMBER 2023

14. ¥  BER®R®E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ER
BT EFRE WORE AE KEIR @zt
Production
and
electronic Office Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETRE AR®Tn AR¥Tr AR%Tx AR¥Trn AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZZZF+-A=+—H  At31December 2022 and
—E-=ZF—R—-H: at 1 January 2023:
AR Cost 3,595,527 1,414,551 53,506 36,866 346,867 5,447,317
ZEHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,032,146) (988,949) (46,981) (34,418) (43,864) (3,146,358)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959
R-E-_=F—F—H" At 1 January 2023, net of
Mk 2EHTE RRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959
HE Additions 5,407 41,038 1,986 1,193 40,468 90,092
BEEERIE Transfer from construction
in progress 5,426 84,963 1,412 - (91,801) -
& Disposals (1,389) (8,562) (1,078) (131) - (11,160)
HE—EHBAR (F37) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) - (6,918) (37) - - (6,955)
ERERENE Transfer to investment properties (32,898) - - - - (32,898)
NERL Depreciation charge (18,227) (141,324) (3,693) (2,203) - (165,447)
RZE-=F+-A At 31 December 2023, net of
=t+-8 MBRR:i accumulated deprediation
WERRE and impairment 1,521,700 394,799 5,115 1,307 251,670 2,174,591
RZTZ=F+ZA=+—H: At31December 2023 :
A Cost 3,539,377 1,482,496 52,944 36,486 295,534 5,406,837
ZEAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,017,677) (1,087,697) (47,829) (35,179) (43,864) (3,232,246)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,521,700 394,799 5,115 1,307 251,670 2,174,591
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31 DECEMBER 2023

14. 9%  BERRE @ 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
EER
BT BEF&E WRRE A8 HEIRE Bt
Production
and
electronic Office Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZZ=—%F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2021 and
e = at 1 January 2022 :
AR Cost 2,956,393 1,199,930 49,773 38,428 819,924 5,064,448
ZEHTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,011,204) (675,416) (43,834) (29,065) - (1,759,519)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
R-E-_—_F#—-F—H" At 1 January 2022, net of
Mk R E RRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
HE Additions 53,381 169,599 4,308 345 250,941 478,574
BEEERIE Transfer from construction
in progress 631,889 87,458 4,651 - (723,998) -
HE Disposals (3,241) (10,357) (3,269) (149) - (17,016)
AE D (EE19) Impairment (i) (note 19) (902,745) (178,137) (1,136) (4,745) (43,864)  (1,130,627)
HERB LR (ME37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (18,896) (17,036) (360) (132) - (36,424)
EREREANE Transfer to investment properties (5,854) - - - - (5,854)
TERX Depreciation charge (136,342) (150,439) (3,608) (2,234) - (292,623)
R-ZBE-—#+=-A At 31 December 2022, net of
=t+-8 MRR:i accumulated depreciation
WERRE and impairment 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959
RZZZZF+ZA=+—H: At31December 2022 :
A Cost 3,595,527 1,414,551 53,506 36,866 346,867 5,447 317
ZEAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,032,146) (988,949) (46,981) (34,418) (43,864) (3,146,358)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959
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14. ¥ BER®KE®

214

() HREBETENIUTFNAE
EZERAORS - NEBENBARE
BEZEIETHEBEMNRKRED®
KRR - JREFLE LHUIAR & —
SHE Bt AEERETER
ITRMOEMERRSEREEE -
mMBE-_T-_—_F+=A=+—
BLFESRBSREBEARE
38,884,000 7T ° ;%M EBE LT
EREREERBEEITHMG - T&T
AERIB S EE BRI ARE RS o

RZEBE-_=F+_A=+—HBHWHEZET
EIEaETEPEANETMET -

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8 &~&H
i# AR R4S AR H B B 4 A R 166,644,000
T(CE-—F+-A=+—H: AR¥
756,447,0007T) B & T FHMBEE
((EEMBREED ARAREERE"
AEERFRIEEREEEEL &%
BB BETEHAEENEBKEEE
EFAERTFFE -

RZE_=F+_A=+—H UK
EEERAEAEAR40,714,000 7T
ZEZF+ZA=+—H: AR%
999,870,0007T) M ¥ % - B M & B 1E
AR o

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(i) Due to the fierce competition within the pharmaceutical industry and the
limitation of the Group’s resource, the management of the Group’s
subsidiary considered the future return rate of certain projects was low
and decided to discontinue further development of the aforementioned
projects. Accordingly, the Group recognised full impairment loss for the
carrying values of certain construction in progress and an impairment
loss amounting to RMB38,884,000 was recorded during the year ended
31 December 2022. This amount of impairment loss was assessed based on
the individual-asset level, and was not included in the impairment testing
based on CGUs.

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2023 mainly comprised buildings
being constructed in Chinese Mainland.

As at 31 December 2023, the ownership certificates of certain buildings
(“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate carrying
value of approximately RMB166,644,000 (31 December 2022: RMB756,447,000)
had not been obtained by the Group. The directors of the Company consider that
there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for and obtain the Building
Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on
the operations of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, mortgages over the Group’s property, plant and
equipment had an aggregate carrying value of RMB940,714,000 (31 December
2022: RMB999,870,000).
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15. REY = 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-= —E__F
2023 2022
AR®TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
gF gF
Buildings Buildings
R—A—HHEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 221,059 224,269
NE Additions 1,296 -
HEAYE  BREREE (HiE14) Transfers from property, plant and equipment (note 14) 32,898 5,854
EE (MFFE19) Impairment (note 19) - (772)
TERX Depreciation charge (9,323) (8,292)
RTZA=+—HKMEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 245,930 221,059

AEENRENEERLERERHET
TEABE T EBEDELEBOME
BEWE - WA ITE NI IR E
BIIR -

REMERBREMBELHETE=T
HE— S BHMAR B B mERM T 16 -

AEEBR-_ZT-_=F+=-A=+—-A~2
wEYE L A FELH AR 525,417,000
T(ZZE-—F+-_A=+—H: AR¥K
433,142,0007L) YA R RIE LKL E
FEEMEZGFTEET  BRE2RA
FEFEER -

The Group's investment properties consist of ten commercial properties in
Chinese Mainland and two commercial properties in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements and are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 16 to the Financial
Statements.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of approximately
RMB525,417,000 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB433,142,000) has been determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the estimated market values of similar properties, which is in level 2
fair value measurement hierarchy.
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16

CHE

REBEREEA
AEEREETRTRAREEBZEN
BFNEESLN - DRAEL —RIEN
FARMETWRBEES BHRR25E
506 - MRBZE L EE KR - 15
TEMEESNEMRIE - HERFTHHE
H—KAR2E6F - —RMs - NEET
ARARENIIATERRSEHESR
EoE—SHIBENT

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings and buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 25 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have
lease terms between 2 and 6 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. Further details are
as follows:

(@) RAREE (a) Right-of-use assets
FAAEEGEARAENREE The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
REBMT : movements during the year are as follows:
HE L s et
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
ARBTTT AR T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-_—_F—H—H As at 1 January 2022 753,003 34,770 787,773
= Additions 11 33,513 33,524
TEMX Depreciation charge (19,062) (12,918) (31,980)
B Impairment (84,510) - (84,510)
HEMBAR 2 HEEE Disposals as a result of disposal of
subsidiaries (6,197) (744) (6,941)
AfAERHE 2 HEEE Disposals as a result of lease cancellation - (499) (499)
RZE_ZF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2022 and
EZZ-_=%—A—H 1 January 2023 643,245 54,122 697,367
NE Additions - 20,560 20,560
FrEMX Depreciation charge (17,125) (14,000) (31,125)
EHEERE 2 HEEE Disposals as a result of lease cancellation - (19,364) (19,364)
RZZEZ=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2023 626,120 41,318 667,438
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(b)) HEEE

16. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continuead)
(b) Lease liabilities

FAHEABNREERESIT

B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year
are as follows:

== —E-—
2023 2022
AR T AREFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—HA—B®REE Carrying amount at 1 January 59,040 36,656
MEE New leases 20,560 33,513
FARERERT SIGRE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 2,573 2,754
(NEA Payments (16,453) (12,620)
AL EWBA ARz HESE Disposals as a result of disposal of subsidiaries - (741)
HHEEEE 2 HEEE Disposals as a result of lease cancellation (23,059) (522)
R+ A=+—HrEREE Carrying amount at 31 December 42,661 59,040
DR Analysed into:
TRENEB S Current portion 12,385 13,184
ERBIE S Non-current portion 30,276 45,856
—E-= —E -
2023 2022
BERFIE RS
(%) Ef AR®Tx (%) 2 ARETT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
E Current
HEAE Lease liabilities 4.75 2024 12,385 4.75 2023 13,184
IERE Non-current
HEAE Lease liabilities 4.75 2025-2028 30,276 475 2024-2027 45,856

HEAENIEADSTRIT SR
KM EF42.100) W E -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42.1(c) to the
financial statements.
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16. & (@) 16. LEASES (continved)
AEEEREEA B The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) WEZPERNAEHREZRENT (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:
—E_=F —E - F
2023 2022
AR® T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEARANE Interest on lease liabilities 2,573 2,754
FEREEERNERS Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 31,125 31,980
HEMESERMEEEHEEERMEY Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-

X GFABERARAR) value assets (included in cost of sales and expenses) 4,506 7,823
EAEEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets - 84,510
Bamh R RIEARE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 38,204 127,067

(d) HEMRERBEELEYKH (d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to leases
HOEERBNRRRESRER that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36(c) and 38(b) to the
B 75 3R 5% P9 3 36(c) B2 38(b) #5F - financial statements.

218 DU 35 58 ZEPR AR 2 B 4 R 2 7 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



16. HE )

AEEERHEA

AEERBCERETHIAEKRED
¥ (WaF15)  BEPEAMN T ED
EMERTBONEBREDE - % EH
EMER—MERBEIMEREZSY
BIEERRTMAETTHASHE -
FALXEBNEERBSWRABAR
10,663,000 (ZE - —F : AR
6,079,000 7T)  FHIEH NI IS HMEMFES -

R-B-_=F+-"F=+—H  B#EAX
SEREEEAF T HECERE

B 705 S 2R P 5
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—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of ten commercial
properties in Chinese Mainland and two commercial properties in Hong Kong
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by
the Group during the year was RMB10,663,000 (2022: RMB6,079,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group
in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as

B FEUCRAL IR ERIBLAT ¢ follows:
—E-= B
2023 2022
AR TR AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
—FA Within one year 12,486 9,578
—F A EERFUAR After one year but within two years 5,788 6,697
MFE A EB=F AR After two years but within three years 1,378 2,965
= FAEEEFELAA After three years but within four years 1,291 542
WEA EEBRFUAR After four years but within five years 988 542
AFNE After five years 1,589 316
23,520 20,640
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31 DECEMBER 2023

17. &8 17. GOODWILL
AR¥TT
RMB'000
RZZTEZ—F—A—H: At 1 January 2022:
DN Cost 2,893,185
RERE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
BREEE Net carrying amount 14,165
RZZZZF—A—HHKA - MBRREHRE Costat 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment 14,165
e —FEHE A Disposal of a subsidiary (3,551)
RAE (FFEE19) Impairment (note19) (8,761)
RZTZ=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 1,853
RZE-_—F+=-A=+—8Bk At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023:
TEC=FT-A=1T—8:
AR Cost 2,889,634
ZFHRE Accumulated impairment (2,887,781)
IREFE Net carrying amount 1,853
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18. ELEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ETH i3
EmBR PR A BERERY EFB% @zt
Product Deferred Trademark
development ~ development and Customer
in progress costs software relationships Total
AR%TR ARET R AR¥ETR ARETT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-ZE-—%+-A At 31 December 2022 and
Z+-BAR-T=ZF at 1 January 2023 :
—A—B:
AR Cost 811,157 1,506,808 86,163 433,932 2,838,060
ZitEH Accumulated amortisation - (612,436) (35,518) (433932  (1,081,886)
BE Impairment (258,839) (862,014) (8,859) - (1,129,712)
REFE Net carrying amount 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462
RZZTZ=F—HF—HK  Costat1January 2023,
EEI Y 5 net of accumulated
RAE amortisation and impairment 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462
HNE Additions 151,163 18,080 829 - 170,072
HE Disposal - - (175) - (175)
BHAZ Amortisation charge - (14,354) (5,984) - (20,338)
BREBETHERRE Transfer from product development
in progress (84,358) 84,358 - - -
HE—FMRE R Disposal of a subsidiary - - (59) - (59)
RZE-=F+-4 Net carrying amount at
=+ -BANREFE 31 December 2023 619,123 120,442 36,397 - 775,962
R-ZE-=%+-A At 31 December 2023:
=+-8:
A Cost 877,962 1,609,246 86,758 433,932 3,007,898
g 3¢ Accumulated amortisation - (626,790) (41,502) (433932  (1,102,224)
AE Impairment (258,839) (862,014) (8,859) - (1,129,712)
REFE Net carrying amount 619,123 120,442 36,397 - 775,962
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31 DECEMBER 2023

18. BEEE ») 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continved)
ETH BT
EmAE REKA e RE XPHE st
Product Deferred Trademark
development development and Customer
in progress costs software relationships Total
ARBFT ARETFT ARETFT ARBFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZEZ—%+-A At 31 December 2021 and
Z+-BAR-T-F at 1 January 2022:
—A—B:
AR Cost 665,332 1,504,661 68,588 433,932 2,672,513
ZitEH Accumulated amortisation - (582,264) (29,640) (433,932) (1,045,836)
BE Impairment (254,927) (758,098) (3,549) - (1,016,574)
REFE Net carrying amount 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
MZZZZF—F—HHK  Costat1January 2022,
EEI Y 5 net of accumulated
RRfE amortisation and impairment 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
HNE Additions 173,600 - 17,878 - 191,478
HE Disposal (24,575) - (303) - (24,878)
BHEY Amortisation charge - (31,034) (5,878) - (36,912)
BAE () (FTEE19) Impairment (i) (note 19) (3,912) (103,916) (5,310 - (113,138)
BREBETHERRE Transfer from product development
in progress (3,200) 3,200 - - -
HERBLAR Disposal of subsidiaries - (191) - - (191)
R-BE-—&+=-R Net carrying amount at
=+ -BANREFE 31 December 2022 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462
R-E-—F+-H At 31 December 2022:
=t—R:
AR Cost 811,157 1,506,808 86,163 433,932 2,838,060
i 3¢ Accumulated amortisation - (612,436) (35,518) (433,932) (1,081,886)
AE Impairment (258,839) (862,014) (8,859) - (1,129,712)
REFE Net carrying amount 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462

(i)

HRBEITENMIRFANAEE LR
HRG  AEBETEEBEBIETER
FIRREIFREGIK - SRAEF I FiliTE B
B — PR Bl AKEWRATE
FEEETHERAZENEREEZS
BREBE UERBE-_T_—_F+=
A=+—BUHFEHMTHRANEREHE R
o IRy EE B AR 3,912,000 7T ©
ZeBENREBEBDERERNEEER
EITHE  TREEERBSEASEN
BRI AR e

Due to the fierce competition within the pharmaceutical industry and the limitation
of the Group’s resource, the management of the Group considered the future return
rate of certain projects was low and decided to discontinue further development of
the aforementioned projects. Accordingly, the Group recognised full impairment loss
for the carrying values of certain product development in progress and an impairment
loss amounting to RMB3,912,000 in relation to the generic medicine segment was
recorded during the year ended 31 December 2022. This amount of impairment
loss was assessed based on the individual-asset level, and was not included in the
impairment testing based on CGUs.
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B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM

ASSETS INCLUDING GOODWILL

The management performed impairment testing of long-term assets on CGUs
with impairment indicators. Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the acquired subsidiaries, which are CGUs, for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a fixed-year period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the fixed-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
pharmaceutical business in which the CGUs operates.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the CGUs for
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of long-term assets including goodwill:

Projected revenue: Management determined the projected revenue
based on the historical sales performance, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the policy and
economic environment.

Gross profit margins: Management determined budgeted gross profit
margins based on past performance and their
expectations of market development.

Terminal growth rates: The terminal growth rates used are consistent with the
forecasts included in inflation rate.

Discount rates: The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units. When
determining the estimated discount rates, the Group
used the key parameters by reference to certain listed
companies of the same industry. Given the nature of
the Group’s business, the discount rates adopted fall
within the reasonable range.
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19.

224

RPEE (BIEHE) BE
B E )
BE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—RHILEE
A B DR E -

HE-_T_—_F+-A=+—HIL#HF
EoEE RERBEXALR ME - KE
REE REWE HELMAREE
REH 2B EEED A RES761,000
L AR®103,916,0007C ~ A R#
1,091,743,000 7T + A K #772,0007T *
A R #84,509,000 7t & A R # 5,310,000
TTERBZPER -

FEHEE(BEBE) ZRENERE -
HEREHEESEREERE S (LE
RAEMELm) MRS RRE T K
FERETHENERSEY -

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM
ASSETS INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no impairment recognised
in profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment losses of goodwill,
deferred development costs, property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, leasehold land and trademark and software of RMB8,761,000,
RMB103,916,000, RMB1,091,743,000, RMB772,000, RMB84,509,000 and
RMB5,310,000 were recognised in profit or loss respectively.

The impairment of long-term assets including goodwill is based on an assessment
of the impact on prescription and procurement patterns after the promulgation
of the National Catalog of the Second Batch of Drugs under Close Monitoring of
Rational Drug Use (for Chemical Medicines and Biological Products).
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ARERIWT - 2HEBELHAF -

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023, all of which are
unlisted companies.

B 75 R B ot
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31 DECEMBER 2023

SR, ENR RS
AR B TRFEPREFLH ot {3t 2 HEEAR L B1(%)
EE &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
BEER (BE)ARAR REBREER £ 10,0007 T 100 -
Sun Moral International (HK) Limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000
R2ER (F8)BRAR REBBEXSHERRE B 1,000,000/ 7 - 81
Yaojin International (HK) Limited Medical beauty sales and investment Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
in Hong Kong
BENRBEARAR* NP EIR S B R E R HE R A& 200,000,000 70 - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB200,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
ERORAREEBRRF ** REBEASREREER RE RN AR 250,000,000 7 - 100
Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB250,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
BENREEERARAF R ERERERE S RS A AR #1,000,0007C - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Information Provision of information support services Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
RYIMRE EERAR PR E RS R R E R RER AR 50,000,000 7T - 100
Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.**  Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
IREFM B ER AR AR ** R ERGRE T ERERESL R E Ayt AR 100,000,000 7 - 62.39
Shandong Xuanzhu Pharma Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D and industrialization of Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000
innovative medicine in Chinese Mainland
B eERBREER AR B RS B B R A R A AR 30,000,000 - 100
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical materials Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
ERREENHARARAR PP B A AR A A 3 AR 7S RE R AR3,600,0007T - 100
Beijing Ao He Research Institute Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB3,600,000
ENRORAEEBRNF > REBEASREREER A AR 62,500,000 - 100
Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB62,500,000

in Chinese Mainland
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20. RMMB AN E @)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

R ARNR RS
REEH TEEHRERMLE it AMEE £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
REABEXBERAF R EIR R E R E hE A AR 16,880,000 7T - 80
Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB16,880,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
BlEEBREBRAR ROBEALEHREER HE RN AR¥7,220,0007C - 81
Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB7,220,000
in Chinese Mainland
Smart Baskets Investment Limited AR & R EBERARES 1% - 100
Investment holding in Chinese Mainland BVI Uss$1
BT USHEFROA RPEAMETREREERNRASE TEAK A& 19,500,007 - 100
Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* Project preparation for the manufacture of Chinese Mainland RMB19,500,000
pharmaceutical products in Chinese Mainland
KEBRHEBRAF PR E RS R E & RElR AR 26,875,0007C - 79
Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB26,875,000
in Chinese Mainland
BRRREEERE(LR)ARAR il biukiid: 25 4] HE RN AR H60,000,0007C - 51
e-HMO (Beijing) Co., Ltd.** Promotion of technology in Chinese Mainland  Chinese Mainland RMB60,000,000
ERORREEEBRAF B B R E B A AR 334,440,000 0 - 90
Jilin Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.**  Construction for medical project Chinese Mainland RMB334,440,000
in Chinese Mainland
EMORREBRAF DR B 7 1 FE A RER AR 10,300,0007C - 51
Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd.** Promotion of technology in Chinese Mainland  Chinese Mainland RMB10,300,000
ERORERIBHRARAR HR B A R A A AR 18,870,0007 - 27
Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Technology Co., Ltd.**  Promotion of technology in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB18,870,000
EMREREERRF RPBREREREER HE N AR 58,500,0007C - 100
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB58,500,000
in Chinese Mainland
BRI RERRAF RPER S E R E R E R AR 19,500,0007C - 100
Jilin Jinsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB19,500,000
in Chinese Mainland
EREFEERB(EM) BRAF P Bl E S B S E RER AR 10,000,0007C - 81
Shengke Aesthetic Medicine PharmaSciences ~ Marketing of medical aesthetic products Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000

(Jilin) Co., Ltd.**

in Chinese Mainland
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B3 ANAfEER
kT TEEHRERMLE it AMEE £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
BHLEREERBRAR PB4 1% A AR B A AR 100,000,000 7T - 100
Longyu Hongda Investment Management Investment holding in Chinese Mainland Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000
Co., Ltd.**
BHEBEEBRAR RPER SRR EER RER AR 50,000,0007C - 100
Xizang Kangxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
EMRERREEBRNF RPBREREREER HE N AR 30,000,007 - 100
Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
BN IBRAR RPEIR R E R E hE A A& 100,000,000 70 - 100
Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
SANHERR AR DR B A AR A 3 AR 7S R A AR 50,000,0007C - 100
Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd.* Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland  Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
BEETRREREEARAF R E R RE R B RS R ER HERN AR B 240,000,000 7T - 57
R RS
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Management Provision of general hospital services and Chinese Mainland RMB240,000,000
Co., Ltd.** hospital management services in
Chinese Mainland
ERORREBERAF RPBEREE R EREER HE R AR 28,300,0007T - 51
Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd** Manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical Chinese Mainland RMB28,300,000
products in Chinese Mainland
EETRERERARAE e E AR R ER RS R E Ayt AR B 240,000,000 7T - 57
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Co., Ltd.** Provision of general hospital services Chinese Mainland RMB240,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
Radiant (Hong Kong) Investment Limited REBMERE KEARRES 50,000F T - 100
Property investment in Hong Kong BVI US$50,000
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B3 ANAfEER
REEH TEEHRERMLE it AMEE £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EMEABRNTHERBBR AR ** KBRS R EER R A AR #1,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Jinsheng Yingkai Marketing Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000
Management Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
HBENRERRA RAEHEREER REES 700,000,000 % T - 100
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Ltd. Investment holding in Cayman Islands Cayman Islands US$700,000,000
(B BERBBR AR REBREER B 10,0007 7T - 100
Xuanzhu (HK) Biopharmaceutical Limited Investment holding in Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD10,000
ST MM RN BRRE T B PRI R A B 3 AR A AR% 450,614,290 - 62.39
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. *** Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB450,614,290
B EDRERHARATF RPEIR R E R E R A A& 372,000,000 70 - 68.47
Huisheng Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB372,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
EREABZERAENBEARAF REBEALEHEREER B A AR 64,977,290 7 - 81
Beijing Meiyan Space Biomedical Co., Ltd.** ~ Marketing of medical aesthetic products Chinese Mainland RMB64,977,290
in Chinese Mainland
A (L R) BEMRARAE ** R ERRE T EREREXL A AR B 560,000,000 7 - 62.39
XuanZhu (Beijing) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D and industrialization of Chinese Mainland RMB560,000,000
innovative medicine in Chinese Mainland
REEFENRBEBBRRF > A B 4 R A B B AR 75 hE R AR 10,000,0007T - 68.47
Changchun Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical - Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.**
EREZEENHEARAF ** e B AR T R R E Ayt AR 10,000,0007C - 68.47
Beijing Huizhiheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000

Co., Ltd.**
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B3 ANAfEER
kT TEEHRERMLE it AMEE £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EREFENRBEBBRRE > PR EI SR LA 3R 7S B A AR 10,000,000 7T - 68.47
Beijing Huisheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.**
Ak (e BEFABERAR RPERGEHEEER HE RN AR 10,000,0007C - 100
Nectarine (Beijing) e-commerce Co., Ltd.** Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
ERBBICIBRAR RPBREREREER R E st AR 28,000,007 - 100
Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd.** Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMB28,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
BILBERENREBBRAR KBRS R EER R A AR #4,380,0007T - 100
Tonghua Hongji Health Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical products Chinese Mainland RMBA4,380,000
Management Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
BEEHBENRARAE T B st SR A AP 2 AR B A AR 8,000,000 - 62.39
Hainan Huixuan Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.**  Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB8,000,000
EREEERREARAR e B b 1 41 B8 e 8 PR 7 R E A AR #30,000,0007T - 81
Beijing Meiyan Space Technology Co., Ltd.**  Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
ERZEEEMRE(FH)BERAF RAER M EEE R A R A AEK#10,000,0007T - 81
Meiyan Space (Jilin) Biological Technology Manufacture of medical instruments Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
BREECEM) - ABRDA REFIRERRRA RF JRPTH 25,0007 - 100
Sun Moral International (Macau) Limited Manufacture of medical instruments Macau Macau pataca

in Macau

("MOP") 25,000

FJZ R 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

229



B 75 ¥ K P o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F_=F+=A=t+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

20. RHIB AR E @)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B3 ANAfEER
REEH TEEHRERMLE it AMEE £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EMREAEIRMTERAABRAT e B P 3 41 AR W A 4 B PR 7 R AR ¥500,0007C - 100
Jilin Huisheng Biotechnology Information Provision of biotechnology promotion service  Chinese Mainland RMB500,000
Consulting Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
FEERBERBEABRRE > A B st SR A AP 2 AR HE R AR 10,000,0007C - 711
Benxi Jiangcheng Pharma Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
MREZE (B REERER R RAESREREER EEE L 50,000%7T - 100
(BI78 - ZETHEEERAR)
Sihuan Pharmaceutical (Overseas) Investment holding in the Cayman Islands Cayman Islands US$50,000
Investment Management Limited
(formerly known as Beauty Space Group
Limited)
MR (BR) BEREBRAR RABERMDERE R A AEH10,000,0007C - 51
Sihuan (Fujian) Pharmaceutical Investment Property investment in Chinese Mainland Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
Limited**
EREMEREDHRARAF ** R E AR A SRR REEL R E Ayt AR H30,000,0007C - 62.39
Beijing Xuanzhu Combio Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D and industrialization of Chinese Mainland RMB30,000,000
innovative medicine in Chinese Mainland
Meiyen Laboratory Inc. REBR M B EWE BB xE 1,000% 7T - 68.85
Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services United States US$1,000
in the United States
BEXBAENEE(FE)BRAT REB R B LA RS Bk 5,000,000 7T - 81
Precision Aesthetics Biomedicine Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Hong Kong US$5,000,000
(Hong Kong) Limited in Hong Kong
T (BFB) EMMRER AT * REBREAERE X AR 200,000,000 7 - 62.39
Xuanzhu (HK) Biotechnology Limited* Provision of R&D services in Hong Kong Hong Kong RMB200,000,000
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B3 ANAfEER
kT TEEHRERMLE {2 HERER £l (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
XZENITH BIOTECHNOLOGY INC REBREE RS EJel 100,000% 7T - 62.39
Provision of R&D services in the United States  United States US$100,000
Genesis Biosystems, Inc REBRBBEEWERE %E 20,000 7T - 81
Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services United States US$20,000
in the United States
FEERENRBRARRE P Bl R 4 B8 SR A B AR 7S HE N AR H50,000,0007C - 81
Meiyan International Biological Technology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
EEEE (T £ MR BB AR+ PR BT SR 4 B SR A B R TS A AR 50,000,000 - 81
Meiyan Space (Hebei) Biological Technology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd.** in Chinese Mainland
TER R 2 AR AR A ** P EI  B2 41 B8 S A B PR 7 R A AR 10,000,0007C - 81
Jiangsu Yuezhiyan Technology Co., Ltd.** Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000
in Chinese Mainland
TEERCEERARCE(BRAY) »+ ROENMRERR A AR 100,000,000 7T - 100
Shanghai Xiangmao Enterprise Management  Investment holding in Chinese Mainland Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000
Partnership Enterprise Limited Partnership****
BlBERBBRAR P EIR 1% A AR A AR 400,000 - 100
Tonghua Yilu Technology Co., Ltd.** Investment holding in Chinese Mainland Chinese Mainland RMB400,000
AL BREBR AR P B st R A B R T B AR TS HE R AR 10,000,0007T - 81
Hebei Yazhiyan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.** Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services in - Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000

Chinese Mainland
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20. RIB R BINKRE @) 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continved)
B3 ANRfEER
REEH TEEBREE N it HMEX Lol (%)
B &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EHEMFRENEBRAR R EI R SR R 3R TS B A AR #5,000,0007C - 68.47
Wuxi Huierkang Technology Co., Ltd.** Provision of R&D services in Chinese Mainland ~ Chinese Mainland RMBS5,000,000
R (BR) BEMBEBRAF > e B AR BB R HE R AR 5,000,0007C - 56.7
Meiyan Space (Guangdong) Pharmaceutical Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services in -~ Chinese Mainland RMBS5,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd.*** Chinese Mainland
EREBRERMENRRERAR R B REEXTERSE HE N AR H50,000,0007C - 81
Beijing Meiyan Space Biotechnology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D servicesin  Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland
* ZEWB AR NBEPEDEEF * These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises
MAIIEBERE - under PRC law.
> ZEWBRARRIERBUAEE **  These subsidiaries were registered as limited liability companies under PRC
MRERTERF - law.
Rk Z TR R Ty IRE R B2 ***  This subsidiary was registered as a foreign-invested enterprise under PRC
RINEIRE R - law.
wRxx SZ T A R Ty IR R AR B 2 R **** This subsidiary was registered as a limited liability partnership under PRC
REBREBDLE- law.
RZE-_=Z=F+_A=+—8 1Kk The total non-controlling interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at
TEMBRARAMNEIEREGHAR 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB704,894,000 (2022:
#704,894,000C (Z T —F: AR RMB902,828,000), which are individually not material.

902,828,0007T) ' BLERIMEILTEKX °
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21. EARERETENRE

B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

+=A=+-—H
31 December
—EC-=F — ==
2023 2022
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 573,721 599,294
WEER R EE Goodwill on acquisition 465,209 472,191
1,038,930 1,071,485
VERIERE Y Provision for impairment (389,311) (389,311)
649,619 682,174

AEEEBENRINEECEABNE
ZEWERREER B EEASRD BRI

MR FE25 M 23 E -

ZAIER S

ERERBENRAAELESAER
AERSELEMAETRERR -
ReELfBUmARERERERER
AEEAEE R BEENDEREEEM
HERZBEFHRNM BBEBERKAR
eREBRAHE BEFHUARNRS
w8 BB T (i 5 48 = R E FTHEER -

HER_E_=F+-_A=+—HEKZ=
T _F+ A=+ RHEBRENFERE
EREERABRER  TXIHELTEEE#
TIREREARBEER S REEE

RzEBREERR

BN EEERBEAAHEREE
EEAWE  YRBRREEEREEE

ATIE LR R AE R -

ENE - EREENBERRRETS

BRNEMETEEENE -

BEE:AEANTFHERRETER

ERTE TR — B

BB E: ARANMBRRAHA TR
R AR B B AL R0 4 RE LR o FEORE (AT B
BEE AEEZ2ETETRTELD

ATHREY -

The Group’s trade receivable and non-current asset balances related to associates
and joint ventures are respectively disclosed in notes 25 and 23 to the financial

statements.

Impairment testing

The management recognised each associate or joint venture as one CGU for
impairment testing. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a fixed-year period approved by management. Cash flows
beyond the fixed-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates

stated below.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the investments at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to

undertake impairment testing of investments:

Projected revenue: Management determined the projected revenue based on the
historical sales performance, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

policy and economic environment.

Gross profit margins: Management determined budgeted gross profit margins

based on past performance and their expectations of market development.

Growth rates: The average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts

included in industry reports.

Discount rates: The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units. When determining the estimated discount rates, the
Group used the key parameters by reference to certain companies of the same

industry.
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21.

FRESEFTENRE
(%)
BE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE -
TERNEEFTERRE =22 ==
F+_A=Z+—BLEE REBEY
AR #389,311,000 T2 A B R FER ©
BEZYTEREFRBREEELEMD
A Uk B & B8 &K T AT A AT A0 R 3K
EBRBMB -

ZEBHERTARAZECERMARAR
HERMHWEMISHRE W EABANEE
REE R RAEDERDHHARILE -

AEERBEARRAELENERY
BEARAZEMBRRFAENMEE
mily  ERMEERNERIVEBA
REZEZEMBEBRARHA °

FRRFIAREEYTEARE QTR
AEECRNEATIEER

21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQU ITY METHOD (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no impairment recognised
in profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December 2022, an impairment loss
of approximately RMB389,311,000 was recognised in the profit or loss. The
impairment changes are driven by the lower recoverable amount of CGU resulting
in the directors’ reassessment of estimated future business performance.

The associates and joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted
market prices available for these shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating
to the Group’s interests in the associates and joint ventures.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates and joint ventures all comprise
equity shares held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, except for
the shareholdings in two entities which are held through non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group’s
associates and joint ventures that are not individually material:

MERRRBEE Summarised statements of financial position
BHERNTAREELHE
Associates and Joint Ventures
+=A=+-8
31 December
—E== —E-_F
2023 2022
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
mE Current
BE Assets 1,271,874 1,054,859
BE Liabilities (1,264,362) (867,161)
WREEEFE Total net current assets 7,512 187,698
JEMED Non-current
BE Assets 1,710,300 1,496,542
aE Liabilities (518,640) (494,499)
RIERBEEFE Total net non-current assets 1,191,660 1,002,043
FEERR R = Non-controlling interests (59,116) -
BEFE Net assets 1,140,056 1,189,741
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2. ERAEREFENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
(%) EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BRRME Summarised statements of profit or loss
HEARAREELE
Associates and Joint Ventures
—EB-=F —E-—F
2023 2022
AR® T AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
W s Revenue 371,247 281,081
FrPTIS BRI E 18 Loss before income tax (157,262) (380,201)
s Income tax expense (578) (469)
FEEE Loss for the year (157,840) (380,670)
ZHEIBR%E Total comprehensive loss (157,840) (380,670)
AT FE1E - Attributable to:
RARHEA A Owners of the Company (156,925) (380,670)
SRR Non-controlling interests (915) -
BLEE R R M T R A LN B The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
FE R BT 2 51| #) B AN £ B BB A N T R of the associates and joint ventures adjusted for differences in accounting policies
LS e @ TR S EE o among the Group and the associates and joint ventures.
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21. EAEREFENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
(%) EQUITY METHOD (continued)
MEERNBEHER Reconciliation of summarised financial information
25 MBERMERRBE AT RE Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying
EERSIRAMENEE - amount of its interests in associates and joint ventures.
HERNTAREELHE
Associates and Joint Ventures
—E=-= —E-—F
2023 2022
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—RA—BREIEERE Opening net assets 1 January 1,189,741 422,212
[REEE Capital injection by shareholders 107,618 73,689
Mg E AR e EhE Addition of associates and joint ventures - 1,157,626
FEEIE Loss for the year (156,925) (380,670)
% 8. Dividends (378) (83,116)
FREEFE Closing net assets 1,140,056 1,189,741
REERRRAEELENER Interest in associates and joint ventures 573,721 599,294
[l Goodwill 465,209 472,191
b Impairment (389,311) (389,311)
BREA Carrying value 649,619 682,174
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31 DECEMBER 2023

22. BAFETFTAEZNEG 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

'E

TXEAAEERFRABAENTHE
BEReMBREEY EH5REME
U BR A R AR HR A7 SRER M) B 22

PROFIT OR LOSS

Set out below is an overview of financial assets, other than cash and cash

as at the end of the year:

equivalents, trade and other receivables and pledged deposits, held by the Group

+=H=+-—-H
31 December
—EB-=F —E-—
2023 2022
Bt & AR¥T T ARKETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ERE Non-current
BATERFABRED Financial assets at fair value through

TREE profit or loss:

BATEFERELTRERE Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 354,275 225,164
kB Total non-current (i) 354,275 225,164
B Current
BATERFABRED Financial assets at fair value through

TREE profit or loss:

BHIE S Wealth management products 589,016 962,988
B AR Total current (ii) 589,016 962,988
HthtemEEHAE Total other financial assets 943,291 1,188,152
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31 DECEMBER 2023

22. BRAVEHFABEZNEH

238

BE#)

(i)

EXRZE_=ZF+=_A=+—
HOREREDERIEAFER
ABENEREE AR AEER
T RENEME2EKREERA
AT EEZ -

&R IE LT s B R
BIRE - ARBRRAIRARRETE
ZEERkG - BIWEA AR
BEGEIBREATEAAR
b 2 E UL S

ZRBEEATEABETEER
F 1 SR 1T 31T HE B E A = # IE B
Eme 2FEVERBCRHIDER
BRAHEFABRSNEREE B
REAHWRETREAIFERLD
R BATIR o

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(i)

The above equity investments at 31 December 2023 were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has not
elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other comprehensive
income.

The amount represents equity investments in the unquoted equity shares.
The Group intends to hold these equity shares for the foreseeable future
and has not irrevocably elected to classify them at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The amount represents wealth management products issued by certain
reputable banks in Chinese Mainland with no fixed interest rate. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest.
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23. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

+=—HA=+—H

31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
Bt AR TR AREFIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B = QR ER Loans to associates 39/(ii) 258,000 431,521
ME=ZFER Loans to third parties 0%D) 58,533 134,436
Hfth FE Y AR R Other receivables (i) 3,000 13,000
EERHEEMENRIE Prepayments for purchase of long-term assets 11,948 15,402
331,481 594,359

(ii)

R-ZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H8 "
FE=ZFEENER (RIEEFRAS
REKRRE) nEERWER-F
THEFER - BIRTFS%E -
e RFBAGHRE AR o

N5 B ) S4B 3R (B R R R
FBEMNBEARTNER ME=
75 BB CE b FE UK BR 5R) O BR AR R
#l - BEERBRERE - R
EN&EHEHaRERETHE
B o BT A st A% 4 ) EL 4t FE W AR 3R
WHERHEE NSRS - N
—E-=FER-_FT-_—_F+-A4
=1+—HB  BEBEWRTAMTRE
;E °

(ii)

As at 31 December 2023, loans to third parties including the loan principal
and interest receivable were unsecured and repayable in 2027. Interests are
charged at 5% annually. Principal and interest will be paid at maturity.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
including loans to associates, loans to third parties and other receivables to
minimise credit risk. Long aging balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Other receivables included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past due
amounts. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.
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24 78 24. INVENTORIES
+=A=+-~H
31 December
—E-=F —E -
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
L) Finished goods 318,811 292,183
R Raw materials 198,344 266,779
TR Work in progress 100,506 128,194
HAth Others 36,508 29,821
654,169 716,977
FERE Provision for inventories (96,846) (110,277)
557,323 606,700
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 DECEMBER 2023

+=—HA=+—H

31 December
—E-= —E__—F
2023 2022
Bt ARET R AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BoRWER—%=7 Trade receivables — third parties (i) 393,211 513,818
e IR Notes receivable (i) 60,256 72,276
B = QR ER Loans to associates 39/(iii) 243,525 83,765
ME=ZFER Loans to third parties (iii) 141,475 28,922
TEMT R SRR Prepayments to suppliers 89,611 141,022
JE o EL i B Bk 75 R IE Amounts due from other related party 39 9,600 9,600
Bl —R&&RERE Amount due from a joint venture 39 4,478 3,695
JE W — Bk 8 A AR IE Amount due from an associate 39 224 224
RS Dividends receivable 39 40,912 40,727
HE B A R 2 EUWRER R Receivable for disposal of subsidiaries 82,517 101,385
Hfth FE U AR R Other receivables (iv) 152,902 215,108
1,218,711 1,210,542
B SRR AR E B E Provision of impairment on trade receivables (55,650) (63,848)
A B WK IE HY R (B B Provision of impairment on other receivables (28,311) (28,066)
1,134,750 1,118,628
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U]

BIRUER-—E=7

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

0]

Trade receivables — third parties

+=HA=+—H
31 December
—E=-= —E -
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
= TG Trade receivables 393,211 513,818
B E Provision for impairment (55,650) (63,848)
337,561 449,970

242 VY IR B8 B2 i

AEBEBREEPZRXSGHRT

Euﬁfﬁtﬁ ﬁﬁ%?—&
ARANARGRI - EEH—RR=
EXEA HREI2EPARZH
ERE—F -XEFPHEEHEAREE
EBR- $E@ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ag

MR IE 2 BRAR T2 I - =&
%UJKFﬁ LAZE EEE¢ﬂiﬁ§ff B e
mgadms ﬁmEFE%ﬁ

ﬂ&m% %FLX%Lﬁﬁig
MEZREERSRAESEE
B IESEAEARBRET - A%
By ERE S ERERFIERTE
EAEARAEMERER - ES
EERRRE -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except
for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period is generally from three to six months, extending up to one
year for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed and monitored regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.
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—EZ=%+=ZR=+—H
31 DECEMBER 2023

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables — third parties (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the year, based
on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

#) -
+=HA=+—H
31 December
—E=-= —E__—F
2023 2022
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
3EAR Within 3 months 177,132 237,080
3=6fdA 3 to 6 months 81,272 55,058
6EAZE14 6 months to 1 year 20,581 80,481
— A+ More than 1 year 58,576 77,351
337,561 449,970
BESRKEFRENBERHEHS The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
BT - are as follows:
+=A=+-8
31 December
—EB=-= T
2023 2022
AR%TR AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FH) At beginning of year 63,848 43,640
PERIEREE: ] Impairment, net (8,198) 20,208
FR At end of year 55,650 63,848
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5. EZ REMEWBRIR @
() BOEKEX-F=F(E)

RERE HHRABEEMETT

HEDT - At 2TREEERRE -

BHXDERE S EERRNE
BREESE © &at B R A R INiEAS
R ERRERNRE HAASEH
BEBESEE - BT ARRE

BTN AIERAISEEHR -

R-B-=%+=-A=+—H

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

U

Trade receivables — third parties (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on ageing of trade receivables. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2023

H 5 EWARR Y AR
Ageing of trade receivables
DR1E 1225 2E3F HBiB3F #5t
Less than 1to 2 2to3 Over
1 year years years 3 years Total
TREEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 2.84% 26.49% 71.64% 100.00%
HRERHEE Gross carrying amount
(ARETT) (RMB’000) 287,146 73,653 15,613 16,799 393,211
TREEEEE Expected credit losses
(ARETT) (RMB’000) 8,155 19,511 11,185 16,799 55,650

RZEZZF+=A=+—H

As at 31 December 2022

B 5 MR R
Ageing of trade receivables
DR1E 1224 2E3F BB 3 F #Et
Less than 1t02 2t03 Over
1 year years years 3 years Total
TBEEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 2.69% 32.24% 81.50% 100.00%
AR E Gross carrying amount
(AR¥FT) (RMB'000) 382,920 113,140 3,715 14,043 513,818
FEEEERE Expected credit losses
(AR¥EFT) (RMB'000) 10,301 36,476 3,028 14,043 63,848
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii)

Notes receivable are held with a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling as the Group
sometimes endorses notes receivable to suppliers prior to their expiry
date. These are classified as debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and presented as notes receivable. The fair value
changes of these notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive
income were insignificant during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding notes
receivable. As the notes receivable represent the irrevocable bank bills
issued by the banks in Chinese Mainland with high credit rating, the
Group estimated that the expected credit loss rate for notes receivable was
minimal.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed certain notes receivable
accepted by banks in Chinese Mainland (the “derecognised notes”) to
certain of its suppliers and banks in order to settle the trade payables with a
carrying amount in aggregate of RMB45,072,000. The derecognised notes
had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders
of the derecognised notes may exercise the right of recourse against any,
several or all of the persons liable for the derecognised notes, including
the Group, in disregard of the order of precedence (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the risk of the Group being
claimed by the holders of the derecognised notes is remote in the absence
of a default of the accepted banks. The Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the derecognised notes. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the derecognised notes
and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised notes and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these derecognised notes is equal
to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised notes are not
significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised loss
amounting to RMB114,000 on the date of transfer of the derecognised
notes. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.
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25. ES RHMEWRI @

(iii)

(iv)

REEBNKBEFHREEELRN
BiEES - B EERBRERE -
EXGH R LEEETHE
B EXFIRmBEE AR RE=F
EEMERL ELHENTER
BHEE RZTE_=FR=F
ZZF+ZA=+—H  EEEE
W AR RE -

Hip el Rk Eie ke -
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AEBERBERMHHRELEDE
9 5% 5T 1ty I A 2R L tb JIE UK AR BURL
B AR 28,311,000T (=&
T E+-A=t+—H: AR
28,066,000 7T) ©

Hah EWERFORE M EIE R &2
g :

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans to
minimise credit risk. Material balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Loans to associates and third parties shown above had no
recent history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2023
and 2022, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers. Expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The Group assessed and recognised a provision for impairment of
other receivables amounting to RMB28,311,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB28,066,000) in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2023.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables
are as follows:

+=A=+—H
31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F7) At beginning of year 28,066 19,831
VERIEDEE:] Impairment net 245 8,235
FR At end of year 28,311 28,066
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31 DECEMBER 2023

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

BEM PLEDGED DEPOSITS
+=ZA=t+—H
31 December
—B=-= —E-—
2023 2022
AR%TR AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Re MRITER Cash and bank balances 3,057,135 2,664,842
TEHTF K Time deposits 964,287 1,341,222
4,021,422 4,006,064
AW EERER Less: Pledged deposits
BITEt ERITERE R pledge for interest-bearing bank borrowings
(Fff 3% 34) (note 34) 98,000 140,000
FFEASEPE frozen for lawsuits 14,000 33,207
BITHEEIEEGH pledged for construction in progress 756 3,994
=B A A E5E BiIfF R time deposits over three months 130,000 -
BehIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,778,666 3,828,863

RITRSBATRARITFERF KT HE
FEREAE c RFAKENRKREE
KfE  EHMERFRANF —RE=
A8~ REEEEL  WIZAEERE
HIE A RIS - RITEHRREE
AEREFRNOHEENELBEER
FFEVERTT ©

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.
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26. e R BEeEEYREEHE 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

R @ PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)
AEERSREAHNRERAESEE The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are denominated
M T A EEFHE - in the following currencies:
+=H=+-—-H
31 December
—B=-= —Eo—F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARKETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR RMB 3,469,689 2,521,211
ESVH usb 272,582 1,118,302
BT HKD 34,334 186,861
BT EUR 1,711 1,616
P MOP 350 873
3,778,666 3,828,863
ARBTIEHERAEMES - A The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Chinese
IRIE B AMNEE IR R TE DA R 45 HE - B fE Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
RNEEERRE RNEBELESRBER Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
AETINEXB CRITHBRARE BE permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
fth B - conduct foreign exchange business.
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27. RAER R G @E 27. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

BRTR
EEZBER BEZER
2B #H (&S AR B st
Number of
Number of issued and
authorised fully paid
ordinary ordinary Share Share
shares shares capital premium Total
TR T’ AR®T ARBT R ARBT R
Share’000 Share’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
W-ZE-_—_&#—Hf—H As at 1 January 2022 and
K-ZT-—F+—-4 31 December 2022 and at
—t+—HBERZ-ZT-=%F 31 December 2023
+-A=+—H (HK$0.01 per share)
(BREE0.01%87T) 100,000,000 9,329,999 77,058 3,882,304 3,959,362

() RKRZTEZ=ZFR  AAAREN=
T oF T AR T ==
& 1 B2 =T &I LA 421X & 38,314,000
B (BESEMAS) BERAR
#33,811,00070) PR B XX B S Bl H
48,433,000 f& B& 1D °

28. ARG BHERBNLRK

RATEREE

AR B8 ((RAEa &)
EERMAREEXRDELELERNA
ERSEERUUBDRER - ZtEH
SERSEEBRARRER (BEBY
FERITEE)  AEEHMES  AKE
EmRRBHER AEBEP AR
AR ER Ko A X R B B8 & B A f FE#2E AR A
ReZBRN _T—tF+A=-+HA
ERC BRAITEUBSHER] - &A%
RE+FERDHERR -

R E B ER S AT R H A AT B B AR
EETEME TETNARARBRMHEE -
BZAETERBRNIWERE TR
MEI10% - AITERIFEREEE T
MERITEREFTENEBRED
BTFETHROEE 2T EBAER
A EHE 2 BT D H30% © ZE(E{A 12
BEAHEARRFERN—RAEERAL
R R (BIEE1TE MM ARTTER B
) ETFEMERHITRE FEITHNROE
B SZ M ERBR TR E 1% -

(i) During the year of 2023, the Company repurchased 48,433,000 of its own
shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration, including expenses,
of HK$38,314,000 (equivalent to RMB33,811,000) for 2022 Share Award
Scheme adopted on October 2022.

. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-
controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 24 October 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share of the Company to be issued upon exercise of
all options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the any time. The maximum
number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue at the any time. The maximum number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to any one Eligible Person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the shares at the any time.
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28. LR AERNS R @)

AATBRETTE (2
RZBE_TFNAZF+AB AR2FR
BARRR-_ZE—+tFE+A=-+MAR
MEERESE AEAERSHEER
& 94,656,000 HE Rk 1 - & L A] 3R
BADNARAFTGREEOOE LY
94,656,000 % & i@ A% - AR EETEITE T
BHHBREGFENS T HB KT (10
B)MREEESRE=-FALRSEBETE
BoitsE  BitA33.33% (= 2—) °
FERETERERGHRETEER
Z(nB) % BRETHS=FEKRER
AT JETTLE o

RZZE——FhA—B AARIREAR
AARZE—tEF+TAZTHEARAN
BRETE MHEABEK2HEEELA
$£7,500,000 (% iR 4% - & H A REARR
AR AR F A EE0.01% LY 7,500,000
REBAR - BRETZBE TR EOBR
EEFENE THRBIRG (E) RN
THME=FRARSERAFERSIE
B 88A3333% (=9 2—) o FiEMK
ETREAERFHERETEERZ (0E)
% BREAS =FRNERIETE -

BREIIARTHEAESRERER
RRE LRENER -

VAT 58 PR AR 4 B8 AR BB BT B0 F R 2
T

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

On 26 August 2020, the Company granted a total of 94,656,000 share options
to the eligible participants of the Company to subscribe for a total of 94,656,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company pursuant
to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 October 2017. Share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme would be subject to certain
vesting conditions (if any) and vested in tranches of 33.33% (one-third) each on
each anniversary date following the date of grant for three years. Subject to the
satisfaction of certain performance appraisal conditions and certain performance
targets (if any), share options could be exercised in three-year installments and
until the expiry of share options.

On 1 September 2021, the Company granted a total of 7,500,000 share options
to the eligible participants of the Company to subscribe for a total of 7,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company pursuant
to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 October 2017. Share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme would be subject to certain
vesting conditions (if any) and vested in tranches of 33.33% (one-third) each on
each anniversary date following the date of grant for three years. Subject to the
satisfaction of certain performance appraisal conditions and certain performance
targets (if any), share options could be exercised in three-year installments and
until the expiry of share options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
during the year:

—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022
SRMEFY BREHE BRRNHEF 1T BRESRS
TEEER (F4) TEEET (F14)
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
HKS$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
®—A—H At 1 January 1.08 83,876 1.07 98,776
RERZIK Forfeited during the year 0.97 (2,266) 0.97 (14,900)
W+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 1.08 81,610 1.08 83,876

REBEEZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HEKZ=
T —F+ A=+ —RIEFERET
{58 ] B AR 4EE o

No share options were exercised for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

250 | mmEEmizgEEARA R SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



28. LR AERNS R @)

28.

B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

AATBRETTE (2 Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)
EETASEETEENERERZN The summary of the share options granted to certain employees of the Group is
ik as follows:
BRR % BERHE
TEERET REHAB (F4)
Exercise price Number of
in HKS per options granted
g =p Grant date share ‘000
—Z2_TF)\AZ+RH 26 August 2020 0.97 94,656
—T-—FAHA—H 1 September 2021 2.22 7,500
102,156

AT RERHRITEOBEREZTEE

The exercise prices and expiry dates of the share options outstanding as at the

LEIHARER - end of the year are as follows:
BREH
THEEET EEBERERTEN
Exercise price BREYE (TH)

HKS$ per BREYE (T47) Number of outstanding vested

FIE A Expiry date share Number of options ‘000 and exercisable options ‘000
—E=HF —E-—F —E-= —T-—F

2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=ZTHFNAHB=+HH 25 August 2030 0.97 74,110 76,376 70,360 65,496
—ZT=—%hA—H 1 September 2031 222 7,500 7,500 2,500 -
81,610 83,876 72,860 65,496
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28. LR AERNS R @)

AATERETS (©)

FA HRRAEGERSHEERIENER
EEMRGEAERIXHBERIAR
1,691,000 (T —F: ARK
2,127,0007T) - Wz NRERIAEEE) -

ARREEGRTESCDHEA_BAR
AEEBR=FRBHAENER D
BRENAFE ARAAEEGHITE
EEEA-BEAENRZRENERRE
ME - REERERHRBERE2HELE
EHE  ZESHENRARBOMELT

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

During the year, total expenses amounting to RMB1,691,000 (2022:
RMB2,127,000) were charged to the consolidated profit or loss for share options
granted to eligible participants with a corresponding change in equity.

The executive directors of the board of the Company have used the binomial
model to determine the fair value of the options granted, which is to be expensed
over the vesting period of three years. Significant judgement on parameters, such
as the risk-free rate, dividend yield and expected volatility, is required to be made
by the executive directors of the board of the Company in applying the binomial
model, of which the inputs are summarised below.

B —EEF

AA—H ANA=+7"H

1 September 26 August

e queg=p Grant date 2021 2020
R B ER T E Closing price at the grant date 2.22%7T 0.907% 7T
HK$2.22 HK$0.90

1 [ B ) Risk-free rate 1.33% 0.44%
iz 8% Dividend yield 0.72% 1.71%
T8 H R 08 (i) Expected volatility (i) 58.42% 44.81%

252

() RBIEHRECRNRERZF
HeEERE - IR BEA R RN
FHERESERANKEETE

FAEQTERBREI LMD R HBR
TR

FR ARAREBBRENENBETES
81,610,000 17 & K 17 50 /9 B IR 4 - B &
AABBRIMEARERE  2TEM
RITEWERESBRARREINE
781,610,000 % 3 18 X i/ A% [ 37 14 A% A
816,000/% 7T (#HE 7 A R #733,0007T)
(B1TR AL -

(i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation of expected
share price returns, is determined based on the average daily trading price
volatility of the shares of the Company.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement
of fair value.

At the end of the year, the Company had 81,610,000 share options outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 81,610,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$816,000 (equivalent to RMB733,000) (before issue expenses).
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HENBEROER
R &

RZZE-ZTFEXA=+ 8 EM4Y
BEBRHERAR ([$17] - AAEE—

KMBAR) EFEEZ BB HRER
AR R BRG BETE ([T =% =
TERMDAEED  BEMHLEESE
BEBUERBRNDARE157THER
R £ 79,695,000 1% IR Hl MERR 15 - ZE R
FIERGOENHATE=F -

iy

RZE-_—FNA+H SHNEELL
HBARE - URAEB RN EEET S
([ —FRHAEEE D 85

() HMHECEREEUTRR
MARBI2343 TN ERRE
49,642,300 AR PR 4l AR 15 - & 49 A7
B=F:

2 BEHFMN-_Z-_ZTEFRHY
BEE O HMETEEAEN
29,900,000 R BT & LB A=
FRITEEARSRBEHERS A
R¥0.263 LRI BRI

3) WBEHFM_Z_TFRMHAB
B OHMILERTAEREEN
44,045,000 AR BR 1 14 AR 9 & 2R 1T
(b= %tﬁxﬂxfﬁAEMo 2637LH)

B

4 HMHESCEREBEUSTRR
MARBO263TTHERRE
46,888,350 R BR I AR 15 - & 49 A7
BTF-

R-_ZE-—#=F=+—H HMUE
BEPE D AR #0263 TR AR 1.2343 7T
WEMRME A% ES K H$172,733,880
AR R 124,120 RIRHIMERR D - & HE A=
£|E o

RZEZZF+tAZ+—HERZZTZZ
F+—A=+8 #MUERBRHOAR
0263 THERME ERIEE D RIFE
& 17 933,104 % % 5,037,630 % PR il 14 %
m AHEBAR=F-

B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.

On 26 June 2020, the board meeting of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("Xuanzhu") (a subsidiary of the Group) passed a resolution to adopt an employee
share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme”) and 79,695,000
restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for eligible employees to subscribe at
the price of RMB1.57 per share. These restricted shares have a contractual term of
nil to three years.

On 10 September 2021, the board meeting of Xuanzhu passed resolutions
to adopt an employee share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2021 Share Incentive
Scheme”) including:

(1) 49,642,300 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for eligible
employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.2343 per share with a
contractual term of three years;

(2)  The 29,900,000 shares of Xuanzhu, which were granted to executives
under Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme, were replaced by a new
contractual term of three years and an exercise price of RMB0.263 per
restricted share;

(3)  The 44,045,000 restricted shares of Xuanzhu, which were approved to
eligible employees under Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme, were
modified with an exercise price of RMB0.263 per share; and

(4) 46,888,350 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for eligible
employees to subscribe at the price of RMB0.263 per share with a
contractual term of three years.

On 31 March 2022, Xuanzhu granted 2,733,880 and 124,120 restricted shares
of Xuanzhu to eligible employees at the price of RMB0.263 and RMB1.2343 per
share respectively with a contractual term of three years.

On 21 July 2022 and 30 November 2022, Xuanzhu granted 933,104 and
5,037,630 restricted shares of Xuanzhu, respectively, to eligible employees at the
price of RMBO0.263 per share with a contractual term of three years.
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28. LR AERNS R @) 28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

HMEYRBEROERA ARG Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co.,
HEEtE (2 Ltd. (continued)
LA B 13 SE AR SR BT AT AR 9 S B = 81 2% The following share awards were outstanding under Xuanzhu Share Incentive
FRREITE Scheme during the year:
—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022
SR nE B hnHE
FHRBEE R4 E T REE SuEgE
AR¥ T TR AR¥ET Tk
Weighted Weighted
average average
subscription Number subscription Number
price of shares price of shares
RMB per share ‘000 RMB per share ‘000
n—A—H At 1 January 0.921 163,251 0.938 169,887
REREH Granted during the year - - 0.277 8,829
RERZIK Forfeited during the year 0.804 (6,678) 0.738 (15,465)
W+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 0.926 156,573 0.921 163,251
BE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HIFE" For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has recorded share-based
AEEBFSURNAERBEEZRAAA compensation expenses of RMB72,266,000 (2022: RMB70,129,000).

R#72,266,000 T (ZE-—F : ARK
70,129,000 7T) °

R BB ek B BE A FE T E A The fair value as at the grant date or the date of modification was determined
MSEEELEE - TR RAERE using the market-value model. The following table lists the inputs to the model
Ry 8 A BUEK used:
—E-— T —F
2022 2021
BB ek B HREERS Grant date/modification date share price (RMB)

(AR¥T) 2.19 2.19
RIEE(ARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.23 1.23
47 5 e ) Risk-free rate 2.55% 2.55%
A Volatility 56.49% 56.49%
B B B 5 S B 8 Price-to-R&D expense multiple 12.8 38 A N/A
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BEAEYHERGER QARG
HEEtE

RZZZZF+—F+=H BAHED
HERNDERAR ([EFAEY] - BEAE
E—RMEAR)RREASEB —IBRZE
R URMEERDERTS (EALE
MBS E RS BEERAEDIES
BiREBUNERBROHDARB133THE
1% 72 B8 B F+ 4 127,950,000 A% R ] 14 B
17 ZERHIMEROHENHA=ENEF -

VAT B £ 22 D AR 43 B T AR W B AR
IR F ARETIE -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Huisheng Biopharmaceutical Co.,

Ltd.

On 13 November 2020, the shareholders’ meeting of Huisheng Biopharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Huisheng Biopharm”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed a resolution
to adopt an employee share award plan (“Huisheng Biopharm Share Incentive
Scheme”) and 27,950,000 restricted shares of Huisheng Biopharm were approved
for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.33 per share. These
restricted shares have a contractual term from three to four years.

The following share awards were outstanding under Huisheng Biopharm Share

Incentive Scheme during the year:

—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022

SR nE TR INHE
FHRBEE gy =] FIREEE Mefn gt B
AR¥ T TR AR¥ETT TR

Weighted Weighted

average average
subscription Number subscription Number
price of shares price of shares
RMB per share ‘000 RMB per share ‘000
®—H—H At 1 January 1.33 22,715 1.33 24,395
RERZIK Forfeited during the year 1.33 (1,440) 1.33 (1,680)
W+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 1.33 21,275 1.33 22,715

HE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HLFE "
1,440,000 % (== = —4F : 1,680,000 f%)
B B 35 B B 8 Uk o

For the year ended 31 December 2023, 1,440,000 (2022: 1,680,000) shares have

been forfeited since the grant date.
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28.

LU AERNSR @

EAEYHRERDERITRS
BB & ()
HE-_Z-_=6+-_A=+—HIFE "
NEBEHBURGAERBEERA
AR®8,144000 L (ZTEZZF : AR
#12,629,0007T) °

RELBHOAFEDERMSEBER
BUESTE o TRFIRATEE AREL M ABUR :

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Huisheng Biopharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has recorded share-based
compensation expenses of RMB8,144,000 (2022: RMB12,629,000).

The fair value as at the grant date was determined using the market-value model.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

BEAENRA
BB =t B
Huisheng
Biopharm
Share Incentive
Scheme

EHAREEER(ARET)
RBEARET)
B R ) 2R

B

Grant date share price (RMB) 1.89
Subscription price (RMB) 1.33
Risk-free rate 3.04%
Volatility

38.12%

256

R FEEEEAEYEESR AT
B 17 %5 B 51 &1
RZZE-_—_F+A—H  bFEBEEM
EYEEBRAT ([JLFXE] - BARE
BE-—RMEBAGR)ESCLRRBA—IBR
HERMNEBRG ZEF & (TR
EBRRMEERTE]) - B4 REERE
AEREEUSKRBRMHARE220TH
EI5 589,421,690 A% R HI AR 15 - 7% &
PR HIMEAR D B & HIER B = 2 PU4F -

Share Incentive Scheme of Beijing MeiYan Space Biomedical
Co., Ltd.

On 1 July 2022, the board meeting of Beijing MeiYan Space Biomedical Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Meiyan”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed a resolution to adopt
an employee share award plan (“Beijing Meiyan Share Incentive Scheme”)
and 9,421,690 restricted shares of Beijing MeiYan were approved for eligible
employees to subscribe at the price of RMB2.20 per share. These restricted shares
have a contractual term from three to four years.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Beijing MeiYan Space Biomedical
Co., Ltd. (continuea)

The following share awards were outstanding under the Beijing Meiyan Share
Incentive Scheme during the year:

—E_-_= —EF-=
2023 2022

=711 Bk

hnEF g i
REE RO BB REE P75 B
AR T TR AR¥ET T AR

Weighted Weighted

average average
subscription Number subscription Number
price of shares price of shares
RMB per share ‘000 RMB per share ‘000
®—A—H At 1 January 2.20 9,422 - -
REREH Granted during the year 2.20 43 2.20 9,422
REFRZU Forfeited during the year 2.20 (43) - -
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2.20 9,422 2.20 9,422

RERNEHOROZHORAFERAR
137,000 (BIRARM3.197m) (=
T - —F: AR¥30,076,0007L) * &
PAEFER _ZE-_=F+=-A=+—
BEFEABRRBRNMBEAZIAAR
#6,983,000 L (ZZE=ZZ_F : ARK
4,781,0007T) °

RELBHORATEDERTSEEBER
BUEETE o TRIIRATE AREL B i A BUR :

The fair value of the share awards granted during the year was RMB137,000
(RMB3.19 each share) (2022: RMB30,076,000), of which the Group recognised a
share award expense of RMB6,983,000 during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB4,781,000).

The fair value as at the grant date was determined using the market-value model.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

b FEER 4
BBt &
Beijing Meiyan
Share Incentive

Scheme

HEAREER (ARET) Grant date share price (RMB) 5.39

REE(ARET) Subscription price (RMB) 2.20
TEEEURAE BB FTER Enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation

45 AT A A ([EV/EBITDA]) 5 81 and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple 12.39
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29. Hitt B RERE AR

29. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

FEEERES Hinf# s A5t REER
PRC statutory Other Retained
reserve fund reserve Total earnings
AR® T AR¥ T AR® TR AR® T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
R-ZZTE-_—F+=-A4 At 31 December 2021 and
=+ —BERZTZ=F at 1 January 2022
—HA—H 375,716 (597,153) (221,437) 4,546,223
FEBE Loss for the year - - - (1,914,918)
R& & (BfsE12) Dividends (note 12) - - - (1,315,530)
BB IR =@ Employee share award scheme
—EBRBEE - Value of employee services - 89,666 89,666 -
LIpEENGIL i Sr i Recognition of redemption
fE D& ERR liabilities on a subsidiary’s
shares - (989,949) (989,949) -
BEREEESZ Special reserve for maintenance
BB ATE and production funds - 3,368 3,368 -
B /&8 A AR FEIE AR Capital contribution by
RREEE non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - 580,213 580,213 -
EREPEAE Transfer to PRC statutory
EHEE ) reserve fund (i) 9,289 - 9,289 (9,289)
RZZBZ—F+_H At 31 December 2022 and
Zt+—HAER T -=4F at 1 January 2023
—H—H 385,005 (913,855) (528,850) 1,306,486
FEBE Loss for the year - - - (54,017)
R% 2 (BFsE12) Dividends (note 12) - - - (298,560)
EERMH R 2 Employee share award scheme
—EERBKEE - Value of employee services
(KizE28) (note 28) - 89,084 89,084 -
HEREEESRZ Special reserve for maintenance
B ABATE and production funds - 3,324 3,324 (3,324)
B /8 2 R A FEHE AR Capital contribution by
R & non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - (7,564) (7,564) -
EREPEATE Transfer to PRC statutory
EHEE) reserve fund () 4,241 - 4,241 (4,241)
RZZEZ=F+=A At 31 December 2023
=+—H 389,246 (829,011) (439,765) 946,344
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29. HmERAREBE RN ) 29. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(continued)

() ARAFTRFEAMLEKNEQEE (i)  The Company’s subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland are required
AR A B AR B R ) DA B E to follow the laws and regulations of the Chinese Mainland and their
SEMEBERMA - ZEWME respective articles of association. These subsidiaries are required to allocate
ANEIABESMRFEENAILN at least 10% of their net profits for each financial year to the reserve
EZL10% P REFHEE HEEZ fund until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their respective
EeHBEEIEZGAMELRS registered capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
50% ° #Z S E ARG KK shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to offset accumulated losses
AEHESELURERRBREKHE or increase capital. The reserve fund is not available for distribution to
ZFTBEIAREE - ZREEET shareholders except in the case of liquidation.

A ARARED K GEBEEFIIN) o
30. Ht & & 30. OTHER LIABILITIES
+=ZA=t+—H
31 December
== —E——

2023 2022
Bt & AR¥T T AREFT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BB AT B Deferred government grants (i) 130,356 142,068
HAnfE 3 Other borrowings (i) 40,889 54,182
E&AEmE Sale and leaseback (iii) 33,823 42,200
Hfh Others (iv) 3,015,527 2,804,261
3,220,595 3,042,711
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260

HEE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

MIRBEEEARE

HIERERWE - BE REREMK
B AR E BT B UGS o H AR AR
BMEERAFTFHAREGELE
AR EiE%E - BEREERARE
Hzmomn%777*¢+—
—t+t—HsEARHEE(ZZ
::¢+fﬁ:+*E-AE%
11,914,000 7T) °

HMEREEREAEE —RMH
BRREERBREMNERARE
39,889,000 (—ZE - - +—-A
=+—8: AKR#¥39,289,0007T)
(LEFABTE BEBRARK
ZENFANER)  RKEE=ZFHE
HANREZ L (ZTE==F+=A
z+fE'AE%Bw3mwa
(LEFERE BERRAR
FREE)  RREBBE=ZFMHENR
AR #1,000,0007C (Z 2 = — 4
+ZA=+—8: AR¥ 1,000,000
7)) (BB E - BIKH RAR
NFRER) RITE-_=F+=
A=+—8 " ALmAEEMEZRY
%iﬁﬁ#mbiﬁgﬂﬁ ©

ERMEREENTE=ZTHKH
FIE - ZRENREABARE
52,729,000 T K E & BB IER
ER -RZTE_=F+=-_A=+—
B AR®12,115000T (=&
TCHFEtTZA=T-H:ARE
snsmmw\@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ %
BN E R E R SRR K
E51E -

E%Eﬁ%a&ﬁﬁéw%“ﬂﬂ%ﬁm
EOaF REEBERET
AE%1%4ﬂmmﬁém:;
ZHFE+ZA=+—HEEES
YTHRZZTEZ_=F+=ZA=+—H

H
i

DEAREEE - RIBHEZEIEE
BRER RIS 2 Wi - EHAEAEE

ARG TRAEHE - A%
T AE O A R AR o
EREKEECRBE  HIZER
SREMFHREE -

HERA

30. OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

U]

(iii)

(iv)

It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received for the
construction of property, plant and equipment. It will be credited to the
consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets. RMB11,264,000 of the total deferred amount was
classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB11,914,000).

Other borrowings consist of borrowings amounting to RMB39,889,000
(31 December 2022: RMB39,289,000) from a non-controlling shareholder
of a Group’s subsidiary, which are interest-bearing, unsecured and
repayable in six to eight years, a borrowing amounting to nil (31 December
2022: RMB13,893,000) from a third party, which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable in one year, and a borrowing amounting to RMB1,000,000
(31 December 2022: RMB1,000,000) from a third party, which is interest-
bearing, unsecured and repayable in eight years. All the above other
borrowings were classified as non-current liabilities as at 31 December
2023.

Sale and leaseback represents long-term payable to a third party which
was secured by mortgage over the sale and leaseback equipment with an
aggregate carrying value of RMB52,729,000. There was RMB12,115,000
classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: RMB8,118,000). No gain or loss was recognized during the sale and
leaseback transaction.

It represents the redemption liabilities in relation to the investments in
subsidiaries' shares. Of the total outstanding liabilities, RMB1,914,543,000
is due to be settled at 31 December 2024 and was classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the agreements with non-
controlling shareholders, capital contribution and related shares being
transferred shall be redeemable by the Group upon the occurrence of
certain contingent events which cannot be controlled by the Group. The
redemption obligations give rise to financial liabilities, which are measured
at the net present value of the redemption amounts.
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1. EF REMEMNERR 31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=—HA=+—8~
31 December
—E-= —E_—F
2023 2022
Bt AR TR AREFIT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
E 5 RENRR Trade payables (i) 215,150 205,782
ERZRE Deposit payables 359,872 356,648
DB ERTHE Accrued reimbursement to distributors 336,784 527,179
W R B J88 1 B BT AR R Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary 300,000 300,000
HAth FE AT AR Other payables 181,506 182,616
B KRR BREEMNERR Costs of construction and purchase of
equipment payables 142,757 181,465
Ef%e Salaries payable 80,584 91,603
ff 9% R 1 35 A S PR P BR AR Payable for research and development expenses 76,113 71,377
FEAFS Interest payable 11,439 9,921
B ZEE Notes payable 5,462 -
FEAT B R R RRIB Amounts due to associates 39 800 -
FEAT AR S Dividends payable 358 353
1,710,825 1,926,944
iy EBIENERBTHE  FHEE () The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
HABA0K - 40 days.
REXR BIENEREREERAAR An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year, based on the
HIRRER D ATANT - invoice date, is as follows:
W+=—HA=+—8H
31 December
—E-= ==
2023 2022
AR® TR AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
618 A A Within 6 months 192,203 165,760
6MEAZE1F 6 months to 1 year 7,069 24,166
—F Lk More than 1 year 15,878 15,856
215,150 205,782
B REMENERNAFELELRE The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts.
BHEE -

FJZ R 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2023 261



B 05 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E-=F+=-A=+—8

32. 6 EE 32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
+=—HA=+—H
31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2023 2022
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ERNEEBE-RY Contract liability - current
BRF R R Advances from customers 118,615 161,180
2 SHAE DI TE W e (i) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 13,170 2,830
a5t Total 131,785 164,010
EREBE-FR Contract liability - non-current
o SHAE A IE TE W a= (i) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights (i) 44,190 5,660
FHEBFEERNBEEEMBDIHEN Contract liabilities include advances received for sales of pharmaceutical products
UEEEDHENRERZ - N _F and medical aesthetic products, and deferred revenue for sales of distribution
TEFEHNABEAMENEERARNT rights. The increase in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the increase in
EDHBENEERRERM®EE D HE deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights in relation to the provision of sales
BFRTIEINFTEL » of distribution rights.
() EHEZmMI>EEEERBLEN (i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution rights of
ETBEEROHEEDHMIRS certain pharmaceutical products to distributors for a period of five years.
B WmBIREGEENERA The revenue is recognised in the profit or loss on the straight-line basis.

262 DU 35 58 ZEPR AR 2 B 4 R 2 7 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

33. BB IE 33. DEFERRED TAX
FRELHEEERABZHOT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:
BEEMREBEEE Deferred tax assets
SEn
B AAEHEN BE4E
BHAE AERER B8R EBHARYD REEEHE HESE RER# Eh
The
government
Unrealised subsidies
profit of assodiated Impairment
Impairment intra-group Accrued with  of long-term Lease
of receivables sales expenses fixed assets assets liabilities Tax losses Total
ARET T AEETR AEETR AEETR AEET R ARBTR ARBTR AEETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W-Z-—%-f-H At1 January 2022 8,648 7907 205,764 8,705 20,631 8,571 51,35 311,582
ERPMEARENAE/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(e 3) MER A the consolidated profit or loss
(f3H10) during the year (note 10) 2,502 8,598 (137,285) (8,098) (20,598) 4518 (51,356) (201,719
RIZZZEFZA=1-H A3 December 202 11,150 16,505 68,479 607 B 13,089 - 109,863
R-B-=£-f-R At 1 January 2023 11,150 16,505 68,479 607 3 13,089 - 109,863
ERNGABRRAS/ Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
(8 B RH B the consolidated profit or loss
(H3t10) during the year (note 10) (374) (5,700 (54937) (607) (18) (3.953) - (68,957)
RZFZ=F+ZA=1-R At 31 December 2023 7,408 10,805 13,542 - 15 9,136 - 40,906

& AL A R SR B RR B s A B IR AR B B IE
BE ARSI EEEAEERELTERE
EE BREBEWNBARBEEERRE
uﬁ'%m/mﬂﬁi%méﬂa‘f“bﬁﬁj N
ER T =F+-_A=+—HB W EHE
R EE 8 AR 5,194,861,000 7T
ZEZF+ZA=+—H: AR%
3,634,508,0007T) BERAMIEEFHIEEE °
Z 551 A DSBS DK B8 R TR PE AR B R
A e B8 AR ¥103,554,0007C « AR
684,393,0007T * A R #1,205,652,000
T AR #1,228,471,0007T ~ AR
1,339,944,000 7T « A R # 133,827,000
7T AR®123,132,0007T - AR
36,062,000 7T + A R # 178,352,000 7T &
AR 161,474, oooﬂ%”ﬁw:?g— E
F -E-_RF T RNF
—tEF T -NF- 777n¢
TE=FF . —_FT=—%F" :%E:ZE&
—E==FFH-

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is
probable. Due to the fact that losses arising in certain subsidiaries have continued
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting to RMBS5,194,861,000 (31 December
2022: RMB3,634,508,000) as at 31 December 2023 that can be carried forward
to offset against future taxable profits. Losses amounting to RMB103,554,000,
RMB684,393,000, RMB1,205,652,000, RMB1,228,471,000, RMB1,339,944,000,
RMB133,827,000, RMB123,132,000, RMB36,062,000, RMB178,352,000 and
RMB161,474,000 will expire in 2024, 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028, 2029, 2030,
2031, 2032 and 2033, respectively.
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33. AR E ()

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BELEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
BAYHE B
STABREN Beb¥
BREEN RE&EMH FELH
AFERS AVERR NYERR BB EREEE @zt
Fair value
adjustment
of Fair value
Fair value investments adjustment
gain at fair value arising from
arising from through recognition Withholding Right-of-use
acquisitions profitorloss  of associates tax assets Total
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARETR AR%TR AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZE-—%—Ff—H At 1 January 2022 84,820 3 58,567 79,000 8,118 230,508
FRARGAEBER(AE)/  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
THMELCHIA(ME10)  consolidated profit or loss during
the year (note 10) (66,087) 1,309 (43,572) - 4971 (103,379)
SXppitil Payment of withholding tax - - - (15,000) - (15,000)
RZZEZZF+ZA=1—H At31 December 2022 18,733 1312 14,995 64,000 13,089 112,129
R-ZZ-=%—-F—H At 1 January 2023 18,733 1,312 14,995 64,000 13,089 112,129
FRARGAEBEA(AE)/  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
THHOEEHIA(MFE10)  consolidated profit or loss during
the year (note 10) (13,250) (472) (14,995) - (3,953) (32,670)
RZEZ=F+-A=F—H At31 December 2023 5,483 840 - 64,000 9,136 79,459

RIBEPECEMSHE  RPBEAMBAK
YHHNEREREIMEEEMEIRKE
BEMI0%TEMB - WREE ZFFTN
F-A-BRAEM TEAR-ZTZL
FTZA=+T-BRZAN - BENE
B RGN HEA LG EE T
ERBRFERBHROZBEATER - 5t
AEEME  BRAHER5% - AEER
It 78 st B A R B P 3t AR ST B BT B A R
—EENFE-A-ARRBZANRS
AR BB TR -

HE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—HULFE "
AEEWERAEEEFBERNBAY 2
BB A M%%ﬁwmmitﬁﬁﬂ
JER 2 BN ERELERE - EER
%%WE@ﬂKTiK*TKT%%&
EERF R_T_=F+-_A=+—
B SR E QR E RN
BRECHEAENEREZEL8BHA
ARME41,992,000t (ZE=——F : AR
79,485,000 7T) °

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Chinese Mainland. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese
Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB41,992,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB79,485,000).
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33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

HREREMmME  ETECHBEEER For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
BEERMBERARPEE - AT AR offset in the statement of financial position. The following is an analysis of the
SIES B eV 5 A 5 B BRI T IR A4S deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
RO
+=H=+-—-H
31 December
—E-= —E-—
2023 2022
AR TR ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERE ISR R R A IEER 18 Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated
é%%%ﬁ statement of financial position 31,770 96,774
RERE B ISARR R R AR R 18 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
BEFHE statement of financial position 70,323 99,040
34, ;T ERITER 34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
—E-=f+-A=1+-—H e
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
BRA=E BRAIx
(%) FHE AR®Trn (%) I8 ARETT
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
RE Current
BERFITER Secured bank borrowings 3.45-4.60 2024 269,680 3.45-4.60 2023 301,272
EERBITER Unsecured bank borrowings - 3.50 2023 25,803
269,680 327,075
FRE Non-current
BHEMBTES Secured bank borrowings 2.80-490  2025-2035 864,142 280490  2025-2035 808,383
864,142 808,383
1,133,822 1,135,458
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31 DECEMBER 2023

34. ST ERITER @)

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

+=H=+-—-H
31 December

—E-= —E-—
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARKETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

DR Analysed into:
AT - Bank borrowings:
E—FNRN Within the first year 269,680 327,075
E_ZERFA Within the second to fifth years 271,491 252,418
HBBERF Beyond the fifth year 592,651 555,965
1,133,822 1,135,458
(@ AEEREFRITEHHATEE (@)  Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by:

266

TR

)y HELAEEBAFEAEAA
R #940,714,000 T (= &
——Hf+=ZA=+—H: A
R #999,870,0007T) W&
TH A - BRE AR

iy EHAEBEETTEHER
A F2#98,000,0007C (=&
——Hf+=ZA=+—H: A
R # 140,000,000 7T) * #% 2|
DAETRBEE &

iy —FRKMWEBRFHIORER
FTIBEFRAAREE -

R-ZEBE-Z=F+=-A=+—8H
BITEREBEFMENTF(£2.80%

FA490% (ZE-_—_F+_ A4
=+—H :280%%4.90%) °

(i) Mortgages over the Group’s leasehold land and property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying value of RMB940,714,000
(31 December 2022: RMB999,870,000).

(i) The pledge of certain of the Group'’s time deposits amounting to
RMB98,000,000 classified as non-current asset (31 December 2022:
RMB140,000,000); and

(i) A portion of equity interests in a subsidiary.
All borrowings are denominated in RMB.
The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023

range from 2.80% to 4.90% (31 December 2022: 2.80% to 4.90%) per
annum.
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31 DECEMBER 2023

35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

—E-= —E__F
2023 2022
ARET R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRir A& 1E Loss before tax (161,260) (2,086,341)
—REFERE — From continuing operations (161,260) (2,122,778)
—REKRIEEE — From discontinued operations - 36,437
KLATIER FHE - Adjustments for:
—WE - WERERBITE — Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 165,447 292,623
—REMETE — Depreciation of investment properties 9,323 8,292
—FREEENE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets 31,125 31,980
—EEESH — Amortisation of intangible assets 20,338 36,912
— MR EE#REE — Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 11,419 90,778
—UEREARNEERE — Impairment of investment accounted for
using the equity method - 389,311
—¥% - BREREZHERE — Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 1,131,399
— B 5 & E h fE W AR K — (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of trade and
(BEERE) RE other receivables (7,953) 28,443
—HREREELESRRABAE — Special reserve for maintenance and production funds - 3,368
— (R LA A A BRI EE B & — Share of profits and losses of investments accounted
[=gi=! for using the equity method 53,621 80,875
—RIEHEBE QR 2 s e — Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (21,251) (9,554)
—HEME - HERREN — (GainY/loss on disposal of property, plant and
(Mezs) /B G) equipment (i) (4,378) 2,663
—HEREEERNER — Loss on disposal of intangible assets 139 23,630
—mIEEERE — Impairment on intangible assets - 113,138
—HEFAREEENRE — Gain on disposal of right-of-use asset (3,695) (23)
—EERE — Impairment of goodwiill - 8,761
—HEMBARMEE (W) — Loss/(gain) on disposals of subsidiaries 558 (226,338)
—EAEEERE — Impairment of right-of-use assets - 84,510
—HERAFEFABENESREEN - Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
Wz through profit or loss - (111,945)
—EBAFEFABENERHEED — (Gain)/loss on changes in fair value of financial assets
AT EZE (W) EHE at fair value through profit or loss (131,765) 11,548
— AR H BEROMN K — Share-based payments 89,084 89,666
—FEMRZ — Interest expense 269,337 211,176
—F B WA — Interest income (147,908) (146,794)
EBERASEERILEERSRE Operating cash flows before working capital changes 172,181 58,078
EEEERABEED Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
-5 — Inventories 37,740 (60,442)
—B 5 R E M ERERR — Trade and other receivables 265,793 (163,675)
—B S5 REMEMNEKR — Trade and other payables (198,812) 415,538
—&HEaE — Contract liabilities 6,382 (46,026)
KEEEMNERS Cash generated from operations 283,284 203,473
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35. REEEMR & ) 35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continved)
() REERERERT HEME - (i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
WEMEEBNBHRERRE property, plant and equipment comprise:
—EB-=F —E-—F
2023 2022
ARET R ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FERE Net book amount 11,160 17,016
HEWE  BEMEEN W (B518)  Gain/loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,378 (2,663)
HEWE - BB KRB ATEHRIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15,538 14,353
36. RERERERM T 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(@) EXFBREXRS (@) Major non-cash transactions
FAN -AEEEFBEKREEKE During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
HEZHMNERREEREES and lease liabilities of RMB20,560,000 (2022: RMB33,513,000) and
BENFERESAEIINAAR RMB20,560,000 (2022: RMB33,513,000), respectively, in respect of lease
# 20,560,000 70 (=T = — & : arrangements for plant and equipment.

AR#33,513,0007T) B AR
20,560,000 (ZZE - —F: AR
33,513,000 7C) ©
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(b) MEFEFRELNEE

CASH FLOWS (continued)

B 75 R B ot
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—E-=F+-A=

+—8

31 DECEMBER 2023

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

BE
—E-=F 2023
Bt 18
DRAKRHBZ  RITERR
EAFRE HESE ERRE BEAE HifE &
Redemption
liabilities on Bank
Interest Lease Dividend subsidiaries’ and other
payables liabilities payables shares  borrowings
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR%®TR AR%BTx AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE-_=F—H—H At 1 January 2023 9,921 59,040 353 2,804,261 1,189,640
RERECREEENEE Changes from financing cash flows (53,980) (16,453) (298,560) - (14,929)
mHE New leases - 20,560 - - -
T ZFRBERE Final 2022 dividend - - 298,560 - -
L Exchange realignment - - 5 - -
EEHEUET L E Disposals as a result of contract cancellation - (23,059) - - -
FERX Interest expense 55,498 2,573 - 211,266 -
MRZZZ=F+Z"A=+—H At31 December 2023 11,439 42,661 358 3,015,527 1,174,711
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36. mEBRERERMT w0 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) BMEEZBRELENERS (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
B8 7 (continued)
—T-—F 2022
opEs

ARz BRTEFRR
P 7S HEEE e AR 8 BEEE Hipfd &

Redemption
liabilities on Bank
Interest Lease Dividend  subsidiaries’ and other
payables liabilities payables shares borrowings

ARBTE ARBTE AR®TE ARETE AR¥ETRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RZE-=%—A—H At 1 January 2022 8,735 36,656 324 1,662,783 1,044,746

BERSREELENED Changes from financing cash flows (55,678) (12,6200 (1,315,530) - 164,894

mieE New leases - 33,513 - - -

- -FRERER Final 2021 dividend and 2022

ZEZZFHRERE interim dividends - - 1,315,530 - -

L Exchange realignment - - 29 - -

HENRBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - (741) - - (20,000)

BREVET L E Disposals as a result of contract cancellation - (522) - - -
—FEAMBARIRGDZ Recognition of redemption liabilities

fEo & ERER on a subsidiary’s shares - - - 989,949 -

S Interest expense 56,864 2,754 - 151,529 -

RZZE-_F+-A=+—H At31 December 2022 9,921 59,040 353 2,804,261 1,189,640

(0 HERESRHAR (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FFAGRERERERMNEER S The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows is
MHERENT - as follows:
—B=-= T

2023 2022

AR%Tx ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

KEEBA Within operating activities 4,506 7,823

BEEHN Within financing activities 16,453 12,620

20,959 20,443
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B 705 S 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Tonghua Chuangyou Testing Service
Co.,Ltd. (“Tonghua Chuangyou”)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group transferred
its entire interest in Tonghua Chuangyou to a third party, Beijing
Sinocro PharmaScience Co.,Ltd. (“Sinocro”), for a consideration of
RMB15,704,000. An analysis of the net loss and cash inflows in respect of
the disposal of Tonghua Chuangyou is as follows:

EBREREADWNHET :

—Eo=F
2023
AR TR
RMB’000
W - BE R&E Property, plant and equipment 6,955
mEAE Intangible assets 59
FE Inventories 218
B 5 K E A U AR X Trade and other receivables 8,534
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 779
aRaE Contract liabilities (77)
B REMEMAERER Trade and other payables (206)
KILTERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 16,262
HE®BCAIEBHRE Consideration for disposal of Tonghua Chuangyou 15,704
®IEERB BN EE Loss on derecognition of Tonghua Chuangyou (558)

ERTEBLLAENRESREDN Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Tonghua Chuangyou:
YIRS RE Cash consideration received 15,704
PEMNReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (779)
LHERSREFE Net cash flows on disposal 14,925
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37. HEMB AT NER »)
(b) HEBA{tERBARE

REBEZT_ZF+=ZA=+—
BEFE AEELREBARE
46,500,000 LM FEW AR %L 4+ R EE
ELTEHBRERHAMCE REA
BHEr 2 - AL s Ak
BRBARTHFRERBER

37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its entire
interest in Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology to an individual Mr. Li
Gongben and Ms. Xia Zhihua, for a consideration of RMB46,500,000.
An analysis of the net gain and cash inflows in respect of the disposal of
Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology is as follows:

AB AT -
—F-—
2022
AREFT
RMB'000
W - BB & Property, plant and equipment 165
FREEE Right-of-use assets 744
mEAE Intangible assets 191
rE Inventories 2,761
KB RRMIEE Investments in subsidiaries 1,000
B 5 & B AR 3R Trade and other receivables 55,402
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,414
HERE Lease liabilities (223)
ARAE Contract liabilities (275)
B 5k EMEMRR Trade and other payables (31,949)
FTERTTER Interest-bearing bank borrowings (20,000)
HEAEGERD) Lease liabilities(non-current) (518)
BILTERE B EFE Net assets derecognised 28,712
S B AL 2 KB AR R AR B Consideration for disposal of Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology 46,500
% TSR AN BB I B AR R R ) W R Gain on derecognition of Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology 17,788
AR B AL 2 R AR 8 Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of
REREDN - Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology:
BRERERE Cash consideration received -
HENEERESEED Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (21,414)
HERSREFHE Net cash flows on disposal (21,414)
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37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

() HESMEE (c) Disposal of Jilin Jiahui
REBEE_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+— During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its
HIEFE  AEBBEREMER entire interest in Jilin Jiahui to Lianben Technology for a consideration of
B2 B R B TR AR, - (B RMB18,750,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflows in respect of
A ANR# 18,750,000 - BEEH & the disposal of Jilin Jiahui is as follows:
EMEBHFRERBAERAD
T
— T —F
2022
ARETFT
RMB'000
W - BB & Property, plant and equipment 36,259
mEAE Intangible assets 6,197
rE Inventories 75,501
BoHhEMBUERZ (R Trade and other receivables (current) 34,678
BekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,141
ARAE Contract liabilities (423)
B 5k EMERRR Trade and other payables (158,115)
PRI R A Non-controlling interests 5,479
kS Goodwill 3,551
BILERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 4,268
HESTERENRE Consideration for disposal of Jilin Jiahui 18,750
R E TR E MEE R W Gain on derecognition of Jilin Jiahui 14,482
ERLEEMEENRSREDN Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Jilin Jiahui:
BRERERE Cash consideration received -
HENEERESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,141)
HERSREFHE Net cash flows on disposal (1,141)
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37.. HEMB AR NWER »)

(d) HELRFAREFRA

A (mETFAHD

REBEZT_ZF+=ZA=+—
BIEFE  AEBESERIEmEFH
MiE=ERT —8FE=1 REA
AR # 118,000,000t - B H &
ERFANFRERBRERAD

37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(d) Disposal of Beijing Xuansheng pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Xuansheng")

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its
interest in Beijing Xuansheng to a third party for a consideration of
RMB118,000,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflows in respect
of the disposal of Beijing Xuansheng is as follows:

T

—F-—
2022
ARETFT
RMB'000
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,105
BoHhEMBUERZ (R Trade and other receivables (current) 213,124
FETFTSHT Income tax payable (95)
B 5k EMERRR Trade and other payables (116,350)
BILERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 117,784
HEFFFERE Consideration for disposal of Xuansheng 118,000
RIETERE EIFEN WS Gain on derecognition of net assets 216
EEAARMEEEN S EREF Realised profit of intra-group sales 193,852
S B 2 Gain on disposal of Xuansheng 194,068

FALEHANREREDIT - Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Xuansheng:

BWRESRE Cash consideration received 132,108
HENEERESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (21,105)
HERSREFHE Net cash flows on disposal 111,003
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38. &iE 38. COMMITMENTS
(a) EBEAXREE (a) Capital commitments
RERREE A AT E AR The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the year:
+t=A=+—H
31 December
—EBE-=F —F-=
2023 2022
AR T ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BERT#E R B - Contracted, but not provided for:
W - WE RS Property, plant and equipment 225,065 161,702
BICEE—ETTHERME Intangible assets — product development in progress 110,699 133,232
335,764 294,934
(b) HEFRE (b) lease commitments
RERRNEBB U THEZARE : The Group had the following lease commitments at the end of the year:
+=H=+-—-H
31 December
—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFTTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
[EEEEE S L= Contracted, but not provided for:
REAEEREEEREE Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 1,917 1,107
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39. X 5 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AEBEMIZRBRABEFAEE - BMH The controlling shareholders of the Group are Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
YREEAE RMBBEAENMGZTEZE LA - Weicheng, Dr. Zhang lJionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui.
A 2 R B R T BRI T ¢ Name and relationship with related parties are as follows:

=E B

Name Relationship

BESFHE EEgEF

Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the board of directors

ERBEREFR AR (HEREHE]) REERBE QT

Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Ruiye”) Associate of the Group

BIEREREFRAR(BLERE]D REERBE QT

Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Tonghua Tianshi") Associate of the Group

FILRRAREFRAR ([FILESA ) REBE®HE QT

Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax (Foshan)”) Associate of the Group

HWERERRIEBBR QA ([EMEE]) REERBE QT

Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection Engineering Co., Ltd. Associate of the Group
("Jilin Zesheng™)

Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited ([ Sihuan Strides]) REENESERE

Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited (“Sihuan Strides") Joint venture of the Group

IREBEREDHRBRBR AR ([HEREE]D REENESERE

Beijing Jingyan Biomaterial Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Jingyan”) ~ Joint venture of the Group
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31 DECEMBER 2023

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions during the year and

balances as at 31 December 2023:

—B=-= —E-—
\ 2023 2022
B = AR%Tx AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RERE D RROF B BA Interest income from associates
—Jb R - Beijing Ruiye 11,462 9,381
—E MR — Jilin Zesheng 4,728 4,720
—\BtRE - Tonghua Tianshi 2,755 2,755
18,945 16,856
RE—HAEECENEERSE KA Management service income from a joint venture (i)
—Sihuan Strides — Sihuan Strides 920 879
KE—HaERENFEKA R&D income from a joint venture 0]
—JtRRE — Beijing Jingyan 26 1,415
BERE-—EVREER Purchase of service-Waste disposal charges (i)
—E MR — Jilin Zesheng 2,096 -
BEEM Purchases of goods (i)
—@BtXE - Tonghua Tianshi 182 -
A E AR ER IR Loans to associates — non-current 23
— bR — Beijing Ruiye (i) 93,000 243,000
— L@ — Pharmadax (Foshan) (iii) 105,000 105,000
—@ERE — Tonnghua Tianshi (iii) 60,000 -
—HWERE — Jilin Zesheng (iii) - 83,521
258,000 431,521
AR D FER—RE Loans to associates — current 25
—db RS — Beijing Ruiye (ii) 150,000 -
—EMER — Jiling Zesheng (iii) 90,605 5,011
—BltRE — Tonghua Tianshi (iif) 2,920 78,754
243,525 83,765
FEU — A B & N BRI SR IE Amount due from an associate (iv)/25
—E MR — Jilin Zesheng 224 224
FE U — G 2 R BRI AR B Dividends receivable from an associate (iv)/25
—BltRE — Tonghua Tianshi 40,912 40,727
Rl E S ERIE Amount due from a joint venture (iv)/25
—Sihuan Strides — Sihuan Strides 4,478 3,695
JRE W EL fth R Bt 75 k1B Amounts due from other related party (iv)/25
—BHAE - Dr. Che Fengsheng 9,600 9,600
FET B & A BRI FRIB Amounts due to associates (iv)/31
—HWERE — Jilin Zesheng 595 -
—BtXE — Tonghua Tianshi 205 -
800 -
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39. Bﬁﬁﬁiﬁc%ﬂm

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EERARBITNHIL2EREER
BREARBEE -

MBS AR RFFEEHNER S
BE - B AR 150,000,000
TEARZZE-_MEXIN AR
93,000,000 T/ HR T A F X
o FBBFZR%FHE -

A% &2 R R EHNERR
EIRW AN EIF A ﬂ,m
FGFEETEC6%AE -

N

HHRAEEAN R BEEEE
He

W Ry
2 4

EEEERAFENMEHBOT

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i) The terms of sales and purchases were mutually agreed between the

parties with reference to the ordinary course of business.

(i)~ The loan to an associate, Beijing Ruiye, was secured, among which
RMB150,000,000 was payable in 2024 and RMB93,000,000 was payable

in 2025. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

(i) The loans to these associates were unsecured and payable in two to four

years. Interest is charged from nil to 6% annually.

(iv)  The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Details of key management compensation during the year are as follows:

—E_= —E-—F

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARETT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

RHEERF Short term employee benefits 16,785 19,049
VARG AR 72 B R 00 3R Share-based payment 1,712 2,700
TG EEEEANFIEEE Total compensation paid to key management personnel 18,497 21,749

278

BEZ S+ -_A=1T—HIFE"
RNEEI EATEMAEE T ETRAA
TEHRRLEFEELRENRERS

PO IR B8 R 4R

#ERXH(EHZRLWMRA) -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has not conducted any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under the

Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under

the Listing Rules.
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31 DECEMBER 2023

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the
end of the year are as follows:

As at 31 December 2023

SREE Financial assets
RAFETA
R 8RR A RAFETA Hip 2 HEUk &
STENEREE BENEREE HemEE ct
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
Financial fair value  through other
assets at through comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
AR®TT AR¥ T AR®TT AR® T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
BAFEFABERD Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss - 943,291 - 943,291
R EE Notes receivable - - 60,256 60,256
B 5 & E A EWGRIR Trade and other receivables
(TEIEEMNF) excluding prepayments 984,883 - - 984,883
HinIEmeh & & Other non-current assets
(TEIEEMNF) excluding prepayments 319,533 - - 319,533
[REEYER P Fral-ERES N Pledged deposits and time
deposits 242,756 - - 242,756
BekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,778,666 - - 3,778,666
5,325,838 943,291 60,256 6,329,385
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40. R T ES ¥ @) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER SHEAISHITAMNREBEDT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the
(#) end of the year are as follows: (continued)
R-B-=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2023
SRBeE Financial liabilities
1 8 65 Bk AR
FTENEmAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARET R
RMB’000
HAn G Other borrowings 40,889
HEARE Lease liabilities 42,661
E&MAE Sale and leaseback 33,823
FHERRITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,133,822
WEBARKOWEREE Redemption liabilities on subsidiaries’ shares 3,015,527
B RHMEMAERR(TEIEIELBEE) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,630,241
5,896,963
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31 DECEMBER 2023

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the

(%) end of the year are as follows: (continued)
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2022
SREE Financial assets
BAFERA
TR SE AN BRATERA H fth 2 E s
ATENEREE BRemEE WErEE #a5
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
Financial fair value through other
assets at through comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
ARBTIT ARMEFIT ARBFIT AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
BATEFABRD Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss - 1,188,152 - 1,188,152
e = 1% Notes receivable - - 72,276 72,276
B 5 & E A fEWGRIR Trade and other receivables
(M BEETEM ) excluding prepayments 905,330 - - 905,330
HinIEmeh & & Other non-current assets
(M BEETEM ) excluding prepayments 578,957 - - 578,957
[REETEEA Pledged deposits 177,201 - - 177,201
ReRkReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,863 - - 3,828,863
5,490,351 1,188,152 72,276 6,750,779
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40. R T ES ¥ @) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER SHEAISHITAMNREBEDT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the
(#) end of the year are as follows: (continued)
R-ZE-_—_#F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
SRBeE Financial liabilities
bi7& £ o[BWN
ATENSRAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AREFIT
RMB'000
HAn G Other borrowings 54,182
HEARE Lease liabilities 59,040
EBMAE Sale and leaseback 42,200
FHERITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,135,458
MEAARNeERaE Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s shares 2,804,261
B REMBEMNER(TRIEIESHAME) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,835,341
5,930,482
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values or
those measured at fair value, are as follows:

HRE B AYE
Carrying amounts Fair values
+=A=+-A +=A=+-A
31 December 31 December
—E-=E - —F —E-=E - F
2023 2022 2023 2022
AR¥TR ARETT AR¥TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SRMEE Financial assets
mIEEE DRI ERGERE) Loans to associates (non-current) 258,000 431,521 250,343 431,077
Hith EUBR X (GETRED) Other receivables (non-current)
(BEREZAER) (including loans to third parties) 58,533 144,436 58,037 132,436
316,533 575,957 308,380 563,513
cRas Financial liabilities
EESR (RERERN) Other borrowings
(other than lease liabilities) 74,712 96,382 86,228 107,341
FTERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,133,822 1,135,458 1,159,567 1,132,875
1,208,534 1,231,840 1,245,795 1,240,216

EEECDHGERELRASEEY A
B 5 RE M EWARR N S B E E N MG
ANEGREMENEINEREENR
FEAEREERS TEARZFT
BEHIR®E -

CHEENEBBENAFENERZ ST
(RERBREERINEZENZZH A
RHZTESEAR - BB AT
ENTDERBRRWAT -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets included in trade and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in trade and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods
and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.
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EMERNAFED BAIATAIERK
RERE THABEUFH FERA
B FHER N T AR A SHLLEE
Tt - RZE_=F+=-A=+—8H"
AEBEINERRBHRRERN A
FEEHETHEAETEKN -

ARBRERIELTRE  BF AN
ROTBITHITHES - ARBEEE AR
RRELREHEHY  RBELEHR
BROHTANTHHEEERFFLT
BANATAE -

BRAFEFABEOIFELTRERED
NEEDNRBEWIEHATRMESR L ES
BrBRE FEATSBEEAREERN - F
BEREERETE HE- - BELE
BMETANELBEARAR  WHt#AE
WEAELRARAAFESBERS
BoPmrEEBEERAE HE T
ERBar&F ([EV/EBITDAD) SH & (B
BE AR ([PEDEE - FHIIARTELL
BARNCEEERINARFNESAER
e R GBEASATELBERABRER
RIBEARAZRERANZREZ  flandk
MBMRBEZE . TR - BHBE K
BARFELITRERENAERFEGS
Nt EATFE EFRAMBELEZGBD
st A FE (REREEHBRRE)
MEEATEEZS GRENGEEDR) B
A8 WAFREABEMER -

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of non-current loans to associates and non-current other
receivables, notes receivables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own
non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were assessed to
be insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth management
products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland. The Group has estimated the fair
value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and
risks.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through
profit or loss have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine comparable public companies based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price
multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/E")
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated by
dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by an earnings measure.
The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and
size differences between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at
the end of the year.
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31 DECEMBER 2023

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2023

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's financial instruments:

BUT&REFEATE
Fair value measurement using
RERT 5 BXTH BEAFRH
ZHRE BR2H BE2H
(B—#&) (B=&) (B=#4) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®T R AR®T AR®T R AR®T
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BATEFABEN Financial assets at fair value through
SRBE: profit or loss:
BATEFENFLT Unlisted equity investments,

RiE&RE at fair value - - 354,275 354,275
BHE® Wealth management products - 589,016 - 589,016
BATEFAEMZE Debt instruments at fair value

WEHHERTIA through other comprehensive

income:
BRI Notes receivable - 60,256 - 60,256
- 649,272 354,275 1,003,547
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M. ERMIAENDIFERDF 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEHR = FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NFEER#) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
B FEFENEE  (B) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
WZEZ=ZF+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
BUATSEFEATE
Fair value measurement using
RIEBT % BAA BARA
ZRE BE28 BE2H
(B—#) (B=H) (B=#) mat
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BRATEG ABERH Financial assets at fair value through
SREE: profit or loss:
BATEFERNFELT Unlisted equity investments,
R & at fair value - - 225,164 225,164
BHEM Wealth management products - 962,988 - 962,988
BATEFAEMZE Debt instruments at fair value
M EETIA : through other comprehensive
income:
B R E Notes receivable - 72,276 - 72,276
- 1,035,264 225,164 1,260,428
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31 DECEMBER 2023

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial
instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December

2023 and 2022:

SREE ATEER RER % EXTAEHESY EE ATEEZHNHRE
Fair value Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair value

Financial assets hierarchy technique unobservable input Range to the input

FETRERE E=R AEEH [RIFTH)F 19T R R fE 81 0.92-1.02 EEIEM,/ R 5% (T —F
TZA=+—H:5%) §EHR
FEEN HD5% (2T
F+ZA=+—H:5%)

Unlisted equity Level 3 Valuation Average price-to-book 0.92-1.02 5% (31 December 2022: 5%)

investment multiples ratio multiple of peers increase/decrease in multiple
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would result in increase/decrease
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41. ERMIBENAFERAF 41.
EBEE &K=
NREEBH &)

BAFEGENEE - (#)
FR - BE=ZRANDFEFELIHNT

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as

follows:

—E=-= —E-—F
2023 2022
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BATFEGFABRORERE Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss:
®—A—H At 1 January 225,169 266,999
BRE Disposal - (30,282)
N EEBRFRES (EE) Net gain/(loss) from change in fair value 129,106 (11,548)
R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 354,275 225,169

R FEFENEE - Liabilities measured at fair value:

RZB_=ZFR_ZF__F+_H
=t—H AEEHEEMELTER
EMTRARE-

FR-BEATEMEESE HNE=
HEER REMELHREERDH®
BEMEMEES=—AEAKEL (=F
ZZF ) e

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities. (2022: Nil).
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2023

BUTEEFEATLE
Fair value measurement using
RERTE PG| BEART
ZHE HE28 BE2¥
(B—4) (B=#) (B=#4) Fo
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥ TR AR% TR AR¥ T AR% TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
mEE R B ER GERE) Loans to associates (non-current) - 250,343 - 250,343
Hfth MR IE (GERED) Other receivables (non-current)
(BERME=ZFER) (including loans to third parties) - 58,037 - 58,037
- 308,380 - 308,380
R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
BATSEFEAFE
Fair value measurement using
RERM S NG| BANT
2B BR2Y BR2Y
(E—®) (F=H) (EF=%) g
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
mEE R RERGERE) Loans to associates (non-current) - 431,077 - 431,077
Hfth MR IR (GETRED) Other receivables (non-current)
(BERME=ZFER) (including loans to third parties) - 132,436 - 132,436
- 563,513 - 563,513
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M. EMIENAFERAF 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEEHR = FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
NEEERE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
WELFEMEE - Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
R-EB-=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2023
BUTHEFEDFE
Fair value measurement using
RERTE BAA BEART
ZHE BE2Y B2y
(B—#) (B=#) (=) et
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥ T AR% TR AR¥ TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

th g 5% (FRE & ERIN) Other borrowings

(other than lease liabilities) - 86,228 - 82,228
FHESRITER Interest-bearing
bank borrowings - 1,159,567 - 1,159,567
- 1,245,795 - 1,245,795
R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
BATSEFEAFE
Fair value measurement using

NET: e BEAA BARA

2 RIEB B2y B2y
(B—%) (B=#) (B=#) HEt

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT AREFIT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

o f& % (FRE & EBR N Other borrowings

(other than lease liabilities) - 107,341 - 107,341

FHESRITIER Interest-bearing
bank borrowings - 1,132,875 - 1,132,875
- 1,240,216 - 1,240,216
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

42.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC. The financial instruments of the
Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The main foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group were certain cash and cash
equivalents (note 26), which were denominated in United
States dollars (“USD"), Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
Euro ("EUR"). In the opinion of the executive directors
of the board of the Company, the Group does not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedge
policy.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 3% (31 December 2022: 3%) against USD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB8,177,000 (2022: RMB33,549,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
the USD-denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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42. AR ERE @)
21 5%EREE @)
(a) THRE &)

()

(ii)
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SR B (AE)
RZTEZ=F+=A
=t+—H MEAR
BHEBELREFE
3% (ZE-_—_F+=
A=+—H:3%) -
mAaTAa KR E#
BAE AlEaz—=F
—=E+ZA=+—
HIEFEONREBEE
BRI HA
FR 1,030,000 7% (=
TZF:AR%E
5,606,00070) + £ &
HRBRENELRE
UHReRREEE
YEE K= B iE
FEg -

RZTEZ=%F+=A
=+—H MEAR
MEBOTREFE
3% (ZE-_—F+=
A=+—H:3%) -
AT A i =%
BAg RAEE=ZT
—=E+ZA=+—
BIEFE®RTEE
BAFE MR DL
AR #51,0007T (=
T _fF AR
48,0007T) * EEHRN
BRE BT BEBEAT
RekBLZEUN
P& 5 e, S 1RFTEL ©

1E1& bz
K & [B I 4% T B 4 4]
EPN N
TEE R AERE
R

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 3% (31 December 2022: 3%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB1,030,000 (2022: RMB5,606,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
the HKD-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 3% (31 December 2022: 3%) against EUR with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB51,000 (2022: RMB48,000) higher/lower, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of the
EUR-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any significant equity market
risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii))  Interest rate risk
The interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group mainly
include the wealth management products, cash and cash
equivalents, other borrowings and interest-bearing bank
borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in notes 22,
26, 30 and 34 to the financial statements, respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
notes receivable, wealth management products and other
receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain
PRC reputable financial institutions and high-quality international
financial institutions outside Chinese Mainland. All those irrevocable
bank bills, classified as notes receivable (note 25), are issued by the
banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent history
of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation to these
financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure that
certain cash advance has been received upon the agreement of the
related sales orders with customers. For those with credit periods
granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, credit history and other factors.
The Group also undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure
that proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks
and estimates the recoverability regarding such receivables based
on historical date and cash collection history of groups of trade
receivables bearing similar credit risk.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Wealth management products are the bank financial products
issued by certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no
recent history of default and the executive directors of the board of
the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk related to the
investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is
assessed by taking into account their financial position, relationship
with the Group, credit history and other factors. Management will
also regularly review the recoverability of these other receivables and
follow up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive
directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the
default by counterparties is low.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on ageing information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December. The amount presented is gross carrying amount for
financial assets.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2023

12188
BEHEEESR 2HEHEERSE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
ER 12 EIRER EIRE kA& Foy
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AR®T R AR®T R AR®T R AR¥T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M= QR E K Loans to associates 501,525 - - - 501,525
G ERER Amount due from a
joint venture 4,478 - - - 4,478
& NS P Amount due from an associate 224 - - - 224
f’f%ﬂgﬂﬂlﬁﬁt” * Trade receivables* - - - 393,211 393,211
EREBE—ET** Notes receivable — normal** 60,256 - - - 60,256
FEYAR B Dividends receivable 40,912 - - - 40,912
FFAFE FIE « HAbEUL Financial assets included
R R EMEER in prepayments, other
ivﬁé? I ** receivables and
other assets — normal** 448,027 - - - 448,027
BEPIFR—REH Pledged deposits and time
deposits — not yet past due 242,756 - - - 242,756
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— K48 Hf - not yet past due 3,778,666 - - - 3,778,666
5,076,844 - - 393,211 5,470,055
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42. I EMERE »)
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()

EERE (&)

RAJEE K F R4 (4E)
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

12184
HHEEEE 2 HEAEEERE
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1R F2MEE FEIMEER (EE a7 st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BTN E=N Loans to associates 515,286 - - - 515,286
G & EFRIE Amount due from a
joint venture 3,695 - - - 3,695
i e NS P Amount due from an associate 224 - - - 224
B Z AR Trade receivables* - - - 513,818 513,818
EREBE—ET** Notes receivable — normal** 72,276 - - - 72,276
&R B Dividends receivable 40,727 - - - 40,727
FFAFE FIE « HAbFEUR Finandial assets included in
RAREMEEDN prepayments,
SREE—EF** other receivables and
other assets — normal** 502,451 - - - 502,451
BEPIFR—REH Pledged deposits
- not yet past due 177,201 - - - 177,201
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— K48 Hf — not yet past due 3,822,329 - - - 3,822,329
5,134,189 - - 513,818 5,648,007

* %
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RABETEERE -
REBEBEFEENE MR
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fiif 5T ATRAS3RIE - E b
FEW R R E A B E K
BUREENEBEEY
RE - BRI EERE
TRZELREENEER
[ B2 B ) 46 B 38 A SR B
Zgmm AEERER
BWRETER] - B8
ZETBREENERE
RBARMEIRIER] ©

* %k

For financial assets included in trade receivables to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and notes receivable is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

() mEMmEE (c) Liquidity risk
BHOREDE S EIRIBHT Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash.
RARE ASEHFEEH The Group maintains sufficient cash balances to provide flexibility in
WIRE&ER UREAFEH meeting its day to day funding requirements.
BEeHKRERMHEEE -
RZFE_=F+=-A=*+— The Group had net current assets of RMB2,096,953,000 which
A RAEBEERBEEF included cash and cash equivalents of RMB3,778,666,000 as at
28 AR ¥ 2,096,953,000 7T 31 December 2023. The executive directors of the board of the
PIEAERRSEEBEVWAR Company are of the opinion that the Group maintains an adequate
#3,778,666,000 7T °© ANA A liquidity reserve.
EEZERTERERE K&
EHaanneE e E -
AEBRFERBIESETLR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
MR RIEFE 22 B & of the year, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
BRI - follows:
PR 1Z55F BB5F st
Less than
1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
AR®BTR AREBTR AR®BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZE-=F+=-A=+—H At31December 2023
B 5 I H A JE R~ BR 5K Trade and other payables 1,630,241 - - 1,630,241
MEARIRMDERS & Redemption liabilities on
a subsidiary’s shares 1,914,543 1,100,984 - 3,015,527
EizEE Sale-leaseback 12,115 21,708 - 33,823
HEARE Lease liabilities 14,219 38,152 - 52,371
HhfE Other borrowings - - 40,889 40,889
FTESRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 269,680 271,491 592,651 1,133,822
3,840,798 1,432,335 633,540 5,906,673
RZTZZF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2022
B 5 I Ho JE R~ BR X Trade and other payables 1,835,341 - - 1,835,341
MEBARRNDOERS & Redemption liabilities on
a subsidiary’s shares - 2,804,261 - 2,804,261
B e Sale-leaseback 8,118 34,082 - 42,200
HEBE Lease liabilities 13,184 45,856 - 59,040
H b tam Other borrowings 13,893 - 40,289 54,182
FTESRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 327,075 252,418 555,965 1,135,458
2,197,611 3,136,617 596,254 5,930,482
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.2 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise

shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to capital ratio, which is a
percentage of borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company. Borrowings includes bank loans and other borrowings. The debt
to capital ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows :

t=A=+-H
31 December
—EB-=F —EF-=
2023 2022
AR T ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
E g5k (M5E30) Other borrowings (note 30) 40,889 54,182
T RIBITER (M 34) Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 34) 1,133,822 1,135,458
1,174,711 1,189,640
AER ARG Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,432,130 4,736,998
BERENREE Debt to capital ratio 26.50% 25.11%

43. FEHREE

AEERBRERREZARE AL E
BEREMN-
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events after the reporting period up to the date of

this report.
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—TZ=%+=ZA=+—H

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
+=—HA=+-—H
31 December
—B=-= T
2023 2022

Bt = AR®T T ARETT

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BB R Property, plant and equipment 3 5
FRHEEE Right-of-use assets - 1,144
R B R RIHIRE Investments in subsidiaries 20 229,262 248,644
SEMENEEMLE Total non-current assets 229,265 249,793
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
H b i U AR 3R Other receivables 479 1,490
FEUR B BB X Rl K8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,462,025 7,638,711
Be kRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 102,639 181,915
MBEERRE Total current assets 7,565,143 7,822,116
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEEBE Lease liabilities - 1,248
E A ETRR R Other payables 1,520,131 1,413,707
mEBBERE Total current liabilities 1,520,131 1,414,955
BEBREBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,045,012 6,407,161
MEERARBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,274,277 6,656,954
FEE Net assets 6,274,277 6,656,954
R EQUITY
(%N Share capital 77,058 77,058
EFR’RHD Treasury shares (33,811) -
f&1in = E Share premium 3,882,304 3,913,683
HAb () Other reserve (i) 53,336 51,645
REB & T () Retained earnings (i) 2,295,390 2,614,568
BRES TOTAL EQUITY 6,274,277 6,656,954
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ZE_=4+ZA=+-H

44. N [ B AR R & ) 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
() ARABFEERRBAFNEZHOT - (i) A summary of the Company’s other reserves and retained earnings is as
follows:
NRGHER
WS e Hit s REBRF
Share-based
payment Other Retained
reserve reserve earnings
AR® T AR® T AR¥ T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H At 1 January 2022 26,910 22,608 4,008,110
FEEIE Loss for the year - - (78,012)
B B IR BEEhETEl Employee share award scheme
—EERBEE — value of employee services 2,127 - -
fi& S (BT 12) Dividends (note 12) - - (1,315,530)

R-_TB-_—_F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2022 and

—E-=F—H—H 1 January 2023 29,037 22,608 2,614,568
FEEIE Loss for the year - - (20,618)
12 B R fn SRR & Employee share award scheme

—EERBKEE — value of employee services 1,691 - -
AR 8 (FzE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (298,560)
RZEZ=F+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 2023 30,728 22,608 2,295,390
45. b B 7% 3|3k 45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZZZWMNF=A=+N\B MEHRE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
RESFSHERTEED - directors on 28 March 2024.
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